
 

 
 
 

 
Agenda 
Planning Committee 
 

Wednesday 29 November 2023 at 5.00 pm 
in the Council Chamber, Sandwell Council House, Oldbury, 

 
  
1   Apologies for Absence 

 
To receive and apologies for absence. 
 

9 - 10 

 
2   Declarations of Interest 

 
Members to declare any interests in matters to be 
discussed at the meeting. 
 

11 - 12 

 
3   Minutes 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 25 
October 2023 as a correct record. 
 

13 - 38 

 
4   Planning Application - DC/22/67240 - Land 

Formerly Wednesbury Motors, 110 Holyhead 
Road, Wednesbury 
 
Proposed demolition of former van and car sales 
garage, and construction of 30 No. two-bedroom 
apartments (outline application for layout). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39 - 56 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

5   Planning Application - DC/23/67863 - Land 
West off Bridge Street North, Smethwick, B66 
2BJ 
 
Proposed change of use from general industrial to 
treatment, remediation and recovery facility for 
contaminated soils, construction, demolition and 
excavation of waste with 1 No. soil treatment shed 
and 4 No. office/meeting rooms, 1 No. mess 
drying room, toilet block, store, weighbridge unit, 
picking station, decontamination unit, clean 
material area and 2 No. holding tanks and covered 
post treatment areas, oversized processing area, 
parking and the creation of a new vehicular access 
- Temporary planning permission for 5 years. 
 

57 - 84 

 
6   Planning Application - DC/23/68288 - 38 High 

Street, Cradley Heath, B64 5HL 
 
Proposed part change of use of ground floor and 
conversion of first/second floors with single storey 
rear extension to create 2 No. self-contained 
apartments, rear loft dormer window, new shop 
front, landscaping and parking to rear. 
 

85 - 102 

 
7   Planning Application - DC/23/68367 - 57 

Valentine Road, Oldbury, B68 9AH 
 
Proposed two storey side and single storey 
front/side/rear extensions. 
 

103 - 114 

 
8   Planning Application - DC/23/68420 - Site Of 

Former 3 And 4 Cardale Street, Rowley Regis 
 
Proposed 11 No. houses and 9 No. self-contained 
apartments with car parking, enclosed bin store, 
cycle store and landscaping. 
 

115 - 142 

 
9   Planning Application - DC/23/68497 - 10 

Jowetts Lane, West Bromwich, B71 2RA 
 
Retention of replacement boundary treatment, 
removal of external rear wall, single storey rear 
extension, and raising of existing roof height. 
 

143 - 158 

 

Page 2



 

10   Planning Application - DC/23/68518 - Locarno 
Works, Locarno Road, Tipton, DY4 9AF 
 
Retention of light industrial and storage use, 
vehicular access, car and vehicle parking, lighting 
and CCTV. 
 

159 - 172 

 
11   Planning Application - DC/23/68524 - 51 Green 

Street, West Bromwich, B70 6DL 
 
Demolition of existing buildings, and proposed 11-
storey building comprising up to 60 no. residential 
apartments, with associated landscaping, cycle 
parking, car parking and access from Green Street 
(Outline application for access). 
 

173 - 186 

 
12   Planning Application - DC/23/68559 - Gateway 

Service Station, 76 Birmingham Road, Great 
Barr, Birmingham, B43 6NT 
 
Proposed variation of condition 12 of DC/13/56229 
(Proposed variation of condition 12 of DC/31470 to 
extend opening hours from 07:00 to 23:00 on any 
day to 05:00 to midnight Monday to Saturday and 
7.00 to 23.00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays) to 
extend opening hours to 24 hours any day. 
 

187 - 198 

 
13   Planning Application - DC/23/68578 - 180 

Walsall Road, West Bromwich, B71 3LH 
 
Retention of outbuilding at rear for garden room, 
storage and gym. 
 

199 - 206 

 
14   Planning Application - DC/23/68624 - Land At 

Corner Of Cleton Street And Sedgley Road 
East/Tipton Road, Tipton, DY4 7TR 
 
Proposed 2 No. detached light industrial units with 
new access, parking, landscaping and new 
retaining wall with railings to rear. 
 
 
 
 
 

207 - 218 

 

Page 3



 

15   Planning Application - DC/23/68690 - Travellers 
Transit Site, Wellington Street, Smethwick 
 
Proposed renewal of temporary traveller site 
(planning permission DC/17/60410 and 
DC/20/63956) for up to 34 caravans, together with 
associated toilet/washroom facilities and boundary 
fencing (three year permission requested). 
 

219 - 228 

 
16   Planning Application - PD/23/02530 - 

Telecommunication Mast 1694, Haden Park 
Road, Cradley Heath 
 
Proposed replacement of existing lattice tower 
with an 25.0m high swann CS5S lattice tower with 
12 No. antennas, 2 No. GPS modules, 4 No. 300 
dishes, 2 No. cabinets, 2 No. racks, 2 No. future 
racks and associated ancillary works. 
 

229 - 240 

 
17   Planning Delegations Agreement 

 
To consider the revised planning delegations 
agreement. 
 

241 - 248 

 
18   Proposed Site Visits 

 
To consider and note the planning applications to 
be visited by the Committee on 10 January 2024. 
 

249 - 258 

 
19   Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 

 
To consider and note the Decisions of the 
Planning Inspectorate. 
 

259 - 264 

 
20   Applications Determined Under Delegated 

Powers 
 
To consider and note the Applications Determined 
Under Delegated Powers. 
 

265 - 290 

 

Page 4



 

Shokat Lal 
Chief Executive 
Sandwell Council House 
Freeth Street 
Oldbury 
West Midlands 
 
Distribution 
Councillor Millar (Chair) 
Councillors Chidley, Chapman, Fenton, Fisher, S Gill, Kaur, Kordala, Loan, 
Pall, Preece, N Singh, Tromans, Uppal, J Webb and Younis 
 
Contact: democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 5

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


 

Information about meetings in Sandwell 
 

 
 

If you are attending the meeting and require assistance to 
access the venue, please contact Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk). 
 

 
 

If the fire alarm sounds, please follow the instructions of the 
officers present and leave the building by the nearest exit. 
 

 
 

Only people invited to speak at a meeting may do so.  
Everyone at the meeting is expected to be respectful and listen 
to the discussion. 

 
 

Agendas with reports with exempt information should be 
treated as private and confidential.  It is your responsibility to 
ensure that any such reports are kept secure.  After the 
meeting confidential papers should be disposed of in a secure 
way. 
 

 
 

This meeting may be recorded and broadcast on the Internet.  
If this is the case, it will be confirmed at the meeting and 
further information will be provided.  
 
 

 
 

You are allowed to use devices for the purposes of recording 
or reporting during the public session of the meeting.  When 
using your devices they must not disrupt the meeting – please 
ensure they are set to silent. 
 

 
 

Members who cannot attend the meeting should submit 
apologies by contacting Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk) 
 

 

All agenda, reports, minutes for Sandwell Council’s meetings, 
councillor details and more are available from our website 

Page 6

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
https://sandwell.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 
Apologies for Absence 

 

To receive any apologies for absence from the members of the Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

 

Planning Committee 
 

 
Declarations of Interest 

 

Members to declare any interests in matters to be discussed at the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

 

Minutes of 
Planning Committee 

 
Wednesday 25 October 2023 at 5.00pm 

in the Council Chamber, Sandwell Council House, Oldbury 
 
 

Present:  Councillor Millar (Chair) 
Councillors Chidley (Vice-Chair), Chapman, Fenton, Fisher, 
Loan, Pall, Preece, N Singh, Uppal and Webb. 

 
 
Officers: John Baker (Development Planning and Building Consultancy 

Manager); Alison Bishop (Development Planning Manager); 
Simon Chadwick (Highway Network Development and Road 
Safety Manager); Andy Thorpe (Healthy Urban Development 
Officer); Sophie Anderson (Solicitor); Trisha Newton (Deputy 
Democratic Services Manager); and Connor Robinson 
(Democratic Services Officer). 

 
 
In attendance/: Councillors Anandou, Bhullar, Hughes, Kalebe- 
Observing Nyamongo and Piper 
 
 
84/23  Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S Gill, and 
Tromans. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 
85/23  Declarations of Interest 
  

Minute 

No.  

Subject Member Interest 

86/23 Planning Application - 

DC/23/68540 - 

Proposed demolition of 

existing buildings and 

erection of 1 No. 

primary school, 190 

No. dwellings, public 

open space, 

landscaping and 

associated works 

(outline application with 

all matters reserved). 

Former Brandhall Golf 

Course, Heron Road, 

Oldbury. 

Councillor 

Fenton 

Had called in the 

Cabinet Decision 

as Chair of the 

Safer 

Neighbourhoods 

and Active 

Communities 

Scrutiny Board.  

90/23 Planning Application - 

DC/23/68367 - 

Proposed two storey 

side and single storey 

front/side/rear 

extensions, roof 

extension, loft 

conversion and rear 

dormer window. 57 

Valentine Road, 

Oldbury, B68 9AH 

Councillor 

Fenton 

Supporting a 

resident in their 

objection to the 

Planning 

Application.  

 
  

Page 14



3 
 

86/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68540 - Proposed demolition of 
existing buildings and erection of 1 No. primary school, 190 
No. dwellings, public open space, landscaping and associated 
works (outline application with all matters reserved). Former 
Brandhall Golf Course, Heron Road, Oldbury. 

 
(Councillor Fenton withdraw from deliberations) 
 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
reported that three further representations had been received and 
circulated to members. The first was from Sport England who 
objected to the recommended condition related to the submission of 
a viability assessment to address any requirement for the Council to 
fund improvements to off-site golf facilities. In addition, a letter had 
been received from a concerned local resident along with a framed 
picture emphasising the Brandhall green space and what would be 
lost if any development went ahead. Lastly an organisation called 
the Hive Effect had submitted an objection emphasising the loss 
green space and the impact any development would have on local 
ecosystems. 
 
In view of the ongoing objectors campaign to the proposed 
Brandhall development Councillor Preece, with the agreement of 
the Committee, stated that all members had been lobbied on behalf 
of the objectors. 
 
Objectors were present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points: 

• the previous leader of the Council had assured residents that 
a public consultation would be held on the future of Brandhall; 

• a majority of residents had rejected any proposed 
development; 

• ;the residents felt that the Council had not listened to them;; 

• the Black Country and Birmingham Wildlife Trust had asked 
the Council to undertake and submit a wildlife assessment 
and had stated that previous investigations had not been 
sufficient; 

• it was considered that the proposed development would 
negatively impact the local highway infrastructure and safety; 

Page 15



4 
 

• Staffordshire Country Council, who acted as a lead consultant 
for Sandwell as a lead local flood authority, had objected to 
the proposals on grounds of insufficient detail on the proposed 
draining strategy; 

• it was not clear what walking and cycling provisions the 
proposed development would create; 

• the development on green space was being used as a quick 
fix for Sandwell’s housing shortage; 

• if the green space was lost it would be lost forever; 

• the land proposed for the development had been green space 
for a long time and its loss would result in the loss of local 
biodiversity; 

• what future would be left for Sandwell’s children if their green 
space could not be protected; 

• the loss of green space would continue to decline for local 
communities; 

• developments around Brandhall had resulted in serious 
flooding issues within the Brandhall site that posed a severe 
risk to public safety; 

• Sandwell should change the way it thinks about the 
environment. 

 
The applicant’s agent was in attendance and addressed the 
Committee with the following points: 

• the proposed development would provide a unique 
opportunity to improve public open space, education and 
housing provision; 

• the proposal would deliver a substantial public park, a new 
school, and high-quality housing; 

• the outline application with all matters reserved would seek to 
establish the development in principal; 

• the outline application, supported by a landscape led 
masterplan, would supply almost 30 hectares of new public 
park and covered almost 80% of the site; 

• the green space would not be lost forever, but be enhanced, it 
would increase biodiversity and public accessibility; 

• despite two existing public rights of way the former golf course 
had not been publicly accessible; 

Page 16



5 
 

• the proposed development would establish new footways and 
cycleways and create a number of recreation and leisure 
opportunities; 

• the proposed development would allow the green space to be 
attractive and open to a wider audience locally; 

• a Brandhall working group had been established to bring 
together community groups, councillors and stakeholders to 
contribute and inform the designs of the proposed park space; 

• the proposed new primary school would replace the existing 
one which was in poor physical condition; 

• Sandwell had a shortfall in housing land supply. The delivery 
of 190 new homes would contribute towards meeting the 
unmet housing need; 

• the proposed development would be socially inclusive, 
providing 25% affordable housing; 

• the application did not meet the thresholds for an 
environmental impact assessment, the application was 
supported by a range of technical and environmental reports 
which had assessed the impact of any development and set 
out mitigation measures where appropriate; 

• Sandwell Highways department had raised no overall 
objections to the proposed development, as part of the 
application there was improvements proposed to the 
Wolverhampton Road Queensway Junction; 

• the masterplan had been designed to ensure as many trees 
would be retained as possible, some trees would be lost, and 
mitigation measures would be in place in these 
circumstances; 

• the ecology of the site was understood, and surveys had been 
undertaken to identify species on the site; 

• a biodiversity net gain assessment had been included within 
the application, demonstrating a 10% net gain improvement 
on the existing biodiversity on the site;    

• the proposed development would not make flooding matters 
any worse and betterment would be provided and was 
detailed in the proposed draining strategy; 

• the Environment Agency had not objected to the application 
owing to the development areas being located outside of the 
identified flood zone; 

Page 17



6 
 

• there had been a lot of air quality monitoring to understand the 
hotspots around the site which would be used to identify the 
best place for the proposed development; 

• it was an exciting opportunity for Sandwell, and the proposed 
development had been designed to be high-quality and 
sustainable. 

 
(Councillor Fisher withdraw from deliberations) 
 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
clarified the question around the Environmental Impact Assessment 
regulations. The regulations did apply to the application under 
schedule two of the regulations. Under the schedule the applicant 
had submitted what was called a screening opinion to determine if a 
full Environmental Impact Assessment was required. Planning had 
determined that a full Environmental Impact Assessment was not 
required. That decision however, was not to be dismissive of 
environmental issues and concerns which had been considered as 
part of the application. 
 
Further to whether the applicant could provide an Environmental 
Impact Assessment independently of what was required under the 
planning application, it was determined that nothing more could be 
added that was not already contained within the supporting 
information accompanying the application.  
 
In response to questions from members, the objectors stressed that 
the proposed development was not enhancing the local community 
or environment and possible alternatives were not being considered 
in favour of large developments. 
 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
stressed that the application was an outline application and there 
was a considerable number of conditions attached to the application 
to address concerns and allow for further clarity. 
 
The applicants agent clarified that a tree survey had been 
undertaken, which had looked at all of the trees on the site and had 
assessed their size, quality and species. The survey had helped 
inform the illustrative masterplan which had aimed to avoid if 

Page 18



7 
 

possible the loss of valuable and biodiverse trees. There were no 
veteran trees onsite and no tree with a protection order was 
planned to be affected by any proposed development. The applicant 
would be working with the Wildlife Trust to establish the needs of 
any replacement trees if trees were required to be removed for any 
potential future development. 
 
Objectors stated that they believed there was a lack of 
understanding of the site both from the applicant and the applicant’s 
agent and the information presented to the Committee was 
insufficient. 
 
It was understood that while the Environment Agency had originally 
objected to the application, following further information regarding 
an overlay of key flood zones across the Brandhall site and the 
proposed development being away from those sites, the objection 
was withdrawn.   
 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
clarified that the application was an outline application and the 
drawings provided were only indicative. If the outline application 
was successful, the applicant would be required to submit a further 
application detailing the ultimate proposal. It was at that stage that 
confirmation detail would be required on matters such as flood 
prevention. 
 
The applicant’s agent noted how the proposed development would 
work to be sustainable and take advantage of heat-pumps, solar 
panels and electric vehicle charging points. It was envisaged that 
the proposal would set a standard for future developments across 
the Borough. 
 

Resolved that Outline Planning Application - DC/23/68540 - 
Proposed demolition of existing buildings and erection of 1 
No. primary school, 190 No. dwellings, public open space, 
landscaping and associated works (outline application with all 
matters reserved) - Former Brandhall Golf Course, Heron 
Road, Oldbury is granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

Page 19



8 
 

(i) Reserved matters (full details of access, appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale); 

 
(ii) Time limit of 3 years for submission of reserved 

matters; 
 
(iii) Time limit of 2 years for commencement from date of 

approval of final reserved matters; 
 
(iv) Compliance with approved plans; 
 
(v) Submission of a viability assessment to address any 

requirement for the Council to fund improvements to 
off-site golf facilities; 

 
(vi) Contamination; 
 
(vii) Further surface water drainage detail; 
 

(viii) Further foul water drainage detail; 
 
(ix) Further detail of traffic impact at Wolverhampton 

Road/Queensway junction together with mitigation and 
implementation of highway improvements; 

 
(x) Revision of Transport Assessment to include a wider 

assessment of the impact of residential development 
on the highway network with mitigation and 
implementation of any required highway 
improvements; 

(xi) Revision of Transport Assessment to include further 
detail of vehicle movements associated with the 
school and delivery of required road safety measures; 

 
(xii)  Revision of Transport Assessment to include multi-

modal trip generation data to inform active and 
sustainable travel need with mitigation and 
implementation of any required improvements; 

 

Page 20



9 
 

(xiii)  Written scheme of investigation for archaeology; 
 
(xiv) Ecological Impact Assessment and implementation of 

mitigation; 
 
(xv) Revision of Energy and Sustainability Statement; 
 
(xvi) Revision of Arboricultural Impact Assessment; 
 
(xvii) Cycle parking; 
 
(xviii) Further schedule of mitigation regarding air quality; 
 
(xix) Details of controlled ventilation intakes in respect of air 

quality; 
 
(xx) Electric vehicle charging; 
 
(xxi) Low NOx boilers; 
 
(xxii) Residential units shall meet the internal ambient noise 

levels of the relevant British Standard; 
 
(xxiii) The school shall meet the internal ambient noise 

levels of the relevant standard; 
 
(xxiv) Construction environmental management plan 

(CEMP); 
 
(xxv) Employment and skills plan; 

 
(xxvi) Detailed assessment of ground conditions (including 

drainage and topography) of the land proposed for the 
school playing field; 

 
(xxvii) Schedule of playing field maintenance; 
 
(xxviii)  Community use agreement for school sports facilities 

(or assessment of need for); 
 

Page 21



10 
 

(xxix)  Implementation of recommendations of Biodiversity 
Net Gain Assessment; 

 
(xxx)  Implementation of Travel Plans; 
 
(xxxi)  Indicative access points are not agreed as part of this 

outline consent; 
 
(xxxii)  Compliance with recommendations of the Air Quality 

Assessment; 
 
(xxxiii)  Demolition or construction restricted to 8:00 to 17:30 

Monday to Friday and 8:30 to 13:00 hours on 
Saturdays. There will be no working on Sundays or 
bank holidays; and 

 
(xxxiv)  Provision and retention of parking. 

 
(Councillors Fisher and Fenton returned to the meeting) 

 
(Councillor Pall left the meeting) 

 
87/23 Planning Application - DC/23/67924 - Proposed residential 

development comprising of 278 No. dwellings (Reserved 
matters application for appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale) - Pursuant to outline planning application DC/14/57745. 
Edwin Richards Quarry, Portway Road, Rowley Regis 

 
Councillor Webb indicated she had been lobbied on a previous site 
visit. 
 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
confirmed that the application was a reserved matters application, 
the Committee had previously granted outline permission on the 
quarry. The Committee was updated on additional conditions to the 
recommendation, with the addition of a retaining wall on Portway 
Road, along with details on parking/manoeuvring, hard landscaping 
and corner plots incorporating windowed elevation details. It was 
also noted that condition (iv) within the report regarding the 

Page 22



11 
 

monitoring and management of boreholes, be removed due to 
duplication from the original outline report and ongoing work. 
 
No objectors had registered to speak. 
 
The applicant was present and addressed the Committee with the 
following points: 

• the proposed development was a product of extensive joint 
working between the Council and the applicants;  

• the input from officers had helped shape the layout of the 
application which would aim to create a high-quality 
environment for residents; 

• the proposal encompassed both public and private open 
space along with hard and soft landscaping; 

• the proposed development would incorporate a housing mix, 
from one bed flats to four bed houses; 

• the approval of the application would help address Sandwell’s 
housing need; 

• the location of the proposed housing was not on landfill and 
had never been landfill, but adjacent to where the landfill was; 

• a considerable amount of work had been undertaken between 
the Council and the Environment Agency to ensure any 
impact on the proposed housing from the nearby landfill site 
was managed effectively;  

• in addition to the proposed development the adjacent side of 
the site operated a soil processing and infill site that was 
seeking to restore the quarry; 

• it was anticipated that the infill would be in operation for 
another 20 to 25 years; 

• the soil processing and infill operation would not impact the 
residential development, the access to the site was from 
different routes. 

 
The applicant clarified that the affordable housing provision was set 
as part of the outline application and Section 106 agreement. The 
decision on affordable housing provision was reached through 
viability testing owing to the difficulties of developing the site. The 
residential and quarry site would be separated by a security fence 
and would be secure. 

Page 23



12 
 

 
The applicant clarified that the soil processing and infill site at the 
far end of the site was assessed separately and a considerable 
distance from the residential development and it was projected that 
there would be no impact from the soil processing facilities. 
 
Concern was raised about potential subsidence of the proposed 
development owing to the significant contours of the land in 
question and the nature of the site being infilled. The applicant 
reassured the Committee that the land proposed for the 
development had not previously been quarried and was instead 
used for buildings associated with the quarry. The land was virgin 
land and the developer was confident there would be no settlement 
issue. The Development Planning and Building Consultancy 
Manager also confirmed that Building Regulations approval would 
be required to approve the development prior to any works been 
undertaken. 
 
(Councillor Preece left the meeting) 
 

Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/67924 - Proposed 
residential development comprising of 278 No. dwellings 
(Reserved matters application for appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale) - Pursuant to outline planning application 
DC/14/57745. Edwin Richards Quarry, Portway Road, Rowley 
Regis, subject to details of retaining wall approval is granted 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
(i) Air Quality Assessment and mitigation plan; 

 
(ii) Low NOx Boilers; 

 

(iii) Travel Plan measures; 
 

(iv) Noise Assessment and subsequent mitigation; 
 

(v) Footpath link to Dudley Road; 
 

(vi) Renewable energy; 
 

Page 24



13 
 

(vii) Recommendations of the Extended phase 1 habitat 
survey carried out; and 

 
(viii) Employment and skills; 

 
(ix) parking/ manoeuvring to be provided and retained; 

 
(x) Additional condition details of hard landscaping to 

parking areas and open spaces; 
 

(xi)  All corner plots within the development to incorporate 
windowed elevation detail. 

 
 

88/23  Duration of meeting 
 

Under Standing Orders 4(5) a motion was proposed and seconded 
to suspend the standing order to extend the meeting prior to the 
expiration at 3 hours. 

 
Resolved that the meeting be extended until the remaining 
business had been considered. 
 
 

  

Page 25



14 
 

89/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68288 - Proposed part change of 
use of ground floor and conversion of first/second floors with 
single storey rear extension to create 2 No. self-contained 
apartments, rear loft dormer window, new shop front, 
landscaping and parking to rear. 38 High Street, Cradley Heath, 
B64 5HL 

 
Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/68288 - 
Proposed part change of use of ground floor and conversion 
of first/second floors with single storey rear extension to 
create 2 No. self-contained apartments, rear loft dormer 
window, new shop front, landscaping and parking to rear. 38 
High Street, Cradley Heath, B64 5HL, is deferred to allow for 
a site visit to be undertaken. 
 
 

90/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68367 - Proposed two storey side 
and single storey front/side/rear extensions, roof extension, 
loft conversion and rear dormer window. 57 Valentine Road, 
Oldbury, B68 9AH 

 
Resolved that  Planning Application - DC/23/68367 - 
Proposed two storey side and single storey front/side/rear 
extensions, roof extension, loft conversion and rear dormer 
window. 57 Valentine Road, Oldbury, B68 9AH is deferred to 
allow for a site visit to be undertaken. 

 
(Councillor Fenton withdrew from the meeting) 

 
 

  

Page 26



15 
 

91/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68220 - Proposed learning 
campus comprising of education (Class F1(a)), medical or 
health services (Class E(e)), food and drink (Class E(b)), and 
professional services (Class E(c)) with hard and soft 
landscaping. Land At Midland Metro University Hospital, Grove 
Lane, Smethwick, B66 2QT 

 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
advised the Committee that the applicant was unable to attend the 
Committee and had asked for a statement to be read out that 
stated: 

• the application was part of a Towns Fund project working in 
collaboration with Sandwell Council, Sandwell College, 
University of Wolverhampton and Aston University; 

• the proposed development would be a purpose built learning 
campus at the gateway to the Midland Metropolitan Hospital; 

• it would benefit from close direct links to the new hospital and 
would provide training and pathways into employment in 
healthcare; 

• the development would increase local spend and 
opportunities; 

• the design and development would look to be carbon neutral. 
 

The Committee was further advised on cycling provision for the 
proposed site. It was understood that a stand alone cycling storage 
area was proposed to the side of the building which was included as 
part of the sustainable offer of the proposed development. 
 
No objectors had registered to speak. 

 
  (Councillor Fenton returned to the meeting) 
   

Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/68220 - Proposed 
learning campus comprising of education (Class F1(a)), 
medical or health services (Class E(e)), food and drink (Class 
E(b)), and professional services (Class E(c)) with hard and 
soft landscaping. Land At Midland Metro University Hospital, 
Grove Lane, Smethwick, B66 2QT, subject to a s106 
agreement to secure monitoring of off-road parking before and 

Page 27



16 
 

post development, planning permission is granted subject to 
conditions relating to: 
 
i) Parking, loading/unloading laid out and retained; 
 
ii) Detailed travel plan; 

 
iii) Dust management plan during construction; 

 
iv) Construction management plan; 

 
v) Site investigation, remediation and validation; 

 
vi) Details of odour extraction from cooking smells and 

maintenance thereafter; 
 

vii) Lighting details; 
 

viii) CCTV proposals; 
 

ix) Implementation of drainage strategy (LLFA); 
 

x) Surface water management plan (during construction) 
 

xi) Details of disposal of surface and foul water (Severn 
Trent); 

 
xii) Finished floor levels; 

 
xiii) Details of external materials (to include a colour to the 

Dudley Road elevation) 
 

xiv) No vinyl’s to be incorporated into the glazed areas of the 
building; 

 

xv) Details of hard and soft landscaping; 
 
xvi) Details of Bin storage and Refuse management plan; 

 

Page 28



17 
 

xvii) Details of street furniture and public art within the 
external spaces; and 

 

xviii) Employment Skill plan; 
 

 
92/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68252 - Proposed change of use 

of part-ground floor, first and second floors and two-storey 
rear extension to accommodate 19 No. bedsits (house in 
multiple occupation - HMO) with 2 No. rear dormer windows, 2 
No. external staircases, bicycle parking and bin store. 576-578 
Bearwood Road, Smethwick, B66 4BW 
 
Councillors Millar, Chidley, Fenton, Loan, N Singh and Webb 
indicated they had been lobbied by the applicant on the recent site 
visit. 
 
No objectors or applicants had registered to speak. 
 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
confirmed that the applicant had stated that there would be 
increased bin storage on site and if approved the provision and 
retention of waste storage would be conditioned. 
 
(Councillor Uppal left the meeting) 
 

Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/68252 - 
Proposed change of use of part-ground floor, first and second 
floors and two-storey rear extension to accommodate 19 No. 
bedsits (house in multiple occupation - HMO) with 2 No. rear 
dormer windows, 2 No. external staircases, bicycle parking 
and bin store. 576-578 Bearwood Road, Smethwick, B66 
4BW is granted subject to conditions relating to: 
 
i) Materials to match existing building; 

 
ii) Noise assessment and implementation of 

recommendations; 

Page 29



18 
 

iii) Detailed air quality mitigation plan to include glazing, 
mechanical ventilation, maintenance and retention 
thereafter; 
 

iv) Construction management plan; 
 

v) Low NOx boilers; 
 

vi) Provision and retention of waste storage area; 
 

vii) Provision and retention of cycle storage (materials to 
match existing building); 

 
viii) External lighting scheme; 

 
ix) No use of staircase or flat roof as external amenity area; 

 
x) Communal areas to be provided and retained; and 

 
xi)  To be used as HMO accommodation only – not 

individual dwelling houses. 
 
 
93/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68347 - Proposed single storey 

rear extension to create 1 No. self-contained flat. 574 Hagley 
Road West, Oldbury, B68 0BS 

 
Councillors Millar, Chidley, Fenton, Loan, N Singh and Webb 
indicated they had been lobbied by the objectors on the recent site 
visit. 
 
No objectors or applicant had registered to speak. 

 
The Committee indicated that following the site visit it was apparent 
that a number of the objectors had not fully understood the details 
of the proposed development and when informed were far more 
comfortable with what was proposed.  
 
Objectors had expressed their concern over the potential loss of 
trees on the boundary, to which the Development Planning and 

Page 30



19 
 

Building Consultancy Manager advised the Committee that a 
condition could be imposed but it would depend on whether the 
trees fell within the applicant’s premises.  
 

Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/68347 - 
Proposed single storey rear extension to create 1 No. self-
contained flat. 574 Hagley Road West, Oldbury, B68 0BS is 
granted subject to conditions relating to: 
 
i) External Materials; 

 
ii) Car parking implementation and retention; 

 
iii) Noise assessment and mitigation measures; 

 
iv) Drainage; 

 
v) Low NOx Boiler; 

 
vi) Refuse Storage; 

 
vii) Cycle Storage; 

 
viii) Construction environmental management plan; 

 
ix) Obscure glazing to side elevation (east facing); 

 
x) Highway signage to entrance/ exit; 

 
xi) External lighting scheme; and 

 
xii) Retention of trees if applicable. 

 
 
  

Page 31



20 
 

94/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68467 - Proposed 2 No. portal 
framed buildings to house 7 No. small units for general 
industrial/storage and distribution use with associated vehicle 
access, substation, sliding front gates, parking and covered 
cycle shelter. West Midlands Foundry Co Limited, Blakemore 
Road, West Bromwich, B70 8JF 

 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
advised that no objections had been received in relation to the 
application, the matter was before the Committee as the proposed 
development was a departure from the development plan and 
hence the departure would be subject to approval by Full Council. 
 
The applicant had not registered to speak. 
 
The Healthy Urban Development Officer advised that the proposed 
development may relate to storage that was regulated by the 
Council through Environmental Health industrial permitting or 
depending on what was ultimately stored the Environment Agency.  
 

Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/68467 - Proposed 
2 No. portal framed buildings to house 7 No. small units for 
general industrial/storage and distribution use with associated 
vehicle access, substation, sliding front gates, parking and 
covered cycle shelter. West Midlands Foundry Co Limited, 
Blakemore Road, West Bromwich, B70 8JF subject to 
approval by Full Council as departure from the development 
plan, that planning permission is granted subject to conditions 
relating to: 
 
i) External materials; 

 
ii) Secure cycle shelter; 

 
iii) Electric vehicle charging points; 

 
iv) Details of front sliding gates; 

 
v) Levels; 

 

Page 32



21 
 

vi) Substation details; 
 

vii) Construction and environmental management plan;  
 

viii) Ground investigation/remediation works; 
 

ix) Foundation design detail adjacent the canal; 
 

x) Landscaping facing the canal frontage, and site hard  
surface; details; 
 

xi) Apprentice training in construction, 
 

xii)  measures to prevent runoff; 
 

 
95/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68518 - Retention of light 

industrial and storage use, vehicular access, car and vehicle 
parking, lighting and CCTV. Locarno Works, Locarno Road, 
Tipton, DY4 9AF 

 
No objectors or applicants had registered to speak. 

 
Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/68518 - Retention 
of light industrial and storage use, vehicular access, car and 
vehicle parking, lighting and CCTV. Locarno Works, Locarno 
Road, Tipton, DY4 9AF is deferred to allow a site visit to be 
undertaken. 

 
 
96/23 Planning Application - DC/22/67797 - Proposed residential 

development comprising of 45 dwellings, landscaping and car 
parking. Site of 30-144 Mounts Road, Wednesbury 

 
No objectors had registered to speak. 
 
The applicant’s agents were in attendance and addressed the 
Committee with the following points: 

• the site was part of a large housing allocation; 

Page 33



22 
 

• the site was covered with disused coal shafts and the 
previous scheme was undeliverable; 

• the proposed development would be deliverable taking into 
account the coal shafts; 

• the development would deliver much needed housing, and it 
was anticipated they would be delivered by a local developer; 

• sustainability requirements would be a focus and 10% of the 

proposed development would receive their energy from 
renewables; 

• the scheme would deliver 45 new homes on a brownfield site, 
the housing would be mixed, providing apartments and family 
homes; 

 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
advised that the Coal Authority had recommended more intrusive 
site investigations across the proposed site and conditions had 
been crafted to address the concerns. 
 
The applicant confirmed that work had already begun to address 
the Japanese Knotweed prevalent across the site through chemical 
treatment and removal. 
 

Resolved that Planning Application - DC/22/67797 - 
Proposed residential development comprising of 45 dwellings, 
landscaping and car parking. Site of 30-144 Mounts Road, 
Wednesbury is granted subject to conditions relating to: 
 
i) External materials in accordance with submitted details; 

 
ii) Electric vehicle charging provision and retention; 

 
iii) Construction environmental management plan; 

 
iv) Low NOx boilers, provision and retention; 

 
v) Provision and retention of car parking; 

 
vi) Drainage; 

 

Page 34



23 
 

vii) Site investigation and remediation; 
 

viii) External Lighting scheme; 
 

ix) Finished floor levels; 
 

x) Boundary treatments; 
 

xi) Landscaping in accordance with submitted details; 
 

xii) Electric vehicle charging; 
 

xiii) Detailed method statement setting out job and 
apprenticeship opportunities which may arise during 
the construction of the development and/or when the 
development is brought into use; 

 
xiv) Coal Authority – Intrusive site 

investigations/remediation works; 
 

xv) Noise assessment; 
 

xvi) Construction times; 
 

xvii) Construction Surface Water Management Plan; and 
 

xviii) Permitted development removal. 
 

97/23 Planning Application - DC/22/67520 - Retention of heavy goods 
lorry and trailer parking area with portable office. Tata Cargo 
Ltd, Rigby Street, Wednesbury, WS10 0NP 

 
The Development Planning and Building Consultancy Manager 
advised that no objections had been received and the 
recommendation should have specified that the application was 
subject to approval by Full Council as it was a departure from the 
local development plan. 

 
Resolved that retrospective Planning Application - 
DC/22/67520 - Retention of heavy goods lorry and trailer 

Page 35



24 
 

parking area with portable office. Tata Cargo Ltd, Rigby 
Street, Wednesbury, WS10 0NP subject to approval by Full 
Council as departure from the development plan, is granted 
subject to conditions relating to: 
 
i) The areas shown for manoeuvring and parking of vehicles 

is provided and retained as such; and 
ii)  Site drainage implemented in accordance with submitted 

Drainage Strategy Statement. 
 
 
98/23 Planning Application - DC/23/68505 - Proposed single and two 

storey rear and single storey front extensions. 418 
Wolverhampton Road, Oldbury, B68 0TE 

 
Resolved that Planning Application - DC/23/68505 - Proposed 
single and two storey rear and single storey front extensions. 
418 Wolverhampton Road, Oldbury, B68 0TE is granted 
subject to conditions relating to external materials shall match 
the existing property. 

 
 
99/23 Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 
 

The Committee noted the Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate in 
relation to appeals against refusal of planning permission as 
follows: - 

 

Application Ref Site Address Inspectorate 

PD/22/02269 29 Seymour Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0EP 

Dismissed 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



25 
 

100/23 Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers 
 

The Committee noted the applications determined under delegated 
powers by the Director – Regeneration and Growth, under powers 
delegated to him, as set out in the Council’s Constitution. 

 
 

Meeting ended at 8.05pm 
(following adjournment between 6.21pm and 6.33pm) 

 
Contact: democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk 

Page 37

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/22/67240 

Application Received 27 June 2022 

Application Description Proposed construction of 30 No. two-bedroom 

apartments (outline application for access and 

layout). 

Application Address Land Formerly Wednesbury Motors, 110 

Holyhead Road, Wednesbury 

Applicant SAP Developments 

Ward Wednesbury North 

Contact Officer Douglas Eardley 

douglas_eardley@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That, subject to the signing of a section 106 agreement to ensure 

affordable housing, outline planning permission (for access and layout) 

is granted subject to the further approval of reserved matters, concerning 

appearance, landscaping and scale, and to the following conditions 

relating to: 

 

(i) External materials;  

(ii) Site investigation and remediation;  
(iii) Drainage; 

(iv) Electric vehicle charging provision and retention;  
(v) Construction environmental management plan; 
(vi) Low NOx boilers, provision and retention; 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4

mailto:douglas_eardley@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(vii) Policy ENV7 – Energy Statement; 

(viii) Secure cycle storage; 

(ix) Waste storage; 

(x) Provision of name, address and contact details of the maintenance 

body/-ies responsible for the maintenance of the drainage system; 

(xi) Existing footway is reinstated; 

(xii) Height restriction to apartments - The configuration of the blocks 

will present a stepped elevation rising from Block ONE (three 

storey) to Block TWO (four storey) and down in steps along the 

width of Block THREE to end in no greater than three storeys at 

the Access point off Monway Terrace; 

(xiii) Highways Management Plan; 

(xiv) Provision and retention of car parking;  

(xv) External Lighting scheme; 

(xvi) Finished floor levels; 

(xvii) Boundary treatments; 

(xviii) Landscaping; 

(xix) Detailed method statement setting out job and apprenticeship 

opportunities which may arise during the construction of the 

development and/or when the development is brought into use; 

(xx) Coal Authority – Intrusive site investigations/remediation works; 

(xxi) Noise assessment; 

(xxii) No burning of waste materials to be allowed on site during the 

construction phase, and; 

(xxiii)  Construction times. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal would provide much needed residential accommodation, 

which would assist with meeting the Council’s housing targets. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods 

Page 40



 

 4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 

the proposal is a major application, a section 106 is required to secure 

affordable housing and two objections have been received. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Land Formerly Wednesbury Motors, 110 Holyhead Road, Wednesbury 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is identified as a ‘Long Term Residential Site’ in the adopted Site 

Allocations and Delivery Development Plan Document Policies Map.  

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are: -  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Proposals in the Development Plan 

Amenity concerns – Loss of light 

Highways considerations 

Presumption and the ‘titled balance’  

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application relates to a site on the south-western side of Holyhedge 

Road, Wednesbury. To the northern and eastern aspects of the site are 

Page 41

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Monway+Terrace,+Wednesbury/@52.5539004,-2.0299074,175m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x48709856919f3271:0x8893615d5759b1b3!8m2!3d52.5538996!4d-2.0292637!16s%2Fg%2F1vxw7q4h?entry=ttu


 

residential properties and to the southern and western aspects of the site 

are industrial premises. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

PD/21/01768 Proposed demolition of 

single storey kiosk, 

workshop and washroom 

facilities. 

Prior Approval is 

Required and Granted 

– 26.05.2021 

DC/06/46823 MOT bay extension. Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

– 20.11.2006 

DC/03/4723A 2 x 48 sheet panels. Refuse Advertisement 

Consent – 06.05.2003 

DC/00/37269 Autogas installation 

together with increase in 

height of boundary wall. 

Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

– 23.01.2001 

BCS2894 Demolition of existing 

shop/ petrol kiosk. New 

shop front and alterations 

to form new shop area. 

Grant Permission – 

16.12.1994 

BCS1622A Various signs. Grant Advertisement 

Consent – 23.12.1991 

BCS0612 Form combined fascia to 

both properties with 

extension to No.83 

forming reception area. 

Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

– 10.05.1989 

BCS0611 Form new fascia to garage 

forecourt. 

Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

– 10.05.1989 

DC/10876 Fit new 8000 gallon 

underground storage tank. 

Grant Permission – 

09.04.1980 
 

 

 

Page 42



 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 This is an outline application for layout of the site only. The applicant has 

indicated that they intend to construct 30 No. two-bedroom apartments 

on the site.  

 

8.2  Members are reminded that full details of the proposal will have to follow 

at the subsequent reserved matters application stage, as this application 

(DC/22/67240) is purely for the layout of the site only.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letters and 

by press notice with two objections being received.    

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Loss of light; 

ii) Concerned that there would not be sufficient parking for owners 

and visitors to the proposed development leading to parking 

problems in Meeting Street. 

iii) The van and car sales building has already been demolished. 

 

Non-material objections have been raised regarding loss of property 

value.  

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning Policy  

 

 They have stated that the site is identified as a ‘Long Term Residential 

Site’ in the adopted Site Allocations and Delivery Development Plan 

Document Policies Map.  In general, Planning Policy do not raise any 

significant concerns with the proposal and it is considered that in the main 

their comments can either be covered by conditions, the execution of a 

Section 106 agreement in terms of affordable housing and the subsequent 

reserved matters application. 

 

10.2 Highways  

 

Following the receipt of a satisfactory amended plan to indicate a car 

parking layout and the number of parking spaces, Highways has no 

objection. They have requested the imposition of conditions relating to 

the existing footway is reinstated, and a management plan (A 

management plan will be required with the reserved matters application 

to confirm how shared areas will be managed and maintained, 

particularly from a highways perspective the layout/maintenance of the 

car park, surface and lining and the management/operation of the 

proposed gates and the additional access to provide the one way system 

for refuse vehicles). 

.   

10.3 Pollution Control (Air Quality)  

 

 They have requested the imposition of conditions relating to electric 

vehicle charging provision, low NOx boilers and a construction 

environmental management plan. 

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land)  

 

 They have requested the imposition of standard conditions relating to 

site investigation/remediation. 

 

Page 44



 

10.5 Pollution Control (Air Pollution and Noise)  

 

 The proposed development would be exposed to road traffic noise from 

Holyhedge Road on its north-east boundary, and to noise from the 

Monway Industrial Estate and the Sustainable Energy small waste 

incinerator plant on Portway Road to the south-west. Therefore, they 

recommend that an environmental noise survey and noise risk 

assessment is carried out, including acoustic design/glazing. It is also 

recommended that construction working hours (including deliveries) are 

limited to Mondays to Fridays 08.30 to 18.00, Saturdays 08.30 to 14.00 

and no work on Sundays and Bank Holidays. Furthermore, no burning of 

waste materials to be allowed on site during the construction phase. All 

these matters can be covered by the imposition of conditions. 

 

10.6 West Midlands Police  

 

 No objection.  

 

10.7  Lead Local Flood Authority  

 

 They have recommended the imposition of a condition to ensure that the 

name, address and contact details of the maintenance body/-ies 

responsible for the maintenance of the drainage system is provided.  

 

10.8  Severn Trent Water 

 

 They have recommended the imposition of their standard drainage 

conditions.  

 

10.9  Urban Design Officer  

 

They recognise that as DC/22/67240 is an outline application for layout 

only, that the detailed matters pertaining to access, appearance, 

landscaping and scale would be achieved through the subsequent 

reserved matters application. They welcome the reduction in two-

bedroom apartments from 32 to 30.   

Page 45



 

 

10.10 Employment and Skills 

 

 The proposed development would provide opportunities for apprentices 

during the construction phase and as such, can be conditioned 

accordingly. 

 

10.11 The Coal Authority 

 

They have requested a condition requiring a scheme of intrusive site 

investigations to be carried out to establish the risks posed to the 

development by coal mining activity with remediation works and/or 

mitigation. Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken 

into beneficial use, a signed statement or declaration confirming that the 

site is/or has been made safe and stable for the proposed development 

shall be submitted to the local planning authority.   

 

10.12 Strategic Planning and Transportation 

 

They have requested that cycle storage be provided, this can be 

conditioned. 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be considered to reflect the 

character, needs and opportunities for each area. The Framework refers 

to development adding to the overall quality of the area by achieving 

high quality design, achieving good architecture and layouts. It also 

states that developments should only be prevented or refused on 

highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway 

safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be 

severe. 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

 CPS4: Place Making 

DEL1: Infrastructure Provision 

HOU1: Delivering Sustainable Housing Growth  

HOU2: Housing Density type and Accessibility 

HOU3: Delivering Affordable Housing 

EMP5: Improving Access to the Labour Market  

TRAN2: Managing Transport Impacts of New Development 

TRAN4: Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking 

ENV3: Design Quality  

ENV5: Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage System and Urban Heat Island 

Effect  

ENV7: Renewable Energy 

ENV8: Air Quality  

SAD DM 5 - The Borough’s Gateways 

SAD H1: Housing Allocations 

SAD H3: Affordable Housing 

SAD EMP2: Training and Recruitment 

SAD EMP4: Relationship between Industry and Sensitive Uses 

SAD TRAN3: Car Parking 

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

SAD DC6: Land Affected by Contamination, Ground Instability, Mining 

Legacy, Land of unsatisfactory Load Bearing Capacity or Other 

Constraints 

 

12.2 Low NOx boilers would be required by condition (DEL1).  

 

12.3 The proposal would contribute to the housing targets identified in policy 

HOU1 by providing housing on previously developed land to meet local 

housing need.  

 

12.4 In regard to policy HOU2 the proposal generally meets the aspirations of 

this policy by meeting the needs of the local populace and would provide 

Page 47



 

apartments, which are accessible by not only vehicles, but also 

pedestrians.  

 

12.5 The provision of cycle storage would make the proposal compliant with 

TRAN4; this would be conditioned to ensure that satisfactory cycle 

storage is provided. 

 

12.6 Policies CSP4, ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refer to well-designed schemes 

that provide quality living environments. It is noted that DC/22/67240 is 

an outline planning application for layout only, therefore the design 

would be determined in any subsequent reserved matters application.   

 

12.7 Air quality mitigation (boilers and electric vehicle charging) can be 

ensured by condition, in accordance with ENV8. 

 

12.8 The requirements of policies HOU3 and SAD H3 would covered by the 

requirement for the execution of a Section 106 agreement in terms of 

affordable housing.  

 

12.9 The requirements of policies EMP5 and SAD EMP2 can be satisfied 

through the impositions of relevant conditions pertaining to the 

submission of a detailed method statement setting out job and 

apprenticeship opportunities which may arise during the construction of 

the development and/or when the development is brought into use. 

 

12.10  In regard to policies TRAN2 and SAD TRAN3, it is noted that following 

the submission of an amended layout plan, the Council’s Highways team 

has no objection; therefore, it is considered that the amended proposal 

would be compliant with these policies.  

 

12.11  A condition would be imposed upon DC/22/67240 to ensure that the 

proposal is complaint with policy ENV7.  

 

12.12 In regard to the comments from Pollution Control (Air Pollution and 

Noise) above in section 10.5 of this report, it is considered that through 

the imposition of conditions to ensure that an environmental noise 

Page 48



 

survey and noise risk assessment is carried out, that the amended 

proposal would be complaint with the provisions of policy SAD EMP4. 

 

12.13 The comments and requirements of the Coal Authority, as mentioned in 

section 10.11 of this report above, would ensure that the amended 

proposal would be compliant with the provisions of policy SAD DC6. 

 

12.14 Following the requirement for the imposition of conditions from the Lead 

Local Flood Authority (section 10.7 above) and Severn Trent Water 

(section 10.8 above), the amended proposal would be compliant with the 

provisions of policy ENV5.   

 

12.15 The site is identified as a ‘Long Term Residential Site’ on the adopted 

Site Allocations and Delivery Development Plan Document Policies Map, 

so as the proposal is for residential, it would be complaint with the 

provisions of policy SAD H1. 

 

12.16 Regarding Policy SAD DM 5 (The Borough’s Gateways), it is noted that 

the proposal site is situated at a ‘Borough Gateway’ where high quality 

design and materials are required. Given that DC/22/67240 is an outline 

planning application for layout only, the design and materials would be 

determined in any subsequent reserved matters application.   

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Amenity concerns – Loss of light 

 

The proposal is for layout of the site only. Therefore, officers at this 

juncture cannot comment on this matter and Members are reminded that 

the application is for outline, layout only. Equally there is no evidence to 

suggest that this development would have a detrimental impact on the 

amenities of neighbouring properties by way of loss of light, as this 

Page 49



 

would be adjudged in any subsequent required Reserved Matters 

application for access, appearance, landscaping and scale. 

 

13.3 Highways concerns - Concerned that there would not be sufficient 

parking for owners and visitors to the proposed development 

leading to parking problems in Meeting Street 

 

The Council’s highways department accept the level of parking on site, 

however they do require on-site parking details (Management Plan) that 

would accompany a Reserved Matters application.   

 

13.4 The van and car sales building has already been demolished. 

 

This was noted on my site visit and is also evident on the link to Google 

Maps for the site within section 4.2 of this report that the van and car 

sales building has already been demolished. As such, the aspect of the 

proposal for DC/22/67240 which previously referred to the ‘demolition of 

former van and car sales garage’ has now been removed from the 

description of development for DC/22/67240. This building received prior 

approval for demolition under application PD/21/01768. 

 

13.5 Presumption and the ‘titled balance’  
 

The ‘tilted balance’ is similar to the normal planning balance but it is only 

engaged in exceptional circumstances. As the council has less than a 

five-year housing land supply, relevant local policies are out-of-date. In 

the most basic sense, the tilted balance is a version of the planning 

balance that is already tilted in an applicant’s favour. If the tilted balance 

applies, planning permission should normally be granted unless the 

negative impacts ‘significantly and demonstrably’ outweigh the positive 

impacts. 

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 Conflict with development plan policies will always be a negative impact. 

If the policies are up-to-date, that negative impact will be given greater 

Page 50



 

weight. However, if they’re out-of-date, the weight given to the negative 

impact will be seriously reduced. No matter what the negative impacts 

are, if a proposal manages to secure sufficient positive impacts (of 

sufficient weight) to tilt the planning balance in its favour, planning 

permission should be granted.  

  

14.2 On balance the amended proposal accords with the provisions of 

relevant development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 

Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 

carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 

need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 

Proposals that help to shape places in ways that 

Page 51



 

contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 

emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 

resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 

including the conversion of existing buildings; and 

support renewable and low carbon energy and 

associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Context plan 

 Location Plan - ATC.1139.49C  

 Block/Site Plan - ATC.1139.51D 
 

Page 52



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 53



Works

131.4m

M
onw

ay
B

uildings

14

16

15

Shelter

17

P
O

R
TW

A
Y

R
O

A
D

22

13

7

Monway Buildings

8

1

5

MONWAY TERRACE

32

1

Court

Dovedale

24

CINDER WAY

3

6a

1b

5a

4a

6

4

5

3a

43

61
to

75

El Sub Sta

327 to 334

45
to

59

Works

2a
3

1a
2

1

9

26

28

24

2

4

A
R

C
H

E
R

C
LO

S
E

22

132.3m

14

HOLYHEAD
ROAD

15

17

Garage

16

Shelter

18

20

33

23
39

21

19

37

1a

11

7 1

8

12

319 to 326

311 to 318

PH

Warehouse

Industrial Estate

PO
R

TW
AY

R
O

AD
62

27

Travelling
C

rane

Tank

Monway

El Sub
Sta

Depot

4

294945294945

295220295220

295000295000

295100295100

295200295200

397962
397962

398237
398237

398000
398000

398100
398100

398200
398200

10 0 10 20 30 40 50

metres

Serial number: 201665

Crown copyright and database right 2021C

Ordnance Survey licence 100048957
Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited
without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey

Ordnance Survey R

Ukmapcentre.com

P

1

O

N

2 3

M

L

K

J

I

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

1 2 3

4 5 6 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

P

O

N

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

M

L

K

J

I

H

G

11 12 13 14

F

15

A

16

F

A

E

D

C

B

NOTES:

THE COPYRIGHT OF THIS DRAWING REMAINS VESTED WITH A.T.C. DESIGN AND BUILD LTD AND THE DRAWING MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED
WITHOUT THE WRITTEN APPROVAL OF A.T.C. DESIGN AND BUILD LTD.

THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PREPARED TO A RECOGNISED SCALE AND CONSENT IS GRANTED TO LOCAL AUTHORITY DEPARTMENTS OF
TOWN PLANNING AND BUILDING CONTROL FOR THE DRAWING TO BE SCALED WHERE REQUIRED

CONTRACTORS IN GENERAL ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SCALE CRITICAL DIMENSIONS AND ARE INSTRUCTED TO REFER TO
A.T.C. DESIGN AND BUILD LTD FOR SPECIFIC DIMENSIONS BEFORE WORK COMMENCES

987

Scales:

Job No.

Drg No.

Applicant: Proposal:

Location:

Drawing Title:

Drawn by: Date:

Planning Application:

Existing

LOCATION PLAN

Alan Crossley

A.T.C. Design and Build Ltd.,
Design and Build Consultants

The Design Studios,
Lower Drayton,
Brimfield,
Ludlow.
Shropshire
SY8 4NX

Mobile:

Email:

Drawn by Chris Brown

1:500 at AO

ATC.1139

ATC.1139.49c

SAP Investments Ltd

April 2023Alan Crossley

Redevelopment of Land
for Residential Use

Status:

Land at Former Vehicle
Showroom and Workshop
110 Holyhead Road
Wednesbury
WS10 7PA

Existing

LOCATION PLAN

Revision (c):
Boundary Line highlighted

P
age 54



P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/67863 

Application Received 10 January 2023 

Application Description Proposed change of use from general industrial 

to treatment, remediation and recovery facility 

for contaminated soils, construction, demolition 

and excavation of waste with 1 No. soil 

treatment shed and 4 No. office/meeting 

rooms, 1 No. mess drying room, toilet block, 

store, weighbridge unit, picking station, 

decontamination unit, clean material area and 2 

No. holding tanks and covered post treatment 

areas, oversized processing area, parking and 

the creation of a new vehicular access - 

Temporary planning permission for 5 years. 

Application Address Land West Of 

Bridge Street North 

Smethwick 

B66 2BJ 

Applicant Soterion Limited 

Ward Soho & Victoria 

Contact Officer  Mr Andrew Dean 

andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 5

mailto:andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That, subsequent to ratification by Full Council of the departure from 

housing use, temporary planning permission is granted subject to 

conditions relating to: 

 

i) 3 Year temp.  

ii) Air quality assessment and mitigation measures.  

iii) The submission of noise mitigation measures and calculations to 

demonstrate noise from the proposed use shall not exceed the 

background 60-minute LA90 by more than 5 dBA on any day 

including noise from the operation of the mobile crusher when it is 

used on site 

iv) Noise management plan 

v) Dust management plan implementation.  

vi) All processing of contaminated materials with the exception of the 

handpicking asbestos station to be carried out within the existing 

building.  

vii) There shall be no external storage above 4m in height measured 

from the natural ground level. 

viii) External Materials.  

ix) Electric vehicle charging points.  

x) Hours of operation being 8.00 to 16.30 Monday to Friday, 8.00 to 

13.30 Saturdays with no working on Sundays and Bank Holidays.  

xi) Hours of operation of the crushing and screening operation.  

xii) Vehicle parking and manoeuvring areas to be provided and 

retained.  

xiii) Site entrance to installed in accordance with details shown on plan 

reference 06223-A-120 REV P0 

xiv) Foul drainage 

xv) Surface water drainage scheme.  

xvi) Site investigation.  

xvii) Cycle parking. 

xviii) External lighting scheme.  

Page 58



 

xix) Boundary treatments.  

xx) Further retaining wall inspection. 

xxi) Low NOx boilers.  

xxii) No more than 29,999 tonnes of hazardous waste to be received at 

the site per annum. 

xxiii) The submission of a revised Environment Agency permit prior to 

works starting to demonstrate the waste limit has been reduced in 

accordance with the limit stated above.  

xxiv) The submission or a yearly report to the local planning authority to 

demonstrate the hazardous waste limit has not been breached. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal, subject to a temporary consent and the conditions 

contained within the recommendation, raises no significant concerns 

from a policy, public health or highway perspective. The granting of a 

temporary approval would not prevent the site coming forward for 

residential development in the future which is the long-term aspiration for 

the site.  

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 

 4 Context  

 

4.1 The planning committee granted approval of a 5-year temporary 

permission for this application on 28 July 2023. Committee members 

visited the site and surrounding area before this meeting. Following this 

meeting it was brought to the attention of the local planning authority by 

two subsequent objections that hazardous waste proposals which 

exceed 30,000 tonnes per annum require a Development Consent 

Order. A Development Consent Order is the means of obtaining 

permission for developments categorised as Nationally Significant 

Infrastructure Projects (NSIP)” This includes energy, transport, water 

Page 59



 

and waste projects.” Applications for NSIPs are made to and dealt with 

by the Planning Inspectorate and not the local planning authority. The 

applicant has previously stated that they had applied for an Environment 

Agency licence for 215,000 tonnes of hazardous waste per annum. To 

address the above issue, a number of additional conditions have been 

added to the recommendation which requires the ratification of 

members.  

 

4.2 The additional conditions referred to above includes a limit of 29,999 

tonnes of hazardous waste to be received by the site per annum, the 

submission of a revised Environment Agency permit prior to works 

demonstrated that the waste limit has been reduced and, to ensure 

compliance, the submission of a yearly report to the local planning 

authority to demonstrate the hazardous waste limit has not been 

breached. The local planning authority are satisfied that these conditions 

would ensure compliance with the waste limit. However, should a breach 

occur the department have enforcement powers available such as stop 

notices and enforcement notices. The temporary period has also been 

reduced from the originally agreed 5 years to 3 years on the basis of 

discussions with the applicant who stated this site would be a stop gap 

between their current site in Wolverhampton closing and a new 

permanent site outside of the borough being secured.  

 

4.2 The original reason for the application being reported to the Planning 

Committee was because the site is part of a housing allocation in the 

development plan. As such, the proposal is a departure from the 

development plan and requires further approval of Full Council, should the 

Planning Committee resolve to approve this application. Furthermore, 

following an additional neighbour consultation, 16 objections to the 

application have been received.  

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Land at Bridge Street North 

 

Page 60

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Bridge+St+N,+Smethwick/@52.4985703,-1.9643207,280m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870bd4126eb3361:0x943c07a5b1e99222!8m2!3d52.4988234!4d-1.9618316!16s%2Fg%2F1wzt1tpk


 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is allocated for housing in the Development Plan. 
 
5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this application 

are: -  
 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Proposals in the Development Plan 

Design, appearance, materials and public visual amenity.  

Access, highway safety, parking and servicing 

Environmental concerns – Noise, air quality, pollution and general 

disturbance. 

Ecology concerns – loss of wildlife, habitats and trees. 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is a former industrial premise sandwiched between 

two canals located on the western side of Bridge Street North. The 

application site is flanked by canal waterways on either side of the site, 

namely being the Birmingham New Main Line to the north and the 

Engine Arm to the South. The wider area is mixed use in nature with 

industrial premises being located on the opposite side of the Engine Arm 

canal and residential properties being located on the opposite side of the 

Birmingham New and Old mainline Canals. The nearest residential 

dwellings are a minimum of 100 metres from the application site and are 

separated from the site by the two canals and an area of open space 

containing vegetation. Residential canal moorings can be found further 

down the engine arm canal heading east.     

 

6.2 The site has predominantly been cleared of all structures and buildings 

with one large warehouse remaining which measures approximately 

2800m2. The remaining site is hardstanding.  

 

Page 61



 

6.3 The site is adjacent to and partly within the Smethwick Summit, Galton 

Valley, Smethwick Conservation Area. In close proximity to the rear of 

the site is also a scheduled ancient monument (Engine Arm Aqueduct).  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 A section of the site and the remaining warehouse received a 3-year 

temporary retrospective approval for receipt of, storage, sorting and 

separation of non-ferrous materials under application reference 

DC/08/50156. This was granted subject to conditions that the use should 

take place within the building and no materials should be stored in the 

rear yard. The rear of the site also received approval under application 

reference DC/97/33689 to be used for aluminium recycling.  

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

PD/22/02111 Proposed demolition of all 

buildings with the 

exception of the hi-bay 

warehouse. 

Demolition consent 

granted. 

29.04.2022 

DC/14/57444 Demolition of two storey 
brick building. 

Demolition consent 
granted. 
16.10.2014 

DC/14/57472 Proposed re-cladding of  
unit. 

Grant Permission 
subject to conditions.  
03.11.2014 

DC/08/50156 Retrospective application 
for receipt of, storage, 
sorting and separation of 
non-ferrous materials. 

Grant Temporary 
Approval 
17.12.2008 

DC/09/50964 Change of use to B2 
(General Industrial) use. 

Grant Permission.  
21.07.2009 

DC/97/33689 Change of use of former 
Raleigh Works & plastic 
injection moulding to 
aluminium recycling and 
alteration to make 
provision for offices & 

Grant Permission 
subject to conditions.  
25.11.1997 

Page 62



 

partial demolition to afford 
lorry manoeuvring. 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant is proposing to change of use of the existing site and 

warehouse from general industrial to treatment, remediation and 

recovery facility for contaminated soils, construction, demolition and 

excavation of waste with 1 No. soil treatment shed and 4 No. 

office/meeting rooms, 1 No. mess drying room, toilet block, store, 

weighbridge unit, picking station, decontamination unit, clean material 

area and 2 No. holding tanks and covered post treatment areas, 

oversized processing area, parking and the creation of a new vehicular 

access. The applicant is seeking a temporary planning permission for 5 

years, as the long-term ambition for the site is for a residential use.  

 

8.2 The application states that waste brought onto the site would be 

contaminated with asbestos, hydrocarbon and diesel. The contaminated 

waste would be deposited in the bays within the existing warehouse 

building. The bioremediation process would be carried out within the 

warehouse building with asbestos picking occurring immediately 

adjacent to the building at the covered picking station. Post remediated 

waste would be stored in storage bays waiting for exportation to be used 

on construction sites. Concrete and stone from the contaminated soil 

would be stored at the rear of the site where it would be crushed when 

required to be used for hardcore. The applicant has indicated this would 

be approximately every 3 to 4 months.  

 

8.3 The proposed building providing the site office and staff facilities would 

be temporary in nature similar in appearance to portacabin/container 

buildings. The decontamination unit would measure 3.65m by 1.8m with 

an overall height of 2.45m. The weighbridge office would measure 2.45m 

by 2.3m with an overall height of 2.45m. The site office would measure 

9.75m by 2.5m with an overall height of 2.45m. The store would 

measure 6m by 2.5m with an overall height of 2.45m. The mess room/ 

drying room would measure 9.75m by 2.5m with an overall height of 

Page 63



 

2.45m. The four covered post treatment bays would measure 40m by 

7.5m with an overall height of 5m.   

 

8.4 An amended plan has been received to alter the proposed site entrance 

from a bell mouth to a dropped kerb.  

 

8.5 Since the application submission, the applicant implemented some 

works on site which has resulted in complaints from residential 

properties located on the Brindley II residential development site, these 

related to dust generation and noise. The applicant has confirmed these 

works have now ceased and the soil/ material being stored on the site is 

non-hazardous. To prevent further complaints the applicant has stated 

the below mitigation measures are being used; - 

 

1.  Covering of soil stockpiles outside of main building (See BSN 1 

attached). 

2. Daily use of water bowser and misting system (twice an hour / 

everyday).  

3. Use of jet wash for additional dust suppression.  

4. Hire of road sweeper to keep haul road and local roads clean. 

 

8.6 The agent has also stated that any works currently ongoing relate to the 

removal of the legacy material including the hardcore from past 

demolition works and non-planning related repairs to the fabric of the hi 

bay building. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter, site 

noise and press notice, with 14 letters of objection being received.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Noise and disturbance with work starting pre 7am.  

Page 64



 

ii) The works on site are creating large amounts of dirt/ dust which 

blow over the canal to the residential dwellings on the Brindley II 

residential development. No information has been provided as to 

what contamination the current mound of soil on the site contains. 

This raises health concerns for residents. 

iii) Concerns with ongoing monitoring of asbestos fibres in the air.    

iv) Wildlife concerns in terms of dust and water run off from the site 

entering the canal wildlife corridor.  

v) The site should be regenerated for residential development.  

vi) The view of the site at present is poor with a half-covered soil 

mound. 

vii) Highway matters including increased vehicle movements.  

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

Following the committee granting approval of a 5-year temporary 

permission for this application on 28 July 2023, two subsequent 

objections were received. The additional objections (not already 

referenced above) have been summarised below; -  

 

viii) The threshold for hazardous waste of 30,000 tonnes per year 

needs to be applied to the planning consent or the applicant will 

require a development consent order. This cannot be issued by the 

local planning authority.  

ix) Concerns the company did not comply with waste limits imposed 

by City of Wolverhampton Council temporary permission 

(application reference 20/00786/RC).  

 

The above matters have been discussed in paragraph 4.1 and 4.2. 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



 

10.1 Planning Policy  

 

 No objection. In order for a residential scheme to be realised, in line with 

the designation, comprehensive redevelopment would be required. As 

this has not been forthcoming and considering the active nature of the 

wider industrial area, an industrial/employment use would be the most 

appropriate type of development in this location at this time. 

 

10.2 Highways  

 

 No objection subject to a condition for the parking and manoeuvring area 

shown on the submitted layout to be provided and retained. An amended 

plan has been submitted to alter the proposed entrance from a bell 

mouth to a dropped kerb. Highways have raised no objections to this 

amendment.  

 

10.3 Pollution Control (Air Quality)  

 

 No objection subject to conditions for the submission of an air quality 

assessment including mitigation measures to reduce impact on nearby 

businesses and residential properties, electric vehicle charging points, 

and operation hours including a restriction on the crushing and screening 

operation. 

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land)  

 

No objection subject to the submission of a detailed site investigation 

report being submitted and approved.   

 

10.5 Pollution Control (Air Pollution and Noise)  

 

 Following the submission of an amended noise risk assessment to 

include residential canal moorings in close proximity to the site, Public 

Health have stated there is still a possibility that the noise rating level at 

the nearest sensitive properties could exceed the background by 5dB 

Page 66



 

when the operation commences. However, the following conditions have 

been recommended to deal with any residual concerns around noise;- 

 

• The rating level of all operational noise, when measured as a 60-

minute LAeq between the hours of 07:00 and 23:00, shall not exceed 

the background 60-minute LA90 by more than 5 dBA on any day. This 

should include the noise from the operation of the mobile crusher 

when it is used on site. 

 

• All measurements are to be taken in accordance with 

BS4142:2014+A1(2019) at the nearest noise sensitive premises. 

 

• The applicant instructs a competent consultant to design mitigation 

measures and provide calculations to demonstrate compliance with 

the above condition.  This is to be approved by the Local Authority 

before the operations commence.  

 

• The applicant has requested working hours of 07.30 to 17.00 Monday 

to Friday. I would recommend that working hours are restricted to 

08.00 to 16.30 hours as per the working hours used in the noise 

assessment. I would stipulate that only maintenance is carried out on 

Saturdays with working hours restricted to 08.00 -13.30 hours.  The 

applicant has requested that operations commence at 07.30 hours on 

Saturday.   

 

• There shall be no working on Sundays and Bank Holidays.   

 

• It is recommended the applicant submits for prior approval by the 

local planning authority a noise management plan to control noise 

emissions from all operations and use of plant and equipment on site. 

 

•  All processing of materials (with the exception of the asbestos picking 

activities) are to be carried out in the existing building on site.  

 

Page 67



 

Public Health have also recommended that the operator comply with 

any, noise, dust and odour management plans required by the 

Environment Agency.   

 

10.6 Conservation Officer 

 

 No objection.   

 

10.7  Lead Local Flood Authority  

 

 Comments received regarding the requirement of a surface water 

drainage scheme. This has been included within the recommendation 

 

10.8  Severn Trent  

 

 No objection subject to the standard drainage condition. 

 

10.9  Canal and River Trust 

 

Before the committee meeting dated 27th July 2023, the Canal and River 

Trust have submitted additional comments highlighting insufficient 

information has been submitted and the proposed conditions are not 

sufficient to address the following matters; - 

 

i) Land Stability adjacent to the waterway network including an 

assessment of the stability and condition of a large brick retaining 

wall to support the proposed use, associated vehicle activity, built 

form or parking bays.   

ii) Pollution Control Measures in relation to the protection of the water 

environment.  

iii) Impact of the proposal on biodiversity and impact on the character 

and appearance of the waterway corridor.  

iv) Assessment of the opportunities arising from the proposal for the 

promotion of connectivity and sustainable travel using the 

waterway network.  

 

Page 68



 

In response to the above points; - 

 

i) Following additional comments, the matter of the retaining wall has 

been re-visited. An initial report by the applicant on the retaining 

wall concluded “The ivy and other growth should be carefully 

removed from the wall and a further structural inspection of the 

wall completed, in order to advise on further investigations required 

to inform remedial work solutions”.  Whilst the redline boundary for 

the site is set back and excludes the retaining wall and the 

submitted plans show no structures would be erected in close 

proximity to the structure, no physical barrier exists to prevent 

vehicles driving and parking on top of the wall. On this basis, the 

Local Planning Authority are of the opinion that it is not 

unreasonable to include a condition for a further inspection of the 

wall to be undertaken to ensure no impact on the canal 

environment/network occurs.  

ii) Drainage matters have been included within the recommended 

conditions including a surface water drainage scheme. The 

applicant requires a permit from the Environment Agency due to 

the nature of the use which includes matters such as drainage, 

dust control and how the material will be treated/stored etc. The 

permit application states that waste will be transferred to the 

asbestos picking station via covered conveyor where it will be 

wetted down using a spray bar to prevent any fugitive releases of 

dust. Picked asbestos will be placed into bags inside the picking 

station and transferred to an enclosed skip so that the bags are not 

exposed to the outside environment. Picked asbestos will be 

placed into skips which will contain double bag liners in 

accordance with health and safety requirements. Once double 

bagged, the asbestos will be locked securely in an onsite skip and 

will be bulked prior to transport off site for disposal to landfill, which 

normally takes approximately 15 days. If the committee are minded 

to approve this application, the site would be permitted and 

regulated by the Environment Agency.  

iii) In terms of biodiversity and enhancement of the waterway, it 

should be noted this is an existing industrial site which is 

Page 69



 

characterised by a concrete slab covering the entire site to be 

retained by the applicant as well as an existing large warehouse 

style building. These matters would be addressed when the long 

terms ambition for the site to be used for residential comes 

forward. However, a condition for an external lighting scheme has 

been included within the recommendation to prevent light pollution 

on the adjacent canals. The applicant is applying for a temporary 

permission only and treatment would take place in a covered 

environment.   

iv) Sustainable travel via the waterway network has not been 

requested by transportation or policy colleagues and the applicant 

has indicated the proposed use would have 10 full time 

employees. As part of this application a condition for secure cycle 

parking within the development has been included and Bridge 

Street North is also a 9-minute walk from Rolfe Street train station 

with links to Birmingham, Oldbury and Wolverhampton. 

 

The Trust’s requested informatives would also be included on the 

decision notice should the planning committee grant approval of this 

application.  

 

10.10 Health and Safety Executive 

 

No objection.   

 

10.11 Environment Agency  

 

No response has been received, albeit we are aware that they have 

undertaken their own permit assessment of the site as indicated above. 

 

10.11  Urban Design  

 

Highlights the long-term ambition for the site is residential. Suggested 

conditions relating to boundary treatments and soft landscaping to limit 

impact on the canal.  

 

Page 70



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

 The Framework promotes sustainable transport options for development 

proposal and paragraph 111 states that developments should be 

prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

EMP1 – Providing for Economic Growth 

TRAN2 – Managing Transport Impacts of New Development 

TRAN4 - Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and for Walking     

ENV1 - Nature Conservation.  

ENV4 - Canals                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

ENV3 – Design Quality 

ENV5 – Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage Systems and Urban Heat 

Island 

ENV8 – Air Quality  

SAD EMP 4 – Relationship between Industry and Sensitive Uses 

SAD EOS9 – Urban Design Principles 

SAD EOS10 – Design Quality & Environmental Standards 

 

12.2 The site is allocated for residential development in the Development 

Plan.  

 

12.3 Policy EMP1 seeks to ensure a sufficient stock of employment land to 

meet demand and support the growth and diversification of the 

economy. Although the site is allocated for housing in the long term, the 

proposal complies with this policy by providing industrial employment 

within the borough.  

Page 71



 

 

12.4 TRAN1 and TRAN2 seeks to resist development proposals that are likely 

to have significant transport implications, unless applications are 

accompanied by proposals to provide an acceptable level of accessibility 

and safety by all modes. As part of this application a condition for secure 

cycle parking within the development has been included within the 

recommendation. Bridge Street North is also a 9-minute walk from Rolfe 

Street train station with links to Birmingham, Oldbury and 

Wolverhampton.  

 

12.5 Both ENV3 and SAD EOS9 policies refer to appropriate design, given 

the temporary nature of the proposed use and industrial nature of the 

surrounding area, I am satisfied the proposed structures are appropriate 

in scale, design and appearance.  

 

12.6 Policy SAD EMP4 refers to industrial development in relation to 

residential properties. The policy seeks any harmful effects of the 

proposal to be mitigated. In this instance public health have raised no 

objections to the application subject to the conditions contained within 

the recommendation. On this basis I am satisfied residential amenity can 

protected.  

 

12.7 ENV5 seeks the incorporation of suitable drainage systems to assist with 

reducing the impact of flood and surface water run-off. A condition for a 

surface was drainage system to be submitted and approved has been 

included within the recommendation.  

 

12.8 ENV8 refers to mitigation measures to offset air quality issues, in this 

instance a condition for electric vehicle charging points has been 

included within the recommendation.  

 

12.9 SAD EOS10 requires the design of industrial development should be of 

a high standard and should take into account the design principles set 

out in Policy SAD EOS 9.  

 

12.10 ENV1 highlights development within the Black Country should 

safeguard nature conservation inside and outside its boundaries. The 

proposed use would take place within the existing building on the site 

Page 72



 

with an asbestos picking station also being covered. Treated material 

would then be stored in covered bays with asbestos being double 

bagged and stored within a locked skip for collection. The use of the site 

would require an Environmental Agency Permit who would also regulate 

the site reviewing matters such as dust generation. Conditions for 

drainage and external lighting have been included within the 

recommendation. Given the proposed activities and the current use of 

the land it is considered that there would have a neutral impact on 

wildlife. 

 

12.11 ENV4 seeks to safeguard the operation of a navigable and functional 

waterway. A condition has been included within the recommendation for 

a further retaining wall inspection to be undertaken. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2  Proposals in the Development Plan 

 

The site is allocated for housing in the development plan. In order for a 

residential scheme to be realised, in line with the designation, a 

comprehensive redevelopment would be required. As this has not been 

forthcoming and considering the active nature of the wider industrial 

area, an industrial/employment use would be the most appropriate type 

of development in this location at this time. The granting of a temporary 

approval would not prevent the site coming forward for housing in the 

future.  

 

13.3 Design, appearance, materials and public visual amenity.  

 

Taking into consideration the temporary nature of the proposed use, 

coupled by the fact the surrounding area is industrialised in nature, I am 

satisfied the appearance of the temporary structures would be 

acceptable. To limit impact on the canal, a condition for details of the 

Page 73



 

external materials to be used for the post treatment bays has been 

included within the recommendation, as well as boundary treatment 

details.  

 

13.4 Access, highway safety, parking, servicing and traffic generation 

 

The Head of Highways has reviewed the application and raised no 

objections subject to a condition for the parking and manoeuvring areas 

to be installed and retained in accordance with the submitted site layout 

plan.  The submitted transport assessment highlights the proposed use 

is forecast to generate a reduction of 18 two-way vehicle trips during the 

AM peak, and 5 two-way trips during the PM peak, in comparison to the 

extant use.  HGV style vehicles are common in this area given the 

industrial nature of the surrounding uses.  

 

13.5  Environmental concerns – Noise, air quality, dust, pollution and 

general disturbance. 

 

I am aware residents have been subject to dust and noise disturbance 

whilst some works were taking place on the site without planning 

approval. However, the site was not operating in accordance with the 

details provided in this application (use of the existing building, outside 

soil to be stored in covered bays and mitigation measures stated above 

to be implemented). I am satisfied the dust and noise concerns would be 

addressed with the site operating in accordance with the submitted plans 

as well as applying the dust mitigation and monitoring measures to be 

regulated by the Environment Agency and conditions proposed by public 

health which are detailed below. 

 

Public Health have reviewed the proposal and raised no objections 

subject to the conditions contained within the recommendation. This 

includes a condition for all processing of materials are to be carried out 

in covered areas as well as noise mitigation measures and hours of 

working. On this basis I am satisfied the amenity of neighbouring 

properties can be protected from noise, disturbance and air quality. 

Please note, should the Planning Committee resolve to grant approval of 

Page 74



 

this application, the operation of the site would be regulated under an 

Environment Agency permit which includes matters such as dust control 

and asbestos monitoring. The applicant has provided the dust 

management plan submitted to the environment agency as part of their 

permit application. The submitted dust management plan highlights dust 

monitoring would be undertaken in accordance with the permit.  The 

following mitigation measures would be used to limit dust creation (see 

below).  

 

Dust monitored at the site boundary will be maintained within the limits of 

200 mg m² day-1 for PM10 as is consistent with Environment Agency 

Guidance note M17.  

 

Visual monitoring of dust will be undertaken throughout the sites 

operating hours. The following observations would result in action being 

taken:  

 

• None observed – No action  

• Slight Dust – Review working method, alter working method or 

areas being worked  

• Moderate Dust – Temporarily suspend works, change working 

method or areas being worked  

• Severe – Halt operations immediately.  

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

• Dampening down of waste soils prior to material transfers.  

• Abatement systems utilising HEPA filters on storage and treatment 

bays.  

• HEPA filtration on the asbestos picking station.  

• Employment of good housekeeping techniques including road 

sweeping.  

• Planned preventative maintenance.  

• Enclosed conveyors.  

• Routine inspections.  

• Monitoring of point source and fugitive releases.  

Page 75



 

• Integrated Management System and procedures. 

 

13.6. Ecology concerns  

 

Public Health have reviewed the application and raised no objections 

subject to conditions contained within the recommendation. Concerns 

raised by residents regarding dust contamination of the surrounding 

canals can safely be dealt with via the mitigation measures submitted to 

the Environmental Agency as part of the applicants permit application as 

well as conditions recommended by Public Health. Treated material (with 

the exception of oversized waste (concrete) would also be stored in 

covered bays with remediation and asbestos picking taking place within 

the existing building and a covered collection area. Dust generation will 

be monitored at the application site boundary to ensure compliance with 

the Environment Agency limits. I am therefore satisfied dust pollution of 

the surrounding area can safely be controlled to limit any impact. Failure 

to comply with the dust management plan would see the Environment 

Agency take formal enforcement action.  Conditions for a surface water 

drainage scheme have also been submitted to ensure no surface water 

enters the surrounding canal network as well as an external lighting 

scheme to prevent light pollution to the canal corridor.  

 

14. Conclusion 

  

On balance despite the application being a departure from the 

development plan, other material considerations outweigh the allocation 

in the short term and there are no other significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions and the environment agency permit.  

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal of the application for a temporary period only.   

Page 76



 

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Context plan 

Location plan - 1 

Proposed site plan - 102201/P100 REV A (A1)   

Soil treatment shed floor plan - 102201/P200 (A1)   

Proposed site accommodation - 102201/P300 (A1) 

Proposed post remediation bays - 102201/P400 (A1) 

Picking station elevations – 2 

Site Access Plan - 06223 A 120 REV P0 

 

Page 77



P
age 78



P
age 79



P
age 80



Shower

Clean Dirty

18
00

24
50

3650

Decontamination Unit Weighbridge Office

2450

23
00

24
50

Office

Profiled metal sheet
composite walls

Metal sheet composite
walls Sliding windows

24
50

25
00

0

6000

Toilet Unit

Metal sheet composite
walls

24
50

25
00

0

9750

Office Units / Meeting room similar

Profiled metal sheet
composite walls

Profiled Metal sheet
composite walls

Profiled metal sheet
composite walls

Office

24
50

25
00

0

6000

Store

Profiled metal sheetProfiled metal sheet

24
50

25
00

0

9750

Mess / Drying Room

Profiled metal sheet
composite walls

Profiled Metal sheet
composite walls

Profiled metal sheet
composite walls

Drying RoomMess Room

NOTES

Use figured dimensions only: Do not scale from drawing.

All levels and dimensions are to be checked on site.

This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant documents

Rev. Date Revision

PRELIMINARY

Drawing No.

Scale :

Date :Drawn by:

Rev.

40 Measham Road
Acresford.
DE12 8AJ

Sean M Fitzpatrick BSC CEng MIStructE
Consulting Engineer

SMF

Soil Treatment Plant

Plans and Elevations

14/12/2022

1:50 @ A1

102201/P300 -

Site Accommodation

Bridge Street North, Smethwick

P
age 81



Engine Bridge

Birmingham Canal

El Sub Sta

Ruins

1 to 3

 S
TR

Depot

40
 to

 4
1

138.7m

82

4.38

8.61

4.32

Centreline markings
to be refreshed

Visibility splay misses
corner of existing building

2.4m x 47m vis splay
based on ATC speed
assessment of
32.4mph

2.4m x 34m vis splay
based on ATC speed
assessment of
26.6mph

1.00

Visibility Splay offset 1m
into the carriageway in

accordance with Sandwell
Metropolitan Borough
Council design guide

Visibility Splay offset
1m from centre line  of
access in accordance
with Sandwell
Metropolitan Borough
Council design guide

1.00

Visibility Splay offset 1m
into the carriageway in

accordance with Sandwell
Metropolitan Borough
Council design guide

4.18
4.32

El Sub Sta

WB

Ruins

1 to 340
 to

 4
1

Works

Large Tipper

Large
 Tippe

r

Large Tipper

Large
 Tippe

r

Large Tipper

El Sub Sta

WB

1 to 340
 to

 4
1

Works

Large Tipper

Large
 Tippe

r

Large
 Tippe

r

Large Tipper Large Tipper

Large Tipper

10.201

1.298 1.61 4.128 1.524
6.5

Large Tipper
Overall Length 10.201m
Overall Width 2.495m
Overall Body Height 2.890m
Min Body Ground Clearance 0.341m
Track Width 2.471m
Lock to lock time 6.00s
Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius 11.550m

SUB-CODE

CLIENT

PROJECT

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING ISSUE STATUS

SCALE DATEDRAWN REVIEWED

PJA JOB No.

Revision Letter : P - Prelim / A - Approval / T - Tender / C - Construction

REV DATE REVISION NOTE BY

---

Birmingham ú Bristol
Exeter ú London ú Reading

pja.co.uk

BIM DRAWING REFERENCE

Seven House ú High Street
Longbridge ú Birmingham

B31 2UQ ú Tel: 0121 475 0234

REVISIONDRAWING NO.

1:500 10 20 30

INFORMATION

These drawings have been produced with reference to the
CDM Regulations 2015. Please note that these are
pre-construction phase drawings and should be subject to
further design risk management as required in accordance
with Regulation 9

N

W

S

E

A2

C
o
p
yrigh

t ©
 P

h
il Jo

n
e
s A

sso
ciate

s L
td

 / P
JA

 C
ivil E

n
gin

e
e
rin

g L
tdA2

NOTES

@

Soterion Ltd

Land at Bridge St North

Smethwick

Site Access

General Arrangement

Plan

06223 A 120 P0

1:500 NM ARP June 23

BR
ID

GE
 S

TR
EE

T 
N

OR
TH

BR
ID

GE
 S

TR
EE

T 
N

OR
TH

1. Do not scale from this drawing.
2. All dimensions in metres unless stated otherwise.
3. This drawing is based on topographical survey

information and design information for surrounding
roads. All works are proposed to be within the highway
boundary or Developer owned land. It is assumed that
the highway and site boundary abut each other.

4. This drawing is not to be reproduced in any part or form
without consent of PJA Civil Engineering Ltd. All
copyright reserved.

5. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all other
relevant Engineering drawings and details.

6. Reproduction from the Ordnance Survey map with
permission of the controller of Her Majesty's Stationary
Office.

7. The design details presented must be reviewed in
conjunction with the wider site information and site
constraints, which may not be evident on the drawing
and must be requested if not already provided.

8. The purpose of this drawing is to show a possible access
arrangement for the proposed development, with
consideration of anticipated vehicle manoeuvres within
the site. The alignment and technical details of these
arrangements are not fixed at this stage and will be
resolved via detailed design.

9. The design is Preliminary and subject to discussions with
the planning and highway authorities.  The drawing
should not be used for tendering or construction
purposes. The information is subject to change during
the detailed design and understanding of highway
authority preferences, which vary between authority.

10. Site specific detailed surveys need to be carried out to
confirm design information, which may impact the
outline design proposals.  These include, but are not
limited to, ground conditions, (geotechnical and
geo-environmental), groundwater levels, buried
services, remnant obstructions, ecology, tree protection
and topography. In particular, the final design will also
need to be resolved to reflect and remain within verified
public highway and/or applicant ownership boundaries.

11. Impacts related to other civils features; namely, fencing,
road restraint systems, drainage, pavement, kerbing,
pedestrian crossing facilities (other than those
displayed), footway construction, street lighting, signage
strategy, have not been detailed and are subject to
detailed design.

12. The Engineer shall be notified immediately, in writing,
should any errors or discrepancies be found.

13. Any existing details which are shown on this drawing are
for guidance only and are to be checked on site. The
impact on existing street furniture, road signs, utilities

etc has not been highlighted and will be subject to
detailed design review.

14. All boundary extents will need to be confirmed to
ensure that the proposals shown can be delivered.

15. The existing road widths are based upon the
Topographical Survey data or design information.

16. The design speeds of the roads have been verified by an
ATC speed survey. The 85th percentile speed
northbound is 32.4mph and southbound is 26.6mph.

17. The proposals outlined are subject to a Road Safety
Audit.

18. The proposed vehicle crossover has been designed in
accordance with Sandwell Metropolitan Borough
Council design guide.

19. Road markings have been designed in accordance with
the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions
2016 and Traffic Signs Manual Chapter 5.

20. All works within the Highway are subject to Section 171
Agreement with the Local Authority.

21. Reference source data:
· Application boundary based on drawing

'102201/P001' dated December 2022.
· Highway boundary based on drawing 'bridge st north'

received from Sandwell Metropolitan Borough
Council in March 2022.

22. The concept design is based on topographical survey
data, ref: '43907', produced in May 23, by Midland
Survey LTD

23. Ordinance Survey Data was provided by the client

KEY

Highway Boundary

Existing Carriageway

Existing Footway

Indicative Gate

Proposed Road Markings

PRELIMINARY DESIGN
For comment and review only.
Design is based upon information available at the
time.
Design is subject to full review as additional
information becomes available.
Design is subject to full review upon receipt of
comments from
· Development Control
· LA Planning Authority
· Environment Agency
· LA Highways Department
· Sewerage Undertaker

Junction Visibility Splay

Indicative Fence

Existing Building to be Retained

Site Boundary

Large Tipper entering and leaving site via left turn at 10mph (1:500)

Large Tipper entering and leaving site via right turn at 10mph (1:500)

1:500 10 20 30

N

W

S

E

1:500 10 20 30

N

W

S

E

Proposed Vehicle Crossover

Vehicle track
Body over
hang (green)

Wheel track
(red)

P
age 82

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
A



P
age 83



Page 84



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68288 

Application Received 17 May 2023 

Application Description Proposed part change of use of ground floor 

and conversion of first/second floors with single 

storey rear extension to create 2 No. self-

contained apartments, rear loft dormer window, 

new shop front, landscaping and parking to 

rear. 

Application Address 38 High Street 

Cradley Heath 

B64 5HL 

Applicant Mr Sutti 

Ward Cradley Heath & Old Hill 

Contact Officer Mr Andrew Dean 

andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to conditions relating to: 

 

i) External Materials; 

ii) External lighting scheme; 

iii) Privacy glazing scheme for the rear facing lounge window; 

iv) Hard and Soft landscaping; 

v) Bin storage; 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 6

mailto:andrew_dean@sandwell.gov.uk


 

vi) Cycle Storage; 

vii) Low NOx boilers; 

viii) Construction environmental management plan; 

ix) Contamination; 

x) Hours of construction; and 

xi) Sound proofing scheme for the first floor.  

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The amended proposal raises no significant concerns from an amenity 

or design perspective and proposes suitable living accommodation 

compliant with national and local planning policy. The proposal would 

contribute to the range and type of properties available in the borough in 

a sustainable location well served by public transport.    

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 

 4 Context  

 

4.1 At the last committee meeting, members resolved to visit the site. 

 

4.2 The application is being reported to your committee as seven objections 

to the proposal have been received.  

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

38 High Street, Cradley Heath 

 

 

Page 86

https://www.google.com/maps/place/38+High+St,+Cradley+Heath+B64+5HL/@52.4717272,-2.0825401,52m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x487090d54f6c683b:0x82135ceb243e827c!8m2!3d52.4717881!4d-2.0826498!16s%2Fg%2F11c4w5dwj6?entry=ttu


 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan. 

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy, loss of light and/or 

outlook and overshadowing 

Design concerns - appearance and materials, layout and density of  

Highways considerations - Traffic generation, access, highway safety, 

parking and servicing 

Environmental Concerns 

Presumption and the ‘titled balance’ 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site relates to commercial premises located on the 

southeast side of High Street, Cradley Heath. The property falls within a 

town centre location. The application property is a mid-terraced two 

storey property which includes a large yard area to the rear also within 

the ownership of the applicant.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The property has been subject to three refusals. The reason for refusal 

of DC/18/61561 and DC/18/62082 related to back land development and 

Page 87



 

a poor living environment due to the mixed retail/residential functioning 

of the space to the rear. DC/21/66030 was refused due to the proposed 

properties failing to achieve the minimum internal space standards and 

the change of use of the retail unit to residential being contrary to policy 

CEN1 in that the site is within a defined retail core and the application 

would prejudice the retail function of the core area.  

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/21/66030 Demolition of existing 

single storey rear, 

proposed new two storey 

rear extension and 

conversion from 

shops/offices to provide 4 

No. studio flats. 

Refusal 

21.12.2021 

DC/18/62082 Proposed change of use 
at ground floor (rear), and 
first floor extension to rear 
to create 2no. studio 
apartments, with 
associated parking 
(amendment to planning 
application DC/18/61561). 

Refusal 
18.10.2018 

DC/18/61561 Proposed two storey rear 
extension and change of 
use from vacant office 
above a retail unit to 3 No. 
self contained apartments 
with associated parking. 

Refusal 
22.05.2018 

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The application is proposing a part change of use of ground floor at the 

rear and conversion of first/second floors with single storey rear 

extension to create 2 No. self-contained apartments, rear loft dormer 

window, new shop front, landscaping and parking to rear. A 26m² retail 

Page 88



 

unit would remain at the front of the property accessed from High Street. 

This unit would consist of a retail area, backroom area, toilet and 

kitchen.  

 

8.2 The single storey rear extension would measure 4.8 metres (W) by 5.4 

metres (L) and have an overall height of 4 metres (2.9 metres to the 

eaves).  

 

8.3 The rear dormer window would measure 4.3 metres (L) by 3.8 metres 

(D) with an overall height of 1.8 metres. The dormer would have a 

volume of 14.71 m3.  

 

8.4 Apartment 1 would be a 1-bedroom dwelling with an internal floor area of 

52.1 m2. This flat would be accessed from the rear via the existing gated 

rear access. This unit would contain a kitchen/living room, hall, bathroom 

and bedroom.   

 

8.5 Apartment 2 would be a 1-bedroom dwelling split across two floors and 

would have an internal floor area of 60.1 m2 (when including the front 

access stairs which are for the sole use of this apartment). This flat 

would be accessed from the front of the property off High Street. This 

property would contain a kitchen/living room on the first floor and 

bathroom and bedroom in the roof space. Both apartments would be 

served by 38 m2 of external amenity area.  

 

8.6 The applicant is also proposing to change the shop front of the property 

to accommodate the additional door access to serve the apartment on 

the first and second floor. The existing fascia sign would also be reduced 

in scale to that of adjacent properties and the first-floor window enlarged.   

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter, with 

seven objections being received. Neighbours were re-consulted on the 

amended plans with a further four objections being received raising the 

same issues.    

Page 89



 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Concerns regarding land ownership issues and the loss of car 

parking spaces at the rear of the property to adjacent neighbours. 

Reference to a demolished toilet block on the land for the use of 

properties 39 and 40. Objectors state they have a right to access 

this land. 

ii) A small section of the site is outside the ownership of the applicant 

and would become built on or land locked if the applicant gets 

permission and builds the development. This area is within the 

ownership of No.40 and appears to be the location of the former 

outside toilet.   

iii) Concerns residents would experience noise and disturbance due 

to a hot food takeaway and other commercial uses being located 

adjacent to the property.  

iv) Concerns emergency vehicles will not be able to access the 

property at the rear of the site due to the narrow tunnel entrance 

and locked gates.  

v) Access to the property at the rear is restricted by a locked gate. 

vi) Concerns with regards to the fact residents may cause anti-social 

behaviour and potentially be criminals/drug users.  

vii) The proposal would cause a loss of light, outlook and privacy to 

adjacent buildings as well as the buildings ventilation.  

viii) Concerns the applicant has undertaken work previously on this site 

and all waste/rubbish was left at the rear.  

ix) Concerns with regards of access to neighbours land to undertake 

the works proposed.  

x) The amended plans show the rear living room of the first-floor 

apartment would be adjacent to a neighbour’s bedroom. No key 

has been provided to state what the hatched boxes in the 

kitchen/living room means.   

xi) A question was raised as to why the front facing window needs to 

be moved.  

 

Page 90



 

Non-material objections have been raised regarding loss of property 

value, loss of view and problems arising from the construction period.  

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Highways  

  

 No objection subject to the removal of the off-street car parking spaces 

proposed. The proposal is within a town centre location with a good 

source/availability of sustainable transport links and public car parks to 

the proposed and the spaces show on the proposed plan would not be 

useable. 

 

10.2 Pollution Control (Air Quality)  

 

 No objection subject to conditions for low NOx boilers and a construction 

environmental management plan. 

 

10.3 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land)  

 

 No objection subject to the standard contaminated land condition.  

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Air Pollution and Noise)  

 

 No objection subject to a condition for hours of working to be restricted 

to the following times; -  

 

0730 to 1800 hours on Monday to Friday, 0730 to 1400 hours on 

Saturday, with no work at any other time including Sundays and public 

holidays. 

 

 

 

Page 91



 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. The 

Framework refers to development adding to the overall quality of the 

area by achieving high quality design, achieving good architecture and 

layouts. 

 

11.2 The Framework promotes sustainable transport options for development 

proposal and paragraph 111 states that developments should be 

prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 

11.3 Taking into account the views of the Council’s Urban Design officer, I am 

of the opinion that the scheme is of a good design, in accordance with 

paragraph 126 of the NPPF.  

 

11.4  In respect of paragraphs 128-130 of the NPPF, the Urban Design officer 

raises no objections to the scheme. The development would assimilate 

with the overall form and layout of the sites surroundings.  

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

 HOU2: Housing Density type and Accessibility 

TRAN4: Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking 

ENV3: Design Quality  

ENV8: Air Quality  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

SAD DM10: Shop Front Design 

 

12.2 ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments. The proposed layout and design are 

Page 92



 

considered to be acceptable with the unit providing the minimum internal 

floor area for a one bed, one-person unit as required by the nationally 

described space standards.  

 

12.3 HOU2 identifies the need for a range of types and sizes of 

accommodation within the borough and accessibility in terms of 

sustainable transport for residential services. The proposal would 

provide an additional residential unit in the borough and is within close 

proximity to a parade of shops and bus stops on Hagley Road West.  

 

12.4 ENV8 refers to mitigation measures to offset air quality issues. In this 

instance, conditions for low NOx boilers to be provided has been 

recommended.  

 

12.5 TRAN4 requires schemes to be well connected to aid cycling and 

walking. The proposal includes a condition for cycle parking to be 

provided as part of the development. 

 

12.6 SAD DM10 lists criteria that shop front designs are to be assess against. 

In my opinion the proposed shop front is acceptable in design and 

appearance with amendments to the existing fascia sign improving the 

appearance of the unit.  

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

 

This application site has been subject to three recent refused 

applications. DC/18/61561 and DC/18/62082 were applications for a 

two-storey rear extension to create 2 studio apartments. The reasons for 

refusal related to the development being an undesirable back land 

development and being a poor living environment due to the mixed 

Page 93



 

retail/residential functioning of the shared space. The current proposal 

has been reduced in scale since these applications were refused with 

only one property and a small extension being accommodated to the 

rear. The existing retail store would also now be accessed from the front 

only. However, the principle of this type of development to the rear of the 

properties on High Street has been set by approvals for a residential 

development on the adjacent site (James Court) which is accessed via a 

gated archway from High Street and to the rear of No. 41 High Street 

(DC/17/60588 – Proposed change of use to rear of ground floor and 

single storey rear extension to create 1 No. flat) which is accessed via 

the same gated archway from High Street as the proposed development 

would be. In terms of the most recent refusal, DC/21/66030 was refused 

due to the proposed properties failing to achieve the minimum internal 

space standards and the change of use of the retail unit to residential 

being contrary to policy CEN1 in that the site is within a defined retail 

core and the application would prejudice the retail function of the core 

area. As a retail shop would be retained to the frontage and the 

development complies with the nationally described space standards, I 

am satisfied the reasons for refusal of DC/21/66030 have been 

addressed.  

 

13.3 Amenity concerns  

 

I am satisfied the amended plans have addressed concerns regarding 

residential amenity. The adjacent property has been subject to a 

substantial two storey rear extension to create 6 terraced properties 

(James Court). These are accessed in a similar arrangement to the 

application site through a gated archway between the terraced 

properties on High Street. The rear wall of this development backs onto 

the application site and contains a number of boiler flue pipes/vents 

which vent over the applicants land. This property also has a rear 

dormer window with flats being accommodated over the ground floor 

commercial premises. One of these flats has two windows on the 

boundary with the applicants property which serves a living room at first 

floor level. The adjacent property on the opposite side has no rear facing 

windows. However, the first-floor window which is currently blocked up 

Page 94



 

could be reinstated at any time. As the rear extension has now been 

reduced to be single storey only, I am satisfied the proposed 

development would cause no significant harm to residential amenity in 

terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy. To protect privacy, a glazing 

scheme for the rear facing lounge window has been conditioned in order 

to prevent any overlooking into the lounge windows of the property which 

faces onto the application site. In terms of the ventilation issue raised by 

an objector, the proposed extension is set off the boundary with the 

properties on James Court by 0.4 m. I am therefore satisfied no harm to 

ventilation would occur. 

 

13.4 Design concerns  

 

The amended proposed extension would be single storey in height and 

would be located to the rear of the existing property with the proposed 

dormer window also being located at the rear.  The dwellings have been 

designed to exceed with the national described space standards for a 

one bed, two-person unit of 50 m2 (1 storey) and 58 m2 (2 storey) as 

well as providing external amenity space. Taking this into consideration, 

I am satisfied the proposed extension and rear dormer window are 

acceptable in design and appearance and would cause no harm to the 

street scene or wider area. Additional amended plans have been 

received to provide additional widows to the ground floor property to 

ensure adequate access to natural light is achieved and to provide a 

suitable living environment. Taking this into consideration coupled by the 

fact the units exceed the national described space standards, I am 

satisfied they would provide suitable living accommodation for occupiers. 

An external lighting scheme has also been conditioned to ensure the 

property at the rear would be suitably lit at night.    

 

In terms of the land ownership issues raised by objectors, the land 

registry title plan does confirm number 38 and the rear yard area where 

the proposal would be located are within the same title. The small 

section of land highlighted by the objector is not within this title and has 

been omitted from the location plan. it has been confirmed this section of 

land is within the ownership of No. 40 High Street. The proposal has also 

Page 95



 

been amended so no part of the development would take place on this 

section of land and access to this land would not be blocked by the 

development. The applicant was asked for comment about this matter 

and replied as follows; -  

 

“The land is ours as per land registry there is no right of way or right to 

neighbours for parking as is evident from land registry also as nothing is 

written on that. We have never given permission to anyone to park on 

our land and wouldn’t do this as it was our intention to develop the site 

and improve the area.  If they have been parking there it would be 

deemed as trespassing”. 

 

Conflicts over land ownership are beyond the control of the Local 

Planning Authority. However, the granting of planning approval would 

not override or supersede any legal rights of way or access to the land 

for the objectors should they have any rights within their legal deeds. 

This, however, would be a civil matter between the applicant and 

objectors.      

 

In terms of the other points raised by the objectors relating to design. 

Objectors state the access gate serving the rear is locked preventing 

access. However, as the applicant has access to the land at the rear, 

they would also have a key to this gate which can be provided to 

potential residents for access. This is a similar circumstance for the 

existing residential properties already using this gate for access to their 

properties. The location of the living room adjacent to a bedroom is 

noted. A condition for a sound proofing scheme to be installed to the first 

floor has been included in the recommendation to limit any impact. The 

hatched areas on the first-floor plan show walls and chimney breasts to 

be removed. This element does not require planning approval and is 

covered under building regulations approval. The front first floor window 

has been moved in order for it to be accommodated within the kitchen 

area of the property.  

 

 

 

Page 96



 

13.4 Highways concerns 

 

The Head of Highways has reviewed the application and raised no 

objections to the proposal. The proposal is within a town centre location 

with a good source/availability of sustainable transport links and public 

car parks to the proposed.  

 

13.6 Environmental Concerns 

 

Public Health have reviewed the application and raised no objections to 

the application in terms residential dwellings being in proximity to 

commercial units with late openings. As the application property/site is 

within a town centre location, it is not unreasonable to expect late 

evening commercial units would be in proximity and any potential 

residents would be aware of this prior to occupation. Public Health would 

not investigate an existing/historic use in terms of a statutory nuisance. 

To address concerns raised by objectors relating to noise and 

disturbance from construction works, a condition for a construction 

method statement has been included within the recommendation as well 

as a restriction to the hours of construction. This would require the 

applicant to provide details of the parking of vehicles of site operatives 

and visitors; loading and unloading of plant and materials; measures to 

control the emission of dust and dirt during demolition construction and 

construction working hours (to the hours advised by public health). 

 

13.7 Works on/near to the boundary would require the applicant to serve 

notice under the Part Wall Act 1996. However, this is a civil matter 

between the private land owners and not something the Local Planning 

Authority can become involved with. Finally, objectors have raised 

concerns that the applicant started refurbishment works on the property 

and left building waste to rear. Unfortunately, this is not a reason to 

refuse this planning application. However, the construction management 

plan would require the submission of details of recycling/disposing of 

waste resulting from demolition and construction works.  

 

 

Page 97



 

13.8 Presumption and the ‘titled balance’  
 

The ‘tilted balance’ is similar to the normal planning balance but it is only 

engaged in exceptional circumstances. As the council has less than a 

five-year housing land supply, relevant local policies are out-of-date. In 

the most basic sense, the tilted balance is a version of the planning 

balance that is already tilted in an applicant’s favour. If the tilted balance 

applies, planning permission should normally be granted unless the 

negative impacts ‘significantly and demonstrably’ outweigh the positive 

impacts. 

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

Conflict with development plan policies will always be a negative impact. 

If the policies are up-to-date, that negative impact will be given greater 

weight. However, if they’re out-of-date, the weight given to the negative 

impact will be seriously reduced. No matter what the negative impacts 

are, if a proposal manages to secure sufficient positive impacts (of 

sufficient weight) to tilt the planning balance in its favour, planning 

permission should be granted. 

  

14.2 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

Page 98



 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Context plan 

34/02 REV E (A2) - AMENDED PROPOSED FLOOR 

PLANS/ELEVATIONS, LOCATION PLAN & BLOCK PLAN 

 

Page 99



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 100



u

RETAIL UNIT

up

KITCHEN

BATHROOM

Ø600

UP

HALL

BEDROOM

W/C

KITCHENETTE

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

SD

HD

SD

SD

SD

HD

SD

WALL TO MATCH

EXISTING

OBSCURE

WINDOW

WALL TO MATCH

EXISTING

dn

AREA: ####m

2

AREA: 26.2m

2

1739

3
4
2
4

2768

1879

1
8
0
0

1000

1
2
0
5

4
6
4
8

6
2
2
5

2578

900

1
6
0
3

1
5
7
8

1125

1478

2378

1
4
0
5

1200

1
4
0
5

2
4
7
4

2078

4
0
7
8

3
4
8
5

900

OBSCURE

1739

2290

1
5
0
3

4
5
5
9

1261

4029

1
4
4
4

UP

UP

KITCHEN

HALL

LOUNGE

FD30

FD30

FD30

HD

SD

SD

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

AREA: 28.9m

2

1010905125

4
2
0
7

9
0
5

109

890

9
1
2

900

1414

1664

1200

SIGNAGE ZONE

REDUCED

BRICK WORK TO

MATCH EXISTING

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

BRICK WORK TO

MATCH EXISTING

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

OBSCURE

OBSCURE

UP

STORE

BATHROOM

BEDROOM

FD30

FD30

SD

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

SKYLIGHT

AREA: 27.7m

2

SKYLIGHT
SKYLIGHT

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

TILING TO MATCH

EXISTING

Proposed schedule of accommodation:

38 High Street, Cradley Heath, West Midlands. B64 5HL

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Ground Floor

Apartment No.  01 - 1 bedroom Apartment -  50.4 m²

Retail unit - 26.2 m

2

Total Internal Ground floor area -   78.3m²

First Floor

Apartment No.  02 - 1 bedroom Apartment -  28.9 m²

Total Internal First Floor Area -  28.9m²

Second Floor

Apartment No.  02 - 1 bedroom Apartment -  27.7 m²

Total Internal Second Floor Area -  27.7 m²

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Apartment 1 Total - 52.1 m

2

Apartment 2 Total - 56.6 m

2

Total Internal floor area   -  134.9 m²

Garden area - 38.3 m

2

Total: 2 No Apartments.

02 - 1 bedroom apartments

Total car parking spaces - 2

RETAIL UNIT

up

KITCHEN

BATHROOM

Ø600

UP

HALL

BEDROOM

W/C

KITCHENETTE

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

FD30

SD

HD

SD

SD

SD

HD

SD

WALL TO MATCH

EXISTING

WALL TO MATCH

EXISTING

WALL TO MATCH

EXISTING

dn

AREA: ####m

2

AREA: 26.2m

2

3
4

2
4

2768

1879

1
8

0
0

1000

1
2

0
5

4
6

4
8

6
2

2
5

2578

900

1
6

0
31

5
7

8

1125

1478

2378

1
4

0
5

1200

1
4

0
5

2
4

7
4

2078

4
0

7
8

3
4

8
5

900

OBSCURE

1739

2290

1
5

0
3

4
5

5
9

1261

4029

1
4

4
4

J
a

m
e

s
 
C

o
u

r
t

4
3

HIGH STREET

1

37

38   3
9

Vehicular &

Pedestrian Access

d

4

4

J

a

m

e

s

 

C

o

u

r

t

4

1

6

0

3

1

4

5

3

2

1

4

7

b

3

5

3

a

4

3

4

2

1

3

3

0

a

b

4

3

2

1

5

9

c

t

o

3

H

I

G

H

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

1

1

5

0

3

0

1

5

1

1

3

2

3

7

3

5

1

6

3

6

3

8

 

 

 

3

9

Revisions

ALL CONTRACTORS MUST CHECK ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE BEFORE PREPARING PRODUCTION DRAWINGS OR

COMMENCING ANY WORK. THIS DRAWING AND ITS DESIGN IS THE COPYRIGHT OF BHARYA DBC LTD ONLY. AND

MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM WHATSOEVER WITHOUT THEIR PRIOR EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT.

A2

Construction

Scale

Preliminary

Date

Job title

Drawn
Client

Drawing No.

Drawing title

WBAug. 2023 1:100

@ A2

Proposed Floor Plans

& Elevations

34/02E

P L A N N I N G  /  B U I L D I N G   R E G S

DRAWINGS AND LAYOUT IS INDICATIVE ONLY ALL DIMENSIONS AND DRAINAGE TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BY CLIENTS APPOINTED CONTRACTORS

BUILDING INSPECTOR MUST CALLED OUT TO INSPECT THE BUILDING WORK IN STAGES. ALL STRUCTURAL DESIGN TO BE DESIGN BY STRUCTURAL

ENGINEER. ALL WORKS ARE DONE AT YOUR OWN RISK RELEVANT PERMISSIONS I IN PLACE. ALL WORKS ON OR WITHIN A 3 MTR ZONE OF A

NEIGHBORING BOUNDARY ARE TO BE NOTIFIED 14 DAYS BEFORE COMMENCEMENT ON SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PARTY WALL ACT 1996.

A  L  L      D  I  M  E  N  S  I  O  N  S      T  O      B  E      C  H  E  C  K  E  D      O  N      S  I  T  E

02m 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

1:100 -

0 50m25m25m 75m 100m

1:1250 -

0 1m 2m 3m 4m 5m1m

1:50 - 

010m 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

1:500 -

3
8

H
I
G
H

S
T
R
E
E
T

C
R
A
D
L
E
Y

H
E
A
T
H

W
E
S
T

M
I
D
L
A
N
D
S

B
6
4

5
H
L

Proposed Extension and

Conversion

  A R C H I T E C T U R A L ,    B U I L D I N G   &    C I V I L    E N G I N E E R I N G    C O N S U L T A N T S

BHARYA DBC LTD.

179 SANDON ROAD

BEARWOOD

BIRMINGHAM

B66 4AA

Tel. / Fax :  0121 725 1983      Mob.  0 7 9 6   8 0 6 4   4 1 3

Web :    www.bharya.co.uk    -   e-mail :  info@bharya.co.uk

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN SCALE 1:100 PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN SCALE 1:100

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION SCALE 1:100 PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION SCALE 1:100PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION SCALE 1:100

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN SCALE 1:100 PROPOSED ROOF  PLAN SCALE 1:100

PROPOSED SITE PLAN SCALE 1:500

DRAWINGS AND LAYOUT IS INDICATIVE ONLY ALL

DIMENSIONS AND DRAINAGE TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BY

CLIENTS APPOINTED CONTRACTORS BUILDING

INSPECTOR MUST CALLED OUT TO INSPECT THE

BUILDING WORK IN STAGES. ALL STRUCTURAL DESIGN TO

BE DESIGN BY STRUCTURAL ENGINEER. ALL WORKS ARE

DONE AT YOUR OWN RISK RELEVANT PERMISSIONS I IN

PLACE. ALL WORKS ON OR WITHIN A 3 MTR ZONE OF A

NEIGHBORING BOUNDARY ARE TO BE NOTIFIED 14 DAYS

BEFORE COMMENCEMENT ON SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH

THE PARTY WALL ACT 1996.

Site boundary amended

PROPOSED LOCATION PLAN

SCALE 1:1250

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68367 

Application Received 20 June 2023 

Application Description Proposed two storey side and single storey 

front/side/rear extensions. 

Application Address 57 Valentine Road 

Oldbury 

B68 9AH 

Applicant Mr Waqar Ahmed 

Ward Bristnall 

Contact Officer Beth Astley-Serougi 

Beth_AstleySerougi@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to conditions relating to: 

 

i) External Materials to match the existing property 

ii) The bathroom window on the rear elevation of the single storey 

rear extension is to be obscurely glazed and retained as such. 

iii) The window located on the first-floor side extensions is to be 

obscurely glazed and retained as such.  

 
 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Beth_AstleySerougi@sandwell.gov.uk


 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposed development would be of satisfactory design and would 

not significantly impact on the private amenity of neighbouring 

properties, in terms of loss of light, outlook and privacy. 

 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods 

 4 Context  

 

4.1 At its last meeting the committee resolved to visit the site. The proposal 

has received three objections.  

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

57 Valentine Road, Oldbury  - Aerial View  

57 Valentine Road, Oldbury - Street View 

  

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy, loss of light and outlook 

and overshadowing 

Design concerns - appearance and materials, layout and density of 

building, wider visual amenity and overdevelopment 

Highway concerns - Parking 

 

Page 104

https://www.google.com/maps/place/57+Valentine+Rd,+Oldbury+B68+9AH/@52.4772285,-1.9928718,74a,35y,24.75h,0.53t/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x487097d21a1a3377:0xb483fd07495efe7f!8m2!3d52.4771668!4d-1.9927317!16s%2Fg%2F11c4cps4xh?entry=ttu
https://www.google.com/maps/@52.4770781,-1.9929092,3a,75y,43.8h,78.59t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1sBbqeDRCjKBX0blA7Ig9v4w!2e0!7i16384!8i8192?entry=ttu


 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site relates to a three bedroom semi-detached property 

on the northern side of Valentine Road, Oldbury.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 There is no planning history for this property. 
 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant seeks to construct a two-storey side and single storey 

front/side/rear extensions. After discussion the applicant has withdrawn 

plans for a roof extension and dormer. The number of bedrooms is to be 

increased to five. 

 

8.2     The two-storey side (including single storey side) extension would 

measure as follows: Ground Floor: 7.2m in length at maximum and 

2.4m in width at maximum. First Floor: 6.7m in length at maximum and 

2.4m maximum in width. 

 

8.3     The single storey front extension would measure as follows: 3.2m in 

height at maximum, 1m in depth and 2.4m maximum in width.  

 

8.4     The single storey rear extension would measure as follows: 2.9m in 

height, 5m in length and 5.5m in width at maximum. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letters with 

three objections received from residents.   

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

Page 105



 

 

i) Loss of privacy to adjacent properties; 

ii) Loss of light to adjacent properties; 

iii) Loss of outlook to adjacent properties. 

 

Non-material objections have been raised regarding loss of view and 

negative impact upon mental and physical health.  

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1  Canal and River Trust 

 

No objections to the proposed development.  

 

10.2   Highways 

 

 The extension would require two off road parking spaces which cannot 

be accommodated within the existing driveway. 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

  

11.2 The framework refers to development adding to the overall quality of the 

area by achieving high quality design, achieving good architecture and 

layouts. 

 

11.3 The same guidance also promotes sustainable transport options for 

development proposals and paragraph 111 states that developments 

should be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

Page 106



 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. 

  

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments. The proposed layout and design are 

considered to be broadly acceptable. Although the first floor extension is 

flush to the original dwelling house, it is considered that due to the 

orientation of the property and its relationship with adjacent properties 

that the set down is sufficient enough to create a subservient design 

whilst ensuring usable space for the applicant.   

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Amenity concerns 

 

With regards to the neighbouring property to the left of the applicants 

property, it is considered that the floor plans demonstrate that the ground 

floor and first floor side extensions would not significantly impact any 

loss of light for habitable windows to an extent that would warrant a 

refusal. The single storey rear extension is comprised of a flat roof with 

roof lantern and therefore has been designed sympathetically to limit any 

possible negative impact on neighbouring properties regarding loss of 

light or outlook. Therefore, it is my view that the ground floor side and 

rear extensions would not result in any significant loss of light to the 

adjoining semi-detached property nor other adjacent properties.  

Page 107



 

 

There is one window on the side elevation of the proposed first floor 

development and one toilet window on the ground floor rear extension 

both of which are recommended to be conditioned to be obscurely 

glazed and retained as such. It is therefore considered the privacy of the 

adjacent properties will be maintained.  

 

The first-floor side extension is sympathetic to any possible impact upon 

neighbouring properties and does not project further than the existing 

rear elevation of the property. It is therefore considered that there will not 

be a significant impact upon loss of outlook or light for neighbouring 

properties.  

 

The front extension will not impact the off-road parking provision at the 

property to an extent that I consider to warrant a refusal. I consider there 

to be an ability that parking provision could be accommodated on street 

without unduly affecting the amenity of residents, the movement of 

pedestrians and the free passage of vehicles. 

 

13.3  Design concerns 

 

In my opinion, the design of the extensions proposed is broadly 

satisfactory and I do not consider this would result in any undue harm to 

the character of the area. The side extension has been set down from 

the highest point of the roof. This results in a subordinate design to the 

original dwelling house. Due to the orientation of the applicant’s property 

and its’ relationship with neighbouring properties I do not consider the 

need for the set back of the first floor to be essential in achieving a 

subordinate design.  

 

Amended plans have been received in which the applicant has omitted 

plans for a roof extension and loft conversion. This has ensured that the 

amended plans would not be overly dominant, erode legibility of the 

street scene nor result in an imposing design upon the neighbouring 

properties.  

 

Page 108



 

The front extension I do not consider to erode the original character of 

the dwelling house, nor will it impact the visual amenity of the 

surrounding area. The window proposed will assimilate with the original 

character of the dwelling house.  

 

Furthermore, I do not consider the proposed development to constitute 

overdevelopment of the plot considering the level of remaining outdoor 

amenity space to the front and rear of the property.  

 

13.4 Highway concerns – parking 

 

 It is noted that highways have raised concerns about insufficient parking 

to serve the property following the conversion of the existing garage, 

however the garage as current falls below standards for garage parking 

and so could not accommodate a parking space.  The property as 

current is a 3 bed with the proposed increasing to a 4 bed, both 3 and 4 

bed properties require two off road parking spaces.  It is therefore 

considered that the development will have no greater impact on the 

highway than existing and would fail the tests of the NPPF in terms of 

causing a severe impact on the highway. 

 

14. Conclusion 

  

 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

 

 

Page 109



 

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Location Plan - 1 

 Amended Proposed Floor Plans  - WA223-02 REV C  

Amended Proposed Elevation Plans - WA223-03 REV C  

Existing Floor and Elevation Plans - WA223-01 

 

 

Page 110



Page 111



P
age 112



P
age 113



P
age 114



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68420 

Application Received 27 June 2023 

Application Description Proposed 11 No. houses and 9 No. self-

contained apartments with car parking, 

enclosed bin store, cycle store and 

landscaping. 

Application Address Site Of Former 3 And 4 

Cardale Street 

Rowley Regis 

Applicant Sandwell MBC 

Ward Blackheath 

Contact Officer Carl Mercer 

carl_mercer@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That, subject to the signing of a section 106 agreement to ensure 

affordable housing, planning permission is granted subject conditions 

relating to: 

 

(i) External materials; 

(ii) Finished floor levels; 

(iii) Employment and skills plan; 

(iv) Contamination; 

(v) Drainage (surface and foul); 

 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



 

(vi) Energy statement (compliance with submitted info); 

(vii) Boundary treatments (compliance with submitted info); 

(viii) Landscaping (compliance with submitted info); 

(ix) Waste storage (compliance with submitted info); 
(x) Cycle storage (compliance with submitted info); 
(xi) Low NOx boilers; 

(xii) Electric vehicle charging; 

(xiii) Construction environmental management plan; 

(xiv) Removal of permitted development rights; and 

(xv) Retention of parking and manoeuvring areas. 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal raises no significant concerns from a policy, design or 

highway perspective and would deliver affordable housing in a 

sustainable location. 

 

2 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

 

Strong resilient communities 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 

 

 4 Context  

 

4.1 The application is being reported to your Planning Committee as a 

section 106 agreement is required to secure the affordable housing. 

 

Page 116



 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 
below: 
 
Cardale Street, Rowley Regis 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are: 

 

Government policy (NPPF); 

Layout and density of buildings; 

Design, appearance and materials; 

Access, highway safety, parking and servicing; and 

Presumption and the ‘titled balance’. 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is bounded to the northwest by a relatively recent 

housing development and a Hindu temple. Cardale Street runs to the 

north east, from which much of the development would be accessed 

from. The remainder of the proposed housing would be accessed from 

Park Street, adjacent to an existing carpet warehouse. To the south of 

the site lies a run of housing which fronts on to Avenue Road. 

 

6.2 The site is unallocated in the Development Plan. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 None relevant. 

Page 117

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Cardale+St,+Blackheath,+Rowley+Regis/@52.476201,-2.0380166,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870970125354c61:0x32f21b537caafb95!8m2!3d52.476201!4d-2.0354417!16s%2Fg%2F1tf69g_v?entry=ttu
https://www.google.com/maps/place/Cardale+St,+Blackheath,+Rowley+Regis/@52.476201,-2.0380166,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870970125354c61:0x32f21b537caafb95!8m2!3d52.476201!4d-2.0354417!16s%2Fg%2F1tf69g_v?entry=ttu


 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant proposes 11 houses and nine self-contained apartments 

for affordable rental. The site would have two access points. A 2.5 storey 

block of apartments would front Cardale Street, with parking accessed 

off Cardale Street by a driveway to the rear. The same driveway would 

serve five, two storey houses. Six houses would be accessed from Park 

Street, with two sited along the Park Street frontage and four served by a 

driveway to a cul-de-sac at the rear. 

 

8.2 Of the 20 dwellings proposed, there would be one block of nine, one-

bedroom apartments; six, two-bedroom and five, three-bedroom houses. 

Each two-bedroom house would have one off-street parking space, each 

three-bedroom house would have two spaces, whilst the apartments 

would each have one allocated space. The houses served off Park 

Street would also have the use of two off-street visitor spaces. Secure 

cycle storage for nine bikes is provided adjacent to the apartment block 

amenity area. 

 

8.3 Amended plans have been received to address design and highway 

issues. The amendments were required to bring the layout in line with 

the Council’s design guidance, raise the internal space proposed, clarify 

boundary treatments, improve access arrangements and increase 

parking space sizes. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter and 

site notice, with two representations being received. 

 

9.2 Representations 

 

Representations have been received on grounds of drainage and 

boundary treatments.  

 

These will be addressed in section 13 (Material Considerations). 

Page 118



 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning Policy  

 

 No objection. The proposals raise no significant policy concerns 

although the applicant should look to demonstrate how policy ENV7 

(renewable energy requirement) would be met. A statement has now 

been submitted which provides details of photovoltaics as part of the 

development and is conditioned as such. 

 

10.2 Highways  

 

 No objection. 

 

10.3 Urban Design 

 

 No objection. 

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Contamination) 

 

 No objection subject to conditions relating to the final design and 

specification of gas protection measures and submission of a validation 

report. 

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Air) 

 

 No objection. Electric vehicle charging (EVC) bays, low NOx boilers and 

construction environmental management plan required by condition. 

 

10.5 West Midlands Police  

 

 No objection. 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



 

10.6 Staffordshire County Council – Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) 

 

 Further information required. In my opinion the issues raised are not 

insurmountable and can be addressed by condition. However, the 

applicant has submitted further detail which the LLFA is currently 

considering. The application can still be determined without further 

comments from Staffordshire as conditions can be applied. 

 

10.7 Severn Trent Water 

 

 No objection subject to condition. Seven Trent note the presence of their 

sewer pipe across the site. The easement is noted on the submitted plan 

and the scheme has been designed around it. 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. The NPPF 

refers to development adding to the overall quality of the area by 

achieving high quality design, achieving good architecture and layouts. 

 

11.2 Taking into account the views of the Council’s Urban Design officer, I am 

of the opinion that the scheme is of a good design, in accordance with 

the design aspirations of the NPPF, as the development would 

assimilate with the overall form and layout of the site’s surroundings. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the Council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

 Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS) 

 

CSP4 – Place Making  

DEL1 – Infrastructure Provision 

HOU2 – Housing Density, Type and Accessibility 

Page 120



 

HOU3 – Delivering Affordable Housing  

TRAN2 – Managing Transport Impacts of New Development 

TRAN4 – Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking  

ENV3 – Design Quality 

ENV5 – Flood Risk, SuDS and Urban Heat Island Effect 

ENV7 – Renewable Energy  

ENV8 – Air Quality  

 

Site Allocations and Delivery Development Plan Document (SADD)  

 

SAD H2 – Housing Windfalls  

SAD H3 – Affordable Housing  

SAD EOS9 – Urban Design Principles 

 

12.2 In respect of CSP4 the design of the development is influenced by the 

context of the local area and would enhance the attributes the area 

offers in terms of its local character. 

 

12.3 Infrastructure provision, in this case EVC bays, would be ensured by 

condition (DEL1).  

 

12.4 Whilst land is identified and allocated in the Development Plan to meet 

the borough’s sustainable housing growth, under policy HOU1 additional 

housing capacity will also be sought elsewhere through planning 

permissions on suitable sites.  As such, this proposal would assist with 

providing much needed housing within the borough. 

 

12.5 The proposal meets the requirements of policy HOU2 in that it proposes 

a range of types and sizes of accommodation which would be accessible 

by walking and sustainable transport to services. The proposal would 

also achieve good design with minimal amenity impact. 

 

12.6 The scheme is entirely comprised of affordable housing which would be 

ensured by s106 agreement (HOU3 and SAD H3). 

 

Page 121



 

12.7 Training and recruitment opportunities should be provided as part of any 

new development (EMP5 and SAD EMP 2). This can be ensured by 

condition. 

 

12.8 Highways raise no objection to the traffic generation attributed to this 

development (TRAN2). 

 

12.9 Sufficient amenity space is provided to allow for cycle parking provision 

(TRAN4). 

 

12.10 The proposal raises no significant concerns in respect of design and is 

therefore compliant with policy ENV3 and SAD EOS 9. 

 

12.11 Drainage can be addressed by the submission of further information 

and/or a compliance condition (ENV5). 

 

12.12 The development would use photovoltaics and is estimated that the 

energy generated would be 11.71% of the energy demand of the site. 

This exceeds the 10% requirement of the policy ENV7. 

 

12.13 In respect of air quality (ENV8), electric vehicle charging points and low 

NOx boilers can be ensured by condition. 

 

12.14 The proposed dwellings would be a windfall, subject to SAD H2. The 

proposal meets the requirement of the policy as it is previously 

developed land, suitable for residential development, and capable of 

meeting other plan policies. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.2  Layout and density of buildings / Design, appearance and materials 

 

The Urban Design officer has confirmed that the layout of the proposal is 

broadly in line with the Council’s residential design guidance. The scale 

of the development would be two storeys, and the proposal would 

assimilate into the surrounding area. 

Page 122



 

13.3  Access, highway safety, parking and servicing 

 

The development meets with the approval of the highway authority and 

parking spaces are in accordance with the requirements of Council 

design guidance. 

 

13.4 Presumption and the ‘titled balance’ 

 

The ‘tilted balance’ is similar to the normal planning balance but it is only 

engaged in exceptional circumstances. As the council has less than a 

five-year housing land supply, relevant local policies are out-of-date. In 

the most basic sense, the tilted balance is a version of the planning 

balance that is already tilted in an applicant’s favour. If the tilted balance 

applies, planning permission should normally be granted unless the 

negative impacts ‘significantly and demonstrably’ outweigh the positive 

impacts. 

 

13.5 Other matters 

 

 Representations refer to past/existing issues with drainage and the rear 

boundary along Avenue Road. Foul drainage matters would be dealt 

with by Severn Trent. In respect of the development, the applicant has 

noted the presence of the sewer easement within the site and the 

development would not disturb this asset. Furthermore, the brick 

boundary wall to the rear of properties along Avenue Road would be 

retained. 

 

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

Page 123



 

14.2 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

Development Plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal of the application. 

 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

 

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

Page 124



 

17. Appendices 

 

 Location Plan 

Context Plan 

M4961(PL)01 L 

M4961(PL)02 B 

M4961(PL)05 F 

M4961(PL)06 D 

M4961(PL)07 A 

M4961(PL)08 B 

M4961(PL)09 A 

M4961(PL)10 A 

M4961(PL)11 A 

M4961(PL)12 B 

M4961(PL)13 A 

M4961(PL)14 A 

M4961 (PL) 15 

 

 

Page 125



2

1

5

Temple

8

2

3

1

2

2

9

Warehouse

1

1

0

1

3

P

A

R

K

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

A

V

E

N

U

E

 

R

O

A

D

C

A

R

D

A

L

E

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

3

6

5

1

7

A

R

C

H

E

R

 
W

A

Y

1

8

3

2

1

7

Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2022. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

0m 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Location Plan

M4961 (PL) 100

1:1250 @ A4

Nov 22

RW

Scale 1:1250

Page 126



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 127



Turfed lawn area

Tarmac parking space

Hardstanding for storage of

Low level shrub planting

Concrete paving flags

Turfed lawn area

Proposed tree planting

Tarmac highway

External Works Legend

Block paved parking space

PLP

rid
ge

 18
3.0

5

rid
ge

 18
2.9

5

u/s guttering

u/s guttering

179.02

179.18

DK
DK DK

DK

DK

174.59

174.60

174.61
174.61

17
4.

63
17

4.
62

17
4.5

8
174.50

174.39 174.34 174.22 174.18 174.09 174.02 173.96
173.90

17
3.8

5 17
3.7

817
3.7

5
17

3.7
0

17
3.6

4
17

3.5
8

174.54

174.71
174.75

174.73

174.44

174.14

174.10

174.32
RS

174.59

174.65

174.76
174.77

174.76 A/B

174.74

174.79

wash out

bitmac

174.69

LP
174.28

174.20

RS

CATV

BT

WSV
GSV

173.72

173.79

173.80173.80

S/S 2.2mh

173.89 173.88

173.85

173.97

174.06

174.48

DK
DK

17
3.7

0

17
3.8

0

17
3.8

1

173.83

173.88

174.02

174.11
174.17

174.28

G
173.90

TWL 175.0

TWL 174.6

all
 D

K

DK

17
2.6

7

17
2.6

4

172.59

172.73

173.14

173.43

173.80

173.93

approximate wall remains

172.60

172.62
172.63

172.62

172.60
172.69

172.64

172.55

172.54

172.56

172.70

172.57

172.54

172.53

172.45

172.56 172.72

172.55

172.45

172.20

stump

172.63

172.65
172.62

172.64

172.67

172.70

172.65

172.50

concrete

172.75

172.72

172.89

173.63

173.58

S/S 2.2mh
173.78

174.06

bitmac

173.34

172.81

172.89

172.93

173.27

173.54
173.53

173.60

173.67

173.93

174.04174.06

174.05

concrete

173.22

174.00

MS
post

S/S
 2.

2m
h

C/L 1.8mh

174.06

174.05

174.25

174.46

175.06

174.42

173.90

173.71

173.35

unstable brick wall

unable to define end of wall

172.70

172.78

172.89

173.23
173.34

173.69

173.99

174.01

stump

approximate tree position

approximate tree position

172.69
172.57

172.30

IC cl 172.71
172.51

172.30

172.68

172.61

172.48

172.29

172.16

172.18

172.31

TWL 175.0

TWL 175.9

TWL 174.3

TWL 174.2

ridge 179.00

ridge 178.94
ridge 181.53

ridge 182.87

ridge 182.81

ridge 182.46
ridge 182.47 ridge 183.05ridge 182.97

ridge 183.08

ridge 183.14

ridge 181.83

ridge 181.85

ridge 181.09
ridge 181.07

roof tile edge
179.18

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

179.02

179.00

u/s guttering

u/s guttering

179.49

179.52

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

178.52

178.53

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

177.23

177.21

edge of corrugate

edge of corrugate

175.28

175.30

ridge 177.91

ridge 177.95

ridge 179.43

ridge 179.38

u/s guttering

roof tile edge

178.90

179.01

top of possible flat roof
TWL 176.7

TWL 177.0

TWL 177.0

threshold
FL 172.15

172.14

172.10

assumed il 171.49

IC chamber full of debris

aasumed sump 171.39

level on frame 172.19

172.15

172.07

172.12

172.14

172.25

172.10

172.09

172.14

172.06

172.04
172.05

172.25
172.37

172.39
172.38

172.31

172.30
172.28

172.27

172.12

172.16

172.18

172.22
172.17

172.16
172.24

172.22
172.15

172.11
172.06

172.07

172.08
remains of wall

172.09

172.07

172.07

171.94
172.07

assumed wall position here

V/C 3.0mh

172.19

172.17

172.15remains of hedge

172.08

172.19

172.08

172.13

172.02

IC cl 172.00

WSV

171.86

IC cl 171.89

171.59

IC cl 171.90

171.89

171.94

remains of wall

171.91
171.97

171.85

171.92

rain water pipe

172.07
172.07

172.08

172.00171.90

171.94

171.88

171.88

171.84

171.85

171.86

171.76
171.76

171.65

171.77

171.73

remains of wall

171.61

171.72

171.64

171.65

171.63

171.59

171.58

171.62

concrete

concrete

171.63

171.71

171.36

brick wall

171.48

171.41

171.36

171.29

171.25

171.25

171.23

171.25

171.25

171.17

171.13

171.08

171.06
171.03

170.87

170.71

170.95

170.71170.67

170.68

170.65

concrete

170.73

ap
pr

ox
im

ate
 br

ok
en

 co
nc

re
te 

ed
ge

 po
sit

ion

170.97

170.90

170.58

170.63

170.67

170.67

170.74

170.79

170.95

171.10

171.23

171.36
171.36

171.40

171.39

171.45171.43

171.88

171.62
171.57

171.76
171.63

171.47

171.46

171.44
171.35

mound

171.20

171.34

171.42

171.36 171.33

171.16

171.10

171.05

171.08
171.09

171.27

171.23

171.05

mound

171.02

171.09

171.13

171.10

171.01

170.94

170.91

170.96

170.78

IC cl 170.76

IC cl 170.87

IC cl 171.03

170.89

171.15

IC cl 171.36

level on conc surround 171.33

172.28

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

173.59

173.59

ridge 175.39

ridge 175.39

ridge 183.39

ridge 179.57

ridge 177.35

ridge 179.47

ridge 179.46

u/s guttering

roof tile edge

176.96

177.01

u/s guttering
174.88

TWL 175.1

TWL 176.2

TWL 174.9

TWL 174.5

TWL 174.9

TWL 173.5

173.89

173.69

173.65

173.32

172.98

172.02

171.98

171.95

172.12

171.90

171.83
171.71

171.69

171.71

171.45
171.46

171.46
171.45

171.46

171.45

171.45
171.45

171.45

171.45

171.45

171.48

171.45

concrete

171.46

unstable brick wall

171.46
171.46

171.56

171.52

stump

P/
F 

2.
2m

h

172.56

172.23

172.02

171.70

171.51

171.46

171.52

171.56

171.44
171.42

171.35

171.37

171.49

171.48
171.46 T

171.38
171.39

171.42

171.37
171.33

171.23
171.29

171.19
171.20

171.20
171.18

171.14

170.99

171.07

171.00 171.02

170.75

170.72

171.11

WSV

IC cl 171.44

171.29

171.30

171.20

171.20

171.27

171.25

171.27

171.34

171.30

171.37

171.38

171.44

171.40

171.39

171.37

171.54

171.47

171.41

171.41

concrete

171.32

co
nc

 e
dg

e 
str

ip

I/R
 1

.4
m

h

ridge 178.99

ridge 178.54

ridge 178.55

rid
ge 180.14

ridge 181.82

ridge 181.87

ridge 181.89ridge 181.84

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

178.40

178.41
roof tile edge

roof tile edge

179.58

179.56

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

177.66

177.65

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

176.52

176.55

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

176.71

176.70

TWL 173.9

TWL 175.0

TWL 176.1

DK

DK

DK

DK

DK

170.62

170.54

170.53

170.45

170.51

170.74

170.85

171.09

171.29

171.38

BT

G

G
170.46

170.49
IC cl 170.68

IC cl 170.68

G

app gully position

G

170.64

170.78

DK

DK

many cars parked along kerb at time of survey

DK

171.49
171.38

171.15

171.01

170.77

170.68

170.58

170.63

170.70

WSV

171.54

171.44
171.34

171.29

dr
ain

ag
e c

ha
nn

el

WSV

171.37

171.30

171.24

171.10

170.88

170.72

170.66

170.81

170.81

170.82

GSV

unknown
water

LP

170.73

IC cl 170.77

speed bump

speed bump170.68

170.68

IC cl 170.68

PLINTH

TP

RS

172.28

172.46

172.51

172.66

172.98

173.33

173.27

173.32

173.25

threshold
FL 173.67

173.34

173.15

172.96

173.03

172.95

172.77

172.72

172.61

172.53

172.29

172.69

172.28

172.49

172.52

brick wall

172.79

172.79

172.68

172.58

FL 172.67

171.46

171.45

area covered
171.40

171.37

171.34

171.36

171.49

171.48

conc ret wall

171.53

172.39

171.61

171.48

171.51

171.56

172.19

172.29

172.47

171.94

172.05

17
0.

75

171.25

171.50

171.75

17
2.

25

17
2.2

5

17
2.

50

172.25

172.50

17
1.0

0

17
2.0

0

17
2.0

0

172.00

brick wall

br
ick

 w
all

tactile

BOLT1

BOLT2

BOLT3 BOLT4

EXT6

RG1

RG2

RG20

RG21

RG22

RG3

RGSCR1

SIGNSC1

SIGNSC2SIGNSC3

SIGNSC4

SN1

SN2

SN3

SN6

SR1

SR2

SR21

SR22

SR23

SR3

SR4

SR5 SR6

VENTSC1

VENTSC2

w
w

w
.a

rm
s
u
rv

e
y
s
.c

o
.u

k

0
1
7
4
3
 2

4
8
2
6
5

286450N 286450N

286475N286475N

286400N

286375N286375N

39
76

00
E

39
76

00
E

39
76

25
E

39
76

50
E

39
76

75
E

39
77

25
E

2

15 Temple

8

29

Warehouse

PARK S
TR

EET

AVENUE ROAD

CARDALE STREET

5

1

7

AR
C

H
ER

 W
AY

32

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

15

15
16

16 17

18

19

20

10

11

12

12

13

14

14

48
00

22
52

VP

VP

11

C

C

B

B

B

B
B

C

C

B

A x 9

4.8m access road

Refuse
Collection
Point

Amenity Space
67sqm

C

Assu
med lin

e of se
wer e

asement

F.F.L. 172.00

F.F.L. 174.55

F.F.L. 172.50

F.F.L. 171.75

Single Storey

Single Storey

Two Storey

Two and a half Storey

Two Storey

Existing brick wall boundary

Existing brick wall boundary

Existing brick wall boundary

Existing brick wall boundary

Existing brick wall boundary

Existing brick wall boundary

LIDL Supermarket
car park

Refuse
Store

Amenity

4800

1500

F.F.L. 171.25

1-9

New brick pillars and timber
gates to bin store

Create new dropped kerb

Signage for
parking spaces for
resident's use only

.

.
. .

.
.

.
..

.

.
.

Resident's
parking court

Minor
Residential
Street

bollard

Resident's
parking court

Cycle Store
9 No. spaces

56
00

56
00

28
00

28
00

28
00

28
00

5600

2800

3799

3447

Signage for
parking spaces for
resident's use only

6101

700

700mm service
margin

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION

Ref Accommodation Area sqm No
A 1 bedroom 2 person flats 50 9
B 2 bedroom 4 person house 68 6
C 3 bedroom 5 person house 79.2 5

TOTAL 20
Flats to be common access, 3 storey

Car parking
100% for 1 and 2 bedroom units
200% for 3 bedroom units

Approx site area 0.35Ha
Density 57 dwellings/Ha

0m 5m 10m 15m 20m 25m

Type B
1500mm high vertical board timber fence

Type C
1800mm vertical board timber fence

Type A
900mm high ms railings
with litter plate plinth detail

Type D
1800mm overall height decorative timber fence
combining 300mm trellis to top

Boundary Treatments

TypeE
900mm high brick wall and piers with 900mm
high vertical board timber fence between piers

Existing brick wall boundaries are to be retained
where indicated.  Engineer to assess their condition.

Type F
2100mm high vertical board timber fence

Type G
450mm high timber knee rail

1800

450x450mm x 450mm deep
concrete foundation for timber post
set min 150mm below ground level
Foundations to Engineer's detail450x450mm x 450mm deep

concrete foundation for timber post
set min 150mm below ground level

15
0

Plan

Elevation

Section

100 x 100 mm concrete posts at
1800mm centres

All nails, screws, bolts etc. to
be sheradised

15
00

450450450

ground level

15
0

Posts - 100mm x 100mm

Palings - 100mm x 19mm

Fixing Rails - 75mm x 50mm

89
5

300mm gravel board

30
0

12
00

all fencing to be treated
with preservative prior to delivery
to site.

1800

450x450mm x 450mm deep
concrete foundation for timber post
set min 150mm below ground level
Foundations to Engineer's detail450x450mm x 450mm deep

concrete foundation for timber post
set min 150mm below ground level

15
0

Plan

Elevation

Section

100 x 100 mm concrete posts at
1800mm centres

All nails, screws, bolts etc. to
be sheradised

18
00

450450450

ground level

15
0

59
7

59
7

Posts - 100mm x 100mm

Palings - 100mm x 19mm

Fixing Rails - 75mm x 50mm

30
0

15
00

300mm gravel board

all fencing to be treated
with preservative prior to delivery
to site.

0m 5m

Cycle Store

. Indicates provision for future Electric Vehicle charging point

75 x 50 mm sw rails fixed
in between recess in concrete
post

100 x 19 mm close boarded fence
with 5 mm air spaces between to
one side only of fencing

1800

30
0 45

0
75

0

300mm gravel board

75
0

15
0

18
00

Plan

Elevation

Section

100 x 100 mm concrete posts at
1800mm centres

all fencing to be treated
with preservative prior to delivery
to site.

All nails, screws, bolts etc. to
be sheradised

60
0

21
50

ground level

450

450x450mm x 450mm deep
concrete foundation for timber post
set min 150mm below ground level
Foundations to Engineer's detail

450450

450x450mm x 450mm deep
concrete foundation for timber post
set min 150mm below ground level

Brickwork to match main
external finish of house

Brick on edge coping detail with
projecting course of brick below
(solid bricks to visible faces)

Elevation
garden level

Foundations and brick piers to Engineer's Details

Plan

440 2035 440

18
75

82
5

DPC 150mm above GL

Brick on edge capping detail with
projecting course of brick below

900mm close boarded treated
timber fence panel on top of wall
(infilled between brick piers)
Fence panel to outer face of wall to
prevent climbing

927

90
0

N

Site Layout Cardale Street
Rowley Regis

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates
Cardale Street, Rowley Regis
Site Layout

M4961 (PL) 01 L
1:250 @ A1
Nov 22
RW 

Scale 1:250

1500mm high fence detail 1800mm high fence detail

Scale 1:100

Front elevation of cycle store

F June 23 Fencing details added.

1800mm high decorative trellis topped fence

G July 23 Boundary treatments amended to suit Enrok's comments.
H Sept 23 Amendments to cycle and refuse stores, parking widths, addition of timber knee

rails and EV chargers. Flats amended to 50sqm. All to Planner's comments.

2100mm high fence detail

Wall and fence detail

J Sept 23 Parking spaces to houses dimensioned up.
K Sept 23 Minor amendments to suit Highways comments.
L Oct 23 New turning head extended, 700mm service strip added to suit Highways comments.

P
age 128



F/F

SVP

BATHROOM

LOUNGE

DINING

KITCHEN

BEDROOM

SVP

BATHROOM

STORESTORE

LOUNGE

KITCHEN / DINING

BEDROOM

SVP

BATHROOM

STORESTORE
LOUNGE

KITCHEN / DINING

HALL

HALL

13.2sqm

RISER

STAIR

BEDROOM
12.9sqm

HALL

METERS

STORE

STORE

PO
ST

F/F

SVP

BATHROOM

STORE

HALL

BEDROOMLOUNGE

DINING

KITCHEN

13.3sqm

BEDROOM

SVP

BATHROOM

STORESTORE

LOUNGE

KITCHEN / DINING

BEDROOM

SVP

BATHROOM

STORESTORE
LOUNGE

KITCHEN / DINING

HALL

HALL

13.2sqm

RISER

STAIR

OV 1sqm

0m 5m 10m

0m 5m 10m

F/F

SVP

BATHROOM

STORE

HALL

BEDROOMLOUNGE

DINING

KITCHEN

13.3sqm

BEDROOM

SVP

BATHROOM

STORESTORE

LOUNGE

KITCHEN / DINING

BEDROOM

SVP

BATHROOM

STORESTORE
LOUNGE

KITCHEN / DINING

HALL

HALL

13.2sqm

RISER

STAIR

OV 1sqm

STORE

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates
Cardale Street, Rowley Regis
Type A Floor Plans Plots 1-9

M4961 (PL) 05 F
1:50/100 @ A1
Jan 2023
RW

Type A
1 bed 2 person flat @ 50sqm

Cardale Street
Rowley Regis

Ground Floor Plan
Scale 1:50

First Floor Plan Second Floor Plan Roof Plan

A Jan 23 Communal corridor reduced at upper levels at TLA request.

Scale 1:50

B Feb 23 Communal corridor reverted back to previous design at TLA request.
C June 23 Apartment sizes amended at TLA request.
D June 23 Minor window position changes to suit updated elevations.

Scale 1:100

E June 23 Second scale bar added at request of Planning.

Scale 1:100

F Sept 23 Apartments increased to 50sqm at request of Planning.

P
age 129



Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

45.0°

Non-glazed
panel

Obscure
glazing

Non-glazed
panel

Non-glazed
panel

MATERIALS LEGEND

Red Multi Brickwork

Red Smooth Brickwork Stack Bond

Through Colour Silicone Render

0m 5m 10m
Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

35.0°

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates
Cardale Street, Rowley Regis
Type A Elevations Plots 1-9

M4961 (PL) 06 D
1:50/1:100 @ A1
Jan 2023
RW

Type A
1 bed 2 person flat @ 50sqm

Cardale Street
Rowley Regis

Elevation to Cardale Street
Scale 1:50

Elevation to new access road

Elevation to car parking
Scale 1:100

Gable Elevation
Scale 1:100

A Jan 23 Communal corridor reduced at upper levels at TLA request.

Scale 1:50

B Jun 23 Changes to elevations to suit reduced floor areas.

Scale 1:100

C June 23 Second scale bar added at request of Planning.
D Sept 23 Elevations amended to suit increase to 50sqm.

P
age 130



S/S

W.C.

F/F

DININGKITCHEN

STORE

LOUNGE

HALL

S/S

W.C.

F/F

HALL

LOUNGE

STORE

DINING KITCHEN

F/F

SVP

W.C.

HALL

LOUNGE

STORE

DINING KITCHEN

BEDROOM 3

6.53sqm

BEDROOM 2

10.22sqm

BEDROOM 1

10.27sqm

BATHROOM

B-HEAD

STORE

STORE

LANDING LANDING

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

10.27sqm

STORE

B-HEAD

STORE

BEDROOM 3

6.53sqm

BEDROOM 2

10.22sqm

SVP

BEDROOM 1

10.97sqm

B-HEAD

STORE

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

12sqm

LANDING

SVP

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Floor Plans Plots 10-12

M4961 (PL) 07 A

1:50 @ A1

Jan 2023

RW

Type B

2 bed 4 person house @ 68sqm

Cardale Street

Rowley Regis

Ground Floor Plan

Type C

3 bed 5 person house @ 79.2sqm

First Floor Plan

10 (B)11 (C)12 (C)

Scale 1:50

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.

P
age 131



MATERIALS LEGEND

Red Multi Brickwork

Red Smooth Brickwork Stack Bond

Through Colour Silicone Render

Obscure

glazing

Obscure

glazing

3

0

.
0

°

Obscure

glazing

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Elevations Plots 13-14

M4961 (PL) 10 A

1:50 @ A1

Jan 2023

RW

Cardale Street

Rowley Regis

Front Elevation Rear Elevation

Gable Elevation to Plot 13 Gable Elevation to Plot 14

Type B

2 bed 4 person house @ 68sqm

Type C

3 bed 5 person house @ 79.2sqm

Scale 1:50

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.

P
age 132



MATERIALS LEGEND

Red Multi Brickwork

Red Smooth Brickwork Stack Bond

Through Colour Silicone Render

Obscure

glazing

Obscure

glazing

Obscure

glazing

Obscure

glazing

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Elevations Plots 10-12

M4961 (PL) 08 B

1:50 @ A1

Jan 2023

RW

Cardale Street

Rowley Regis

Front Elevation Rear Elevation

Gable Elevation to Plot 10 Gable Elevation to Plot 12

Type B

2 bed 4 person house @ 68sqm

Type C

3 bed 5 person house @ 79.2sqm

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.

Scale 1:50

B June 23 Scale bar added at request of Planning.

P
age 133



S/S

W.C.

F/F

DININGKITCHEN

STORE

LOUNGE

HALL

F/F

SVP

W.C.

HALL

LOUNGE

STORE

DINING KITCHEN

BEDROOM 3

6.56sqm

BEDROOM 2

10.22sqm

BEDROOM 1

10.27sqm

BATHROOM

B-HEAD

STORE

STORE

LANDING

SVP

BEDROOM 1

11sqm

B-HEAD

STORE

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

12.28sqm

LANDING

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Floor Plans Plots 13-14

M4961 (PL) 09 A

1:50 @ A1

Jan 2023

RW

Type B

2 bed 4 person house @ 68sqm

Cardale Street

Rowley Regis

Ground Floor Plan

Type C

3 bed 5 person house @ 79.2sqm

First Floor Plan

13 (B)14 (C)

Scale 1:50

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.

P
age 134



S/S

W.C.

F/F

DININGKITCHEN

STORE

LOUNGE

HALL

S/S

W.C.

F/F

HALL

LOUNGE

STORE

DINING KITCHEN

BEDROOM 3

6.53sqm

BEDROOM 2

10.25sqm

BEDROOM 1

10.27sqm

BATHROOM

B-HEAD

STORE

STORE

LANDING LANDING

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

10.27sqm

STORE

B-HEAD

STORE

BEDROOM 3

6.53sqm

BEDROOM 2

10.25sqm

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Floor Plans Plots 15-16

M4961 (PL) 11 A

1:50 @ A1

Jan 2023

RW

Cardale Street

Rowley Regis

Ground Floor Plan

Type C

3 bed 5 person house @ 79.2sqm

First Floor Plan

1615

Scale 1:50

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.

P
age 135



42.0°

MATERIALS LEGEND

Red Multi Brickwork

Red Smooth Brickwork Stack Bond

Through Colour Silicone Render

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

30.0°

Obscure
glazing

Obscure
glazing

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates
Cardale Street, Rowley Regis
Elevations Plots 15-16

M4961 (PL) 12 B
1:50 @ A1
Jan 2023
RW

Cardale Street
Rowley Regis

Front Elevation Rear Elevation

Gable Elevation to Plot 15 Gable Elevation to Plot 16

Type C
3 bed 5 person house @ 79.2sqm

Scale 1:50

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.
B Sept 23 Render continued round gable at request of Planners.

P
age 136



F/F

SVP

DININGKITCHEN

W.C.

LOUNGE

HALL

STORE

F/F

SVP

W.C.

HALL

LOUNGE

STORE

DINING KITCHEN

F/F

SVP

DININGKITCHEN

W.C.

LOUNGE

HALL

STORE

F/F

SVP

W.C.

HALL

LOUNGE

STORE

DINING KITCHEN

SVP

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

B-HEAD

STORE

BEDROOM 2

10.97sqm

12sqm

SVP

BEDROOM 1

10.97sqm

B-HEAD

STORE

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

12sqm

LANDING LANDING

SVP

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1

B-HEAD

STORE

BEDROOM 2

10.97sqm

12sqm

SVP

BEDROOM 1

10.97sqm

B-HEAD

STORE

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 2

12sqm

LANDING LANDING

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Floor Plans Plots 17-20

M4961 (PL) 13 A

1:50 @ A1

Jan 2023

RW

Type B

2 bed 4 person house @ 68sqm

Cardale Street

Rowley Regis

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan

17 18 19 20

Scale 1:50

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.

P
age 137



4

5

.

0

°

MATERIALS LEGEND

Red Multi Brickwork

Red Smooth Brickwork Stack Bond

Through Colour Silicone Render

Obscure

glazing

3

0

.
0

°

Obscure

glazing

3

0

.
0

°

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas

architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators

Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639

Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS

t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before

preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the

copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever

without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas

Job:

Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:

Date:

Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:

(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates

Cardale Street, Rowley Regis

Elevations Plots 17-20

M4961 (PL) 14 A

1:50 @ A1

Jan 2023

RW

Cardale Street

Rowley Regis

Front Elevation Rear Elevation

Gable Elevation to Plot 20 Gable Elevation to Plot 17

Type B

2 bed 4 person house @ 68sqm

Scale 1:50

A June 23 Drawing issued for Planning.

P
age 138



45.0°

28
60

37
95

0m 5m 10m

nicol thomas
architects     project managers     construction cost consultants     CDM co-ordinators
Registered in England and Wales. Reg No. 2140639
Quality Assured to BS EN ISO 9001:1994 Certificate Number GB 4723

Heyside House  Blackshaw Lane   Heyside   Royton   Oldham   OL2 6NS
t:01706 290088  f:01706 290099 e:oldham@nicolthomas.com

Also at Birmingham (Registered office)

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions must be checked and verified before
preparing production drawings or commencing works. This drawing and its design is the
copyright of Nicol Thomas Ltd and may not be reproduced in any form whatsoever
without their prior express written consent.

Revision Date Details

nicol thomas
Job:
Client:

Drawing title:

Drawing Number:

Scale:
Date:
Drawn by/ checked by:

Revision:
(Job number)

Taylor Land Associates
Cardale Street, Rowley Regis
Cardale Street Elevation

M4961 (PL) 15
1:100 @ A1
Jun 2023
RW

Type A
1 bed 2 person flat @ 50sqm

Cardale Street
Rowley Regis

Street Scene along Cardale Street
Scale 1:100

Scale 1:100

P
age 139



P
age 140



2

15 Temple

23

29

Warehouse

PARK S
TR

EET

AVENUE ROAD

CARDALE STREET

5

1

AR
C

H
ER

 W
AY

1-9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

15

15

16

16
17

18

19

20

10

11

12

12

13

14

14

vp

vp

11

F.F.L. 171.25

F.F.L. 172.00

F.F.L. 174.55

F.F.L. 172.50

F.F.L. 171.75

PLP

rid
ge

 18
3.0

5

rid
ge

 18
2.9

5

u/s guttering

u/s guttering

179.02

179.18

DK
DK DK

DK

DK

174.59

174.60

174.61
174.61

17
4.

63
17

4.
62

17
4.5

8
174.50

174.39 174.34 174.22 174.18 174.09 174.02 173.96
173

.90
17

3.8
5 17

3.7
81

73
.75

17
3.7

0

17
3.6

4
17

3.5
8

174.54

174.71
174.75

174.73

174.44

174.14

174.10

174.32
RS

174.59

174.65

174.76
174.77

174.76

||

A/B

174.74

174.79

wash out

bitmac

174.69

LP
174.28

174.20

RS

CATV

BT

WSV
GSV

173.72

173.79

173.80173.80

S/S 2.2mh

173.89 173.88

173.85

173.97

174.06

174.48

DK
DK

17
3.7

0

17
3.8

0

17
3.8

1

173
.83

173.88

174.02

174.11
174.17

174.28

G
173.90

TWL 175.0

TWL 174.6

all
 D

K

DK

17
2.6

7

17
2.6

4

172.59

172.73

173.14

173.43

173.80

173.93

approximate wall remains

172.60

172.62
172.63

172.62

172.60
172.69

172.64

172.55

172.54

172.56

172.70

172.57

172.54

172.53

172.45

172.56 172.72

172.55

172.45

172.20

stump

172.63

172.65
172.62

172.64

172.67

172.70

172.65

172.50

concrete

172.75

172.72

172.89

173.63

173.58

||

||

||

||

||

S/S 2.2mh
173.78

174.06

bitmac

173.34

172.81

172.89

172.93

173.27

173.54
173.53

173.60

173.67

173.93

174.04174.06

174.05

concrete

173.22

174.00

MS
post

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

S/S
 2.

2m
h

C/L 1.8mh

174.06

174.05

174.25

174.46

175.06

174.42

173.90

173.71

173.35

unstable brick wall

unable to define end of wall

172.70

172.78

172.89

173.23
173.34

173.69

173.99

174.01

stump

approximate tree position

approximate tree position

172.69
172.57

172.30

IC cl 172.71
172.51

172.30

172.68

172.61

172.48

172.29

172.16

172.18

172.31

TWL 175.0

TWL 175.9

TWL 174.3

TWL 174.2

ridge 179.00

ridge 178.94

ridge 182.51

ridge 181.53

ridge 18
2.87

ridge 18
2.81

ridge 1
82.

46
ridge 1

82.
47 ridg

e 1
83.

05ridg
e 1

82.
97

ridg
e 1

83.
08

ridg
e 1

83.
14

ridg
e 1

81.
83

ridg
e 1

81.
85

ridge 181.09
ridge 181.07

roof tile edge
179.18

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

179.02

179.00

u/s guttering

u/s guttering

179.49

179.52

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

178.52

178.53

roof tile edge
179.44

roof tile edge
179.75

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

177.23

177.21

edge of corrugate

edge of corrugate

175.28

175.30

ridge 177.91

ridge 177.95

ridge 179.43

ridge 179.38

u/s guttering

roof tile edge

178.90

179.01

top of possible flat roof
TWL 176.7

TWL 177.0

TWL 177.0

threshold
FL 172.15

172.14

172.10

assumed il 171.49

IC chamber full of debris

aasumed sump 171.39

level on frame 172.19

172.15

172.07

172.12

172.14

172.25

172.10

172.09

172.14

172.06

172.04
172.05

172.25
172.37

172.39
172.38

172.31

172.30
172.28

172.27
172.12

172.16

172.18

172.22
172.17

172.16
172.24

172.22
172.15

172.11
172.06

172.07

172.08
remains of wall

172.09

172.07

172.07

171.94
172.07

||

||

||

||

||

assu
med wall p

ositio
n here

V/C 3.0mh

172.19

172.17

172.15remains of hedge

172.08

172.19

172.08

172.13

172.02

IC cl 172.00

WSV

171.86

IC cl 171.89

171.59

IC cl 171.90

171.89

171.94

remains of wall

171.91
171.97

171.85

171.92

rain water pipe

172.07
172.07

172.08

172.00171.90

171.94

171.88
171.88

171.84
171.85

171.86

171.76
171.76

171.65

171.77

171.73

remains of wall

171.61

171.72

171.64

171.65

171.63

171.59

171.58

171.62

concrete

concrete

171.63

171.71

171.36

brick wall

171.48

171.41

171.36

171.29

171.25

171.25

171.23

171.25

171.25

171.17

171.13

171.08

171.06
171.03

170.87

170.71

170.95

170.71170.67

170.68

170.65

concrete

170.73

ap
pr

ox
im

ate
 br

ok
en

 co
nc

ret
e e

dg
e p

os
itio

n

170.97

170.90

170.58

170.63

170.67

170.67

170.74

170.79

170.95

171.10

171.23

171.36
171.36

171.40

171.39

171.45171.43

171.88

171.62
171.57

171.76
171.63

171.47

171.46

171.44
171.35

mound

171.20

171.34

171.42

171.36 171.33

171.16

171.10

171.05

171.08
171.09

171.27

171.23

171.05

mound

171.02

171.09

171.13

171.10

171.01

170.94

170.91

170.96

170.78

IC cl 170.76

IC cl 170.87

IC cl 171.03

170.89

171.15

IC cl 171.36

level on conc surround 171.33

172.28

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

173.59

173.59

ridge 175.39

ridge 175.39

ridge 179.47

ridge 179.46

u/s guttering

roof tile edge

176.96

177.01

u/s guttering
174.88

TWL 175.1

TWL 176.2

TWL 174.9

TWL 174.5

TWL 174.9

TWL 173.5

173.89

173.69

173.65

173.32

172.98

172.02

171.98

171.95

172.12

171.90

171.83
171.71

171.69

171.71

171.45
171.46

171.46
171.45

171.46

171.45

171.45
171.45

171.45

171.45

171.45

171.48

171.45

concrete

171.46

unstable brick wall

171.46
171.46

171.56

171.52

stump

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

||

P/
F 2

.2
mh

172.56

172.23

172.02

171.70

171.51

171.46

171.52

171.56

171.44
171.42

171.35

171.37

171.49
171.48

171.46 T

171.38
171.39

171.42

171.37
171.33

171.23
171.29

171.19
171.20

171.20
171.18

171.14

170.99
171.07

171.00 171.02

170.75

170.72

171.11

WSV

IC cl 171.44

171.29

171.30

171.20

171.20

171.27

171.25

171.27

171.34

171.30

171.37

171.38

171.44

171.40
171.39

171.37

171.54

171.47

171.41

171.41

concrete

171.32

co
nc

 ed
ge

 st
rip

||

I/R
 1.

4m
h

ridge 178.99

ridge 178.54

ridge 178.55

ridg
e 1

81.
82

ridg
e 1

81.
87

ridg
e 1

81.
89ridg

e 1
81.

84

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

178.40

178.41
roof tile edge

roof tile edge

179.58

179.56

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

176.52

176.55

roof tile edge

roof tile edge

176.71

176.70

TWL 173.9

TWL 175.0

TWL 176.1

DK

DK

DK

DK

170.62

170.54

170.53

170.45

170.51

170.74

170.85

171.09

BT

G

G
170.46

170.49
IC cl 170.68

IC cl 170.68

G

app gully position

G

170.64

170.78

DK

DK

many cars parked along kerb at time of survey

DK

171.49
171.38

171.15

171.01

170.77

170.68

170.58

170.63

170.70

WSV

171.54

171.44
171.34

171.29

dr
ain

ag
e c

ha
nn

el

WSV

171.37

171.30
171.24

171.10

170.88

170.72

170.66

170.81

170.81

170.82

GSV

unknown
water

LP

170.73

IC cl 170.77

speed bump

speed bump170.68

170.68

IC cl 170.68

PLINTH

RS

172.28

172.46

172.51

172.66

172.98

173.33

172.91

173.18

173.27

173.32

173.25

threshold
FL 173.67

173.34

173.15

172.96

173.03

172.95

172.77

172.72

172.61

172.53

172.29

172.69

172.28

172.49

172.52

brick wall

172.79

172.79

172.68

172.58

FL 172.67

171.46

171.45

area covered
171.40

171.37

171.34

171.36

171.49

171.48

conc ret wall

171.53

172.39

171.61

171.48

171.51

171.56

172.19

172.29

172.47

171.94

172.05

17
0.

75

171.25

171.50

171.75

17
2.

25

17
2.2

5

17
2.

50
172

.25

172.50

17
1.0

0

17
2.0

0

17
2.0

0

172
.00

brick wall

bri
ck

 w
all

tactile

BOLT3 BOLT4

EXT6

RG1

RG2

RG22

RG3

RGSCR1

SN1

SN2

SN3

SN6

SR1

SR2

SR23

SR3

SR4

SR5 SR6

VENTSC1

VENTSC2

w
w

w
.a

rm
s
u
rv

e
y
s
.c

o
.u

k

0
1
7
4
3
 2

4
8
2
6
5

286450N

286475N286475N

286400N

286375N286375N

39
76

00
E

39
76

00
E

39
76

25
E

39
76

25
E

39
76

50
E

39
76

75
E

39
77

25
E

FFL 171.250

FFL
172.000

FFL 171.750

FF
L

17
2.

50
0

FF
L

17
2.

50
0

FF
L

17
4.

55
0

/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /

/ /
 / 

/ /
 / 

/ /
 /

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40
.0

00

44
.8

70

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

35.000

35.386

173.970

173.944
173.935

173.937
173.945

173.954

173.962

173.965

173.963

173.954

173.940

173.919

173.893

173.860

173.822

173.777

173.729

173.682

173.634

173.586

173.539

173.491

173.444

173.396

173.348

173.301

173.253

173.238

173.228

173.205

173.158

173.110

173.063

173.015

172.967

172.920

172.872

172.825

172.806

170.525

170.575

170.625

170.675

170.725

170.775

170.824

170.869

170.912

170.952

170.989

171.023

171.055

171.083

171.109

171.131

171.153

171.174

171.184

171.184

17
1.2

03
17

1.
21

8
17

1.
22

7
17

1.
23

1

17
1.

22
9

17
1.

22
2

17
1.

21
0

17
1.

19
3

17
1.

17
2

17
1.

14
7

17
1.

12
2

17
1.

09
7

17
1.

07
2

171.091

171.112

171.133

171.155

171.176

171.201

171.226

171.251

171.277 171.306 171.337
171.369

171.402

171.434

171.465

171.494

171.520

171.552

17
1.

58
2

17
1.

60
3

17
1.

62
5

17
1.

64
6

17
1.

66
7

17
1.

68
9

17
1.

71
0

17
1.

73
1

17
1.

75
2

171.775 171.800 171.827

170.700

170.750

170.800

170.850

170.900

170.950

170.999

171.044

171.087

171.127

171.164

171.198

171.230

171.258

171.284

171.306

171.328

171.349

171.359

171.359

17
1.3

78
17

1.
39

3
17

1.
40

2
17

1.
40

6
17

1.
40

4
17

1.
39

7

17
1.

38
5

17
1.

36
8

17
1.

34
7

17
1.

32
2

17
1.

29
7

17
1.

27
2

17
1.

24
6

171.246

171.266

171.287

171.308

171.330

171.348

171.348

171.351

171.376

171.401

171.426

171.452

171.481 171.512 171.544
171.577
171.609

171.640

171.669

171.695

171.727

17
1.

75
7

17
1.

77
8

17
1.

80
0

17
1.

82
1

17
1.

84
2

17
1.

86
4

17
1.

88
5

17
1.

90
6

17
1.

92
7

17
1.

94
2

171.942
171.950 171.975 172.002

173.725 173.753 173.776 173.797 173.815

173.831

173.842

173.845

173.843

173.834

173.820

173.799

173.773

173.740

173.702

173.657

173.609

173.562

173.514

173.466

173.419

173.371

173.324

173.276

173.228

173.181

173.133

173.118

173.048

173.025

172.978

172.930

172.883

172.835

172.787

172.740

172.692

172.645

172.626

171.184

171.205

171.227

171.248

171.269

171.290

171.312

171.333

171.354

171.376

171.397

171.418

171.439

171.461

171.482

171.503

171.524

17
1.5

46

17
1.

56
7

17
1.

58
8

17
1.

61
0

17
1.

63
1

17
1.

65
2

17
1.

67
3

17
1.

69
5

17
1.

71
6

17
1.

73
7

17
1.

75
9

171.782171.807
171.827

170.525

170.575

170.625

170.675

170.725

170.775

170.824

170.869

170.912

170.952

170.989

171.023

171.055

171.083

171.109

171.131

171.153

171.174

171.184

170.700

170.750

170.800

170.850

170.900

170.950

170.999

171.044

171.087

171.127

171.164

171.198

171.230

171.258

171.284

171.306

171.328

171.349

171.359

171.359

171.380

171.402

171.423

171.444

171.465

171.487

171.508

171.529

171.551

171.572

171.593

171.614

171.636

171.657

171.678

171.699

17
1.7

21

17
1.

74
2

17
1.

76
3

17
1.

78
5

17
1.

80
6

17
1.

82
7

17
1.

84
8

17
1.

87
0

17
1.

89
1

17
1.

91
2

17
1.

93
4

17
1.

94
2

17
2.

65

17
2.

67
17

2.
70

17
2.

72

17
2.

75

17
2.

7817
2.

80
17

2.
82

17
2.

85

17
2.

88

17
2.

90

17
2.

92

17
2.

9517
2.

97

17
3.

0017
3.

03
17

3.
0517

3.
07

17
3.

10

17
3.

13

17
3.

15

17
3.

17

17
3.

20

17
3.

22

17
3.

25

17
3.

28

17
3.

30

17
3.

32

17
3.

35

17
3.

38

17
3.

40

17
3.

42

17
3.

45

17
3.

47

17
3.

50

17
3.

53

17
3.

55

17
3.

57

17
3.

60

17
3.

63

17
3.

65

17
3.

67

17
3.

70

17
3.

72

17
3.

75

173.78

17
3.

78

173.80

17
3.

80

173.82

17
3.

82

173.85

173.88

173.90

173.92

173.95

170.55

17
0.

55

170.58

17
0.

58

17
0.

6017
0.

63

17
0.

6517
0.

68

17
0.

7017
0.

72

17
0.

7517
0.

78

17
0.

8017
0.

83

17
0.

8517
0.

88
17

0.
9017

0.
93

17
0.

95
17

0.
9717

1.
00

17
1.

03

17
1.

0517
1.

08

171.08

17
1.

10

171.10

17
1.

13

171.13

17
1.

15

171.15

17
1.

18

17
1.

18 171.18

17
1.

20

171.20

171.20

17
1.

20

17
1.

20

171.20

17
1.

22

171.22

171.22

17
1.

22

171.22

17
1.

25

171.25

17
1.

25

171.25

17
1.

28

171.28

17
1.

28

171.28

171.28

17
1.

30

171.30

17
1.

30

171.30

171.30

171.33

17
1.

33

171.33

171.33

171.35

17
1.

35

171.35

171.35

171.38

17
1.

38

171.38

171.40

17
1.

40

171.40

171.43171.43
171.45

171.45

171.45

17
1.

47

17
1.

50

17
1.

53

17
1.

55

17
1.

58

17
1.

60

17
1.

63

17
1.

65

17
1.

68

17
1.

70

171.72

17
1.

75

171.78

17
1.

78

17
1.

78

171.78

17
1.

78

171.80

17
1.

80

17
1.

80

171.8017
1.

80

171.83

17
1.

83

17
1.

83

171.83

17
1.

83
17

1.
85

17
1.

85

17
1.

85

171.85

17
1.

88

17
1.

88

17
1.

88

171.88

171.90

171.90

17
1.

93

17
1.

93

17
1.

95

171.95

17
1.

97

17
2.

00

/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / /

/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /

/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /

DRAWING NUMBER

PROJECT

TITLE

SCALE

DATE

SIZE CHECKED

DRAWN

REVISION

CLIENT

DRAWING STATUS:

A1

DJH

Cardale Street,
Rowley Regis

1:200

14.09.23

23005-100

©  This drawing is the copyright of the Engineers and may not be
reproduced or used except by written permission.

Drawings must not be scaled. Work to figured dimensions only

Notes

External Levels Strategy

DRAWING STATUS:

REV AMENDMENTDATE BY

MUCKLOW & HARRIS
CONSULTING CIVIL & STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

HM&

PRELIMINARY

RAA

N

S

EW

NENW

SW SE

MAGNETIC
NORTH

Scale 1:200

420m 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20

.

- Retaining Feature

+155.000 - Proposed Levels

- Existing Levels

FFL 155.00 - Finished Floor Level

RF

KEY

NO ALLOWANCE HAS BEEN MADE FOR TANKING
OR EXPOSED BRICKWORK ON THIS STRATEGY

External Levels Strategy

1. Any existing details which are shown on this drawing are for guidance
only and are to be checked on site by the contractor. Any variations are
to be recorded and reported to the Engineer immediately.

2. Design is subject to Building Regulation, Sewage Undertaker and
Highways Department approval.

3. Before work commences contractor should consult the Engineer and
the SI report regarding any contamination issues. All necessary Health
and Safety measures to be taken.

4. All substrata structures and unconsolidated material, within the
construction width of the highway, are to be removed

5. Cover levels for manholes are approximate only and should be
adjusted to match surrounding levels

6. The developer shall take CBR test of road formation levels and results
to be made available to the Engineer for approval.

7. Approved weedkiller to be applied as recommended to footway
formation and sub-base. Application by trained operative wearing PPE
and complying with COSHH requirements.

8. Any soft spots discovered after proof rolling shall be removed and
replaced with suitable engineering fill.

9. The surface tolerances to the sub base layer thickness should be no
more than +5mm or -30mm.

10. New road levels to tie in smoothly with existing road. Levels to be
confirmed prior to construction and reported to the Engineer.

11. Tarmac road construction to comply with BS.EN.130108. Threshold
drainage is required where levels fall towards a building entrance.
Architect to confirm if not required.

12. Yard Gully positions are indicative and should be adjusted on site to
suit proposed levels.

13. All gully positions to suit low points and to be trapped.
14. Drainage channel detailed design to be undertaken by manufacturers.

P
age 141

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
IP2-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
IP2-2

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
IP2-3

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
IP1-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
  154.000



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to Planning Committee 

29 November 2023 

Application Reference DC/23/68497 

Application Received 31st July 2023 

Application Description Retention of replacement boundary treatment, 

removal of external rear wall, single storey rear 

extension, and raising of existing roof height. 

Application Address 10 Jowetts Lane 

West Bromwich 

B71 2RA 

Applicant Mr Simon Bagri 

Ward Hateley Heath 

Contact Officer  Beth Astley-Serougi 

Beth_AstleySerougi@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That retrospective planning permission is granted subject to conditions 

relating to: 

(i) Within 3 months of permission being granted details of external

materials to match existing shall be provided;

(ii) Within 3 months of permission being granted details of colour

coated and perforated shutters to be submitted and approved prior

to development coming into use.

Page 143

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Beth_AstleySerougi@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(iii)  Within 3 months of permission being granted details of refuse 

storage to be submitted and approved prior to development coming 

into use and then retained. 

(iv)  The extension shall be use for storage purposes only. 

(v)  Within 3 months of the permission being granted details of the 

windows to the rear elevation, to include obscure glazing shall be 

provided and retained as such. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposed development would be of satisfactory design and would 

not significantly impact the amenity of neighbouring properties. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 

4 Context  

 

4.1 The application is being reported to your planning committee because 

four objections have been received. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

10 Jowetts Lane, West Bromwich  

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this application 

are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy,  

Design concerns - appearance and materials, wider visual amenity and 

overdevelopment 

Page 144

https://www.google.com/maps/place/10+Jowetts+Ln,+West+Bromwich+B71+2QX/@52.5394475,-2.0001943,43m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870986d988ba9f1:0xa18f390c9d4bb8ed!8m2!3d52.5394653!4d-1.9999319!16s%2Fg%2F11bytnvlyr?entry=ttu


 

Highways considerations - Traffic generation, access, highway safety, 

parking and servicing 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is located in a mixed-use area of West Bromwich. It 

is a detached property with commercial use on the ground floor and a 2 

bedroom flat on the first floor.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The application site was the subject of enforcement complaint (ref: 

ENF/23/11996) when works commenced in March 2023 to the existing 

boundary walls of the property.  The investigations concluded that 

planning permission was required for the works being carried out and 

works have no stopped pending this planning decision. 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications/advert consents are as follows: 

 

DC/08/49910 Proposed first floor 

extension over stairwell to 

accommodate stairs. 

Grant Permission – 

September 2008 

DC/08/5585A Proposed replacement 
fascia signs. 

Grant Advertisement 
Consent – September 
2008 

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant is seeking retrospective planning permission for the 

replacement of the boundary treatment, removal of external rear wall, a 

single storey rear extension and raising of existing roof height (the latter 

is yet to be constructed).   

 

8.2    The single storey rear extension measures 4.7m in width and 2.4m in 

depth and incorporates two rear entrance doors.  

 

Page 145



 

8.3    The creation of one flat roof would replace the current multiple roofs that 

cover the space. The roof height would be increase by approximately 

1.4m at maximum, resulting in a total height of 3.8m.  

 

8.4    The replacement of the boundary treatment includes two roller shutter 

which measure 4.1m in width and 1.95m in height. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter with 

four objections being received.    

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Highways matters including access issues to garages, insufficient 

parking provision, increased traffic generation, displacement of 

parking onto the pavements. Increases in staff would negatively 

impact parking provision. 

ii) Inadequate waste storage; Query regarding the information 

provided on the application form.  

iii) Noise disturbance to neighbouring properties. 

iv) Loss of privacy for neighbouring properties opposite due to the 

addition of roller shutters on the side elevation.  

v) Hours of opening and the resulting negative impact upon 

residential properties. 

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses  

 

10.1 Highways  

 

Page 146



 

No objections, however concerns were raised about refuse.  Details 

have subsequently been provided for the proposed refuse area and final 

details can be conditioned accordingly. 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

  

11.2 The same guidance refers to development adding to the overall quality 

of the area by achieving high quality design, achieving good architecture 

and layouts. 

 

11.3  The same guidance also promotes sustainable transport options for 

development proposals and paragraph 111 states that developments 

should be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

SAD DM8: Design and Installation of Shop Fronts Roller Shutters 

 

12.3 ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments. The proposed layout and design are 

considered to be acceptable and improves the overall visual appearance 

of the development. 

 

12.4  SAD DM8 refers to the installation and design of Shop Front Roller 

Shutters ensuring they do not detract from the visual amenity of the 

Page 147



 

surrounding area and are colour coated and semi-perforated. A condition 

has been recommended as such. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Amenity concerns – Loss of Privacy, Waste Storage, Noise 

Disturbance and Opening Hours 

 

With regard to concerns about loss of privacy, the two roller shutters that 

are located on the side elevation on Jowetts Lane are at ground level, 

furthermore given the distance of the flats above the businesses 

opposite, it is considered that they will not have a significant impact upon 

their privacy. 

 

Turning to the windows proposed on the rear elevation, these would not 

result in any direct overlooking, however a condition has been 

recommended to incorporate obscure glazing to ensure surrounding 

amenity is protected. 

 

In relation to waste storage at the site, details are provided and can be 

conditioned as such.   

 

The application does not concern the use of the property, as the 

proposal relates to storage serving the existing retail store. Therefore, 

opening hours and noise disturbance resulting from this are not relevant 

to the assessment of this application. 

 

13.3 Design concerns  

 

The wall as built is considered to be in keeping in terms of materials and 

height to the surrounding area.  The openings which will serve the roller 

shutters are proportionate in size to the development and are in keeping 

Page 148



 

with the surrounding commercial properties serving this area. The raising 

of the roof height would consolidate the existing ‘patchwork’ roofs that 

are present and so would visually improve the appearance of the 

buildings to the rear of the existing shop. The addition of two windows on 

the side elevation breaks up the brickwork and adds interests within the 

street scene.  

 

13.4 Highways concerns 

 

Highways have no objections in relation to parking and road safety.  The 

development does not impact upon the existing vehicular access to the 

rear of the site.  Parking provision would not increase as a consequence 

of the storage area as the retail floor area is not increasing.  

 

Concerns were raised regarding the space allocated for refuse and 

ensuring this would be retained. Details have been provided and a 

condition is recommended to seek final detail and retention. 

 

14. Conclusion 

  

 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

 

 

 

 

Page 149



 

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Location and Block Plans - 70012-04-01 

Existing Ground Floor Plan - 70012-04-02 

 Existing First Floor Plan - 70012-04-03 

Existing Elevations Plan - 70012-04-04 

Proposed Ground Floor Plan – 70012-04-05 REV A 

Proposed First Floor Plan – 70012-04-06 

Proposed Elevations Plan - 70012-04-08 

 

Page 150



Scale (@ A3) -

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

DRAWING NUMBER REV

PROJECT

SHEET
As indicated

LOCATION, SITE AND BLOCK PLAN

10 Jowetts Ln, La, West Bromwich B71 2QX
Owner

23.02.23

RC

JG
70012 - 04 - 01

No. Description Date

125m62.520100
1 : 1250

40m201050
1 : 500 North

1 : 1250
lOCATION PLAN 1.1250

 1 : 500
lOCATION PLAN 1.500

1 : 1250
BLOCK PLAN 1.1250

Jowetts L
ane

Jowetts L
ane

Jowetts L
ane

Lynton Ave

Allerton Lane
Allerton Lane

Lynton Ave

Allerton Lane

Lynton Ave

P
age 151



U
P

Shop

W/C

Stores

Scale (@ A3) -

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

DRAWING NUMBER REV

PROJECT

SHEET
 1 : 100

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

10 Jowetts Ln, La, West Bromwich B71 2QX
Owner

23.02.23

RC

JG
70012 - 04 - 02

No. Description Date

10m5210
1 : 100

North

Existing Ground Floor Plan. 1:100

Area of u
nsafe wa

ll

Area of u
nsafe wa

ll

Ar
ea
 o
f 

un
sa
fe
 w
al
l

Area of unsafe w
all

Bounda
ry Wall

P
age 152



D
N

Conservatory

Bedroom 1
Living Room

Kitchen
Bedroom 2

Bathroom

Stairs

Scale (@ A3) -

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

DRAWING NUMBER REV

PROJECT

SHEET
 1 : 100

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR

10 Jowetts Ln, La, West Bromwich B71 2QX
Owner

23.02.23

RC

JG
70012 - 04 - 03

No. Description Date

10m5210
1 : 100

Existing First Floor Plan. 1:100 North

P
age 153



Scale (@ A3) -

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

DRAWING NUMBER REV

PROJECT

SHEET
 1 : 100

EXISITNG ELEVATIONS

10 Jowetts Ln, La, West Bromwich B71 2QX
Owner

23.02.23

RC

JG
70012 - 04 - 04

No. Description Date

10m5210
1 : 100

 1 : 100
Existing East Elevation

 1 : 100
Existing North Elevation

 1 : 100
Existing South Elevation

P
age 154



U
P

Stores

Shop

W/C

Refuse

Scale (@ A3) -

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

DRAWING NUMBER REV

PROJECT

SHEET
 1 : 100

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

10 Jowetts Ln, La, West Bromwich B71 2QX
Owner

26.07.23

RC

JG
70012 - 04 - 05

No. Description Date

10m5210
1 : 100

North

Proposed Ground Floor Plan. 1:100

P
age 155



D
N

Bedroom 2
Kitchen

Living RoomBedroom 1

Bathroom

Stairs

Scale (@ A3) -

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

DRAWING NUMBER REV

PROJECT

SHEET
 1 : 100

Proposed First Floor Plan

10 Jowetts Ln, La, West Bromwich B71 2QX
Owner

23.02.23

RC

JG
70012 - 04 - 06

No. Description Date

10m5210
1 : 100

North

Proposed First Floor Plan. 1:100

P
age 156



Proposed windows to incorporate 
shutters internally. 

Scale (@ A3) -

Checked by

Drawn by

Date

DRAWING NUMBER REV

PROJECT

SHEET
 1 : 100

Proposed Elevations

10 Jowetts Ln, La, West Bromwich B71 2QX
Owner

26.07.23

RC

JG
70012 - 04 - 08

No. Description Date

 1 : 100
Proposed  East Elevation

 1 : 100
Proposed North Elevation

 1 : 100
Proposed South Elevation

10m5210
1 : 100

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68518 

Application Received 26 July 2023 

Application Description Retention of light industrial and storage use, 

vehicular access, car and vehicle parking, 

lighting and CCTV. 

Application Address Locarno Works, Locarno Road, Tipton, DY4 

9AF 

Applicant Andrew Doocey Group 

Ward Tipton Green 

Contact Officer William Stevens 

William_stevens@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 Subject to ratification at full council that planning permission is granted 

subject to conditions relating to: 

 

i) Noise impact assessment and mitigation measures; 

ii) Parking layout provided, and retained, - area behind residential 

properties for car park only; 

iii) Dust management plan including resurfacing works;   

iv) Lighting scheme; 

v) CCTV;  

vi) Electric vehicle charging points;  

vii) Boundary Treatment and any retaining walls;  

 

Page 159

Agenda Item 10

mailto:William_stevens@sandwell.gov.uk


 

viii) Revised Transport Statement; 

ix) Site management plan – vehicle movement during sensitive hours;  

x) Drainage/SUDs details; and 

xi) Details of secure cycle parking. 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The use would ensure the retention of employment in the local area and 

would not prevent future regeneration of the site.  

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A strong and inclusive economy – the proposal would retain 

jobs within the local area. 

4 Context  

 

4.1 At your last committee, Members resolved to visit the site.  

 

4.2 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because it 

is a departure from the development plan, as the site is allocated for 

housing, and also several objections to the proposal have been 

received.  

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Locarno Road, Tipton, Street View 

 

Locarno Road, Tipton, Aerial View 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The proposed site forms part of a housing allocation, therefore the 

development is a departure from the development plan. 

 

Page 160

https://www.google.com/maps/@52.5311962,-2.0615651,3a,75y,133.32h,82.92t/data=!3m6!1e1!3m4!1st11YbJOB6TVLvB47d8iAQA!2e0!7i16384!8i8192?entry=ttu
https://www.google.com/maps/place/Locarno+Rd,+Tipton/@52.5310813,-2.0606232,176m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x487099c1c6715f93:0xe094dc6547275a5f!8m2!3d52.5317446!4d-2.060878!16s%2Fg%2F1tf86j69?entry=ttu


 

5.2 Material planning considerations are matters that can and should be 

taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, planning 

decisions should be made in accordance with the development plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise. This means that when 

enough weight in favour of a development can be attached to material 

planning considerations, then it should be approved even if it conflicts 

with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF), 

Proposals in the Development Plan, 

Planning history, 

Highways considerations - Traffic generation, access, highway safety, 

Environmental concerns – Noise, air quality, pollution and general 

disturbance, and 

Ecology concerns – loss of trees. 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is on land between Locarno Road (which is the 
primary access to the site) and Alexandra Road (B4517), Tipton.  

 
6.2  The application site would be divided as shown on plan number 

288.P01.003C for different areas dependant on the type of vehicles 

stored. Access to this site would be solely from Locarno Road. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 Some committee members may recall granting planning permission for a 

new three storey office building and utility yard with associated parking 

and access on this site in 2021 under reference DC/21/65623. The office 

block was never constructed but the applicant has been using the yard 

for storage in association with that permission. 

 

 

Page 161



 

 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/21/65623 Proposed 3 storey office 
building and utility yard 
with associated parking, 
new vehicle and 
pedestrian access.  

 

Granted planning 

permission with 

conditions 

 

9th December 2021 
 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 As the office block is not to be built, the applicant proposes to continue 

using the site for the light industrial and storage use, vehicular access, 

car and vehicle parking, and erect lighting and CCTV. 

 

8.2 The applicant will use the site for 37 staff car parking spaces, with most 

of the site used for the storage of vehicles of different sizes, plant 

equipment, signage, ducting and aggregate in association with their 

business. The heavier industrial vehicles will be further into the site, with 

staff parking closest to residential properties.  

 

8.3  Whilst permission has been granted for a similar use DC/21/65623 (see 

point 7.1 and 7.2), due to commercial reasons, the office building is 

unlikely to come forward, however, the use of the yard is still required by 

the company.  

 

8.4 The site will be in use through all times of the day and night.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letters and 

by site and press notices. In total, five objections have been received.  

 

 

 

Page 162



 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) The use generates noise which can be heard by residents in the 

early hours of the morning especially those whose properties back 

onto the site; 

ii) The site generates significant traffic throughout the day which 

brings dust out on to the main roads;  

iii) The existing (temporary) lighting is causing light pollution and 

disturbances to local residents;  

iv) The rubble left on the site could block drains and lead to localised 

flash floods; and 

v) The applicant has removed a number of trees on the border of the 

site.  

 

Non-material objections have been raised regarding loss of property 

value. 

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning Policy 

 

 Planning Policy have not objected to the scheme. The use is a departure 

from the development plan which has been allocated for housing, 

however they note the previous approval which was granted at planning 

committee and the departure ratified by Council.  

 

10.2 Highways  

 

 No objection. The additional information provided confirms that the 

proposed will generate lower trip rates and therefore parking 

accumulation than the previously approved scheme DC/21/65623.   

Page 163



 

 

Highways have no objections providing that the layout plan showing 

areas for parking and manoeuvring are provided and retained as such. 

 

10.3 Pollution Control (Air Pollution and Noise)  

 

 No objections to the proposed lighting scheme as Pollution Control have 

been in discussions with the applicant on this matter prior to the 

submission of this planning application. However, given the proximity of 

the development to housing, they do recommend a noise impact 

assessment is carried out and mitigation measures provided.  

 

10.4 Cadent 

 

 Comments have been passed onto the applicant regarding a high-

pressure gas pipeline. The applicant has stated that this development 

will not affect this and are aware of it.  

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) promotes sustainable 

development but states that local circumstances should be taken into 

account to reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2 The Framework promotes sustainable transport options for development 

proposal and paragraph 111 states that developments should be 

prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 

unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. Here, the Council’s 

Highways department has raised no objections, and therefore the 

proposed development complies with this part of the NPPF. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

Page 164



 

 CPS4: Place Making 

DEL1: Infrastructure Provision 

TRAN4: Creating Coherent Networks for Cycling and Walking 

ENV3: Design Quality  

ENV5: Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage System and Urban Heat Island 

Effect  

ENV8: Air Quality  

SAD EMP4: Relationship between Industry and Sensitive Uses 

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 The site is allocated for residential used in the development plan. 

 

12.3 All new developments should be supported by the necessary on-site 

infrastructure to serve the development, mitigate its impacts on the 

environment, and ensure that the development is sustainable and 

contributes to the proper planning of the wider area (DEL1, ENV5 and 

8).  Conditions are recommended as such to mitigate against 

environmental impacts. 

 

12.4 Secure cycle parking provision TRAN4 this will be conditioned 

accordingly. 

 

12.5 SAD EMP4 states that proposals for industrial development that are 

likely to have an adverse effect on neighbouring uses will not be 

permitted, unless the adverse effects can be reduced to an acceptable 

level. Where existing industry operates within residential areas the 

Council will seek to ensure that any harmful effects are mitigated (see 

point 10.3 above) and the noise impact assessment recommended to 

protect residents.   

 

12.6 As the development is for storage, little in terms of development is 

proposed, therefore the proposal would not have a negative impact on 

the street scene and complies with policies CPS4, ENV3 and SAD 

EOS9. 

 

 

Page 165



 

13. Material Considerations  

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Planning history  

 

The site has previously been granted for a similar use (albeit with an 

office block attached). The granting of the departure has also been 

previously approved. In my opinion, no significant policy changed has 

happened within the past two years to warrant an alternative stance. 

Whilst the office block did provide a buffer of open air storage to the 

backs of residential properties, to keep this “buffer” I would recommend 

that the space immediately behind the residential properties is not used 

other than for the parking of private cars and not for commercial use.  

 

13.3 Highways concerns 

 

Whilst residents have raised concerns over the level of traffic entering 

and leaving the site, Highways are of the opinion that the impact on the 

surrounding street network would not be significant to warrant refusal.   

They state that the numbers of vehicle movements would be less than 

previously approved (see points 10.2 and 11.2 above) and therefore 

comply with the adopted NPPF.  

 

13.4 Environmental concerns  

 

Pollution Control has raised concerns over noise and disturbance to 

residents (see point 10.3 and 12.5 above) and has recommended 

conditions be attached to any approval to mitigate the potential for noise 

issues. I also recommend a site management plan is conditioned which 

would seek to reduce noise and disturbance to residents during 

unsociable hours.  

 

 

Page 166



 

13.5. Ecology concerns  

 

Any trees on site that were felled previously were not protected by Tree 

Preservation Orders and therefore did not require planning permission 

for their removal. However, from an aerial photo (below), before the 

buildings on site were demolished, it seemed that there was no tree 

buffer separating the industrial land from the rear gardens of properties 

on Locarno Road.  

 

 
 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

  

14.2 On balance, despite the application being a departure from the 

development plan, other material considerations outweigh the allocation 

Page 167



 

and there are no significant material considerations which warrant 

refusal that could not be controlled by conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

Page 168



 

 Location plan 

 Layout plan: 288.P01.003 Rev D 

 Lighting plan: HSL-896 

Page 169



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 170



Alex
an

dra

Ind
us

tria
l E

sta
te

5

6

2 12

22

42

Shelter

WB

41a

4

El Sub Sta

133.5m

79

98

72

45

60

46

86

89

LO
CARNO R

OAD

103

39a

132.6m

ROSEMARY ROAD

32

PENNY P
IE

CE

22

30

6

6

1

14

LOWER LONGLANDS

1

24

4

7

1

15

22

19

12

9

32

21

11

HOUSE MEADOW

LO
W

ER

Works

61

25

56

63

75

54

395900
395900

395950

396000

396050

396100

396150

292500

292600

292650

292700

396180

292739

SO9692

MapServe

Builders
Yard

90

84

95

97c1 to 6

Park Court

97a97
97b

96

2

96a 96b

12

22

ESS

42

2

101a

21

98
102101

130.5m

ALEXANDRA ROAD

32

ROSEMARY ROAD 58

52

396000

396050

396100
396100

396150

396200

292500

metres

0 20 40 60 80 100

292545

SO9592

SO9592

© Crown copyright 2023 Ordnance Survey 100053143

Alex
an

dra

Ind
us

tria
l E

sta
te

5

6

2 12

22

Shelter

41a

4El Sub Sta

133.5m

79

98

72

45

60

46

86

89

LO
CARNO R

OAD

103

39a

132.6m

PENNY P
IE

CE

22

30

6

6
1

14

LOWER LONGLANDS

1

24

4

7

1

19

12

9

32

21

HOUSE MEADOW

W
ork

s

61

25

56

63

75

54

Veh
icu

lar
ac

ce
ss

Tw
o w

ay
 tra

ffic

Tw
o w

ay
 tra

ffic

Area
 3 

Stor
es

Sec
uri

ty 
ga

te

52
°3

1'
52

.4
"N

 2
°0

3'
41

.2
"W

52
.5

31
22

3,
 -2

.0
61

44
2

Sec
uri

ty 
ga

te

Ht

LP

13
2.

58

132.27

133.65

134.02

133.99

131.65

131.84

130.83

130.84

130.84

133.99

131.53

130.84

130.85

132.65

133.99

132.84

130.84

130.82

134.20

130.84

133.99

134.17
134.06

134.30

130.36
130.35

132.18
132.13

131.60

131.40

130.24 130.25

133.19

134.69

134.69

131.48

131.10

131.75

130.79

129.86

130.05

10

10

10
10

10

10

10

10

10

10
10

10

10

8

10

8

8

8

8 8

10

1010

10

10
1010

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

10

10

10

10

10
10

10

10

8

2
.
0
m
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
F
e
n
c
e

2.
0m
 S
ec
ur
it
y 
Fe
nc
e

2.0m Security Fence

2.0m Security Fence

292520N292520N

Storm
Pipe

Concrete
IL 129.76m
Ø 0.75m

Storm
Pipe

Concrete
IL 129.26m
Ø 1.5m

Sec
ur

ity
 ba

rri
er

Se
cu

rity
 of

fic
e

Pav
em

en
t a

men
dm

en
t

sh
ow

n d
as

he
d

Veh
icu

lar
 A

cc
es

s t
o

ware
ho

us
ing

Veh
icu

lar
Acc

es
s t

o y
ard

CAR P
ARK / S

TO
RAGE A

REA

LIG
HT G

OODS / S
TO

RAGE

HEAVY G
OODS V

EHIC
LE

S / S
TO

RAGE

Veh
icu

lar
Acc

es
s t

o y
ard

Veh
icu

lar
Acc

es
s t

o y
ard

2
.
0
m
 
S
e
c
u
r
i
t
y
 
F
e
n
c
e

2.0m Security Fence

Veh
icu

lar
 A

cc
es

s t
o

ware
ho

us
ing

Sec
ure

 C
ar 

Park
ing

Sec
ure

 G
ate

s

2 N
O.

Emerg
en

cy
 G

ate
 O

nly

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37
CABIN

S

LIG
HT S

TO
RAGE A

REA

10
0s

qm
 - 1

0 x
 10

m

LIG
HT S

TO
RAGE A

REA

10
0s

qm
 - 1

0 x
 10

m

LI
G

H
T 

ST
O

R
AG

E 
AR

EA
 1

50
sq

m
 -

15
 x

 1
0m

AGG

AGG

AGG

AGG

SERVIC
E IS

LA
ND

GAS
ADB

AMENITY

STORE

VEHICULAR BUFFER ZONE / LIGHT
STORAGE

STORAGE
DUCTING/

SIGNS

PIC
K U

P/S
MALL

 V
AN P

ARKIN
G

HEAVY G
OODS V

EHIC
LE

S P
ARKIN

G

2525

Copyright of this drawing is vested in Khoury Architects and
must not be copied or reproduced without consent. Only figured
dimensions are to be taken from this drawing. All dimensions are
in millimetres unless noted otherwise. All contractors must visit
the site and be responsible for taking and checking all
dimensions relative to their work.

Khoury Architects are to be notified immediately of any variation
between drawings and site conditions.

Notes:

ByDescriptionDateRev

Client

Address

Title

Drawn: Date: Scale:

Checked: CAD Ref:

Drawing Number:

42 New Road
Stourbridge

 DY8 1PA
T 01384 395959

 E info@khouryarchitects.co.uk
W www.khouryarchitects.co.uk

exciting
Khoury

 space.
Architects

P L A N N I N G

288.P01.003D
288.P.01.010AK

As shown @ A1April 2021VG

Proposed Site Plan
Location Plan

DY4 9AF
Tipton
Locarno Road

Doocey Group

/ 26.04.2023 First Issue VG

Ownership Boundary line

010m 10m 20m 30m 40m 50m

1:500

Proposed Site Plan 1:500

North

Location Plan 1:2500 ( Ownership Boundary shown)

All site dimensions and setting out to be checked and
determined by contractor.

Khoury Architects take no responsibility of legal boundaries
indicated on this drawing and advise a separate drawing be
completed by a specialist surveyor in order to establish exact
boundaries.

Adjacent Ownership line

A 02.05.2023 Yard Amendments YJ
B 26.07.2023 Location Plan Extended YJ
C 27.09.2023 Layout detail added AK
D 18.10.2023 Parking removed from cabins AK

P
age 171



A
le

xa
nd

ra

In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
e

5

6

2 1
2

22

4
2

Shelter

41a

4

133.5m

79

98

72

86

89

33

LO
C

A
R

N
O

 R
O

A
D

103

39a

132.6m

ROSEMARY R
OAD

3
2

P
E
N
N
Y
 P

IE
C
E

22

30

6

14

LO
W

ER LO
NG

LANDS

1

24

7

15

22

19

9

32

21

11

25

75

AGG

AGG

AGG

AGG

AGG

Security Office 

W
PD

 O
FF

IC
E

SIG
NS/BARRIERS

100sqm
 - 10 x 10m

GAS

ADB

SIG
NS/BARRIERS

100sqm
 - 10 x 10m

W
T

o
p
p

e
r 1

5
0
sq

m
 - 1

5
 x 1

0
m

EXISTING
 W

AREHO
USE TO

 REM
AIN

EXISTING
 W

AREHO
USE TO

 REM
AIN

EXISTING
 W

AREHO
USE TO

 REM
AIN

HAZARD

GAS M
AIN

 IN
 V

IC
IN

ITY

HAZARD

GAS M
AIN

 IN
 V

IC
IN

ITY

HAZARD

GAS M
AIN

 IN
 V

IC
IN

ITY

1
Back Shield

2
Back Shield

3

4

5

6

10

11

8
Back Shield

9
Back Shield

7

5 
ex

is
tin

g 
la

nt
er

ns
 a

re
 m

ou
nt

ed
 o

nt
o

th
e 

si
de

 o
f b

ui
ld

in
g 

at
 a

 h
ei

gh
t o

f ~
3m

.

S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
is

 u
nk

no
w

n,
 b

ut
 a

re

as
su

m
ed

 fu
nc

tio
na

lly
 a

de
qu

at
e

(in
di

ca
tiv

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
).

2 
ex

is
tin

g 
la

nt
er

ns
 a

re

m
ou

nt
ed

 o
nt

o 
th

e 
si

de
 o

f

bu
ild

in
g 

at
 a

 h
ei

gh
t o

f ~
3m

.

S
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
is

 u
nk

no
w

n,

bu
t a

re
 a

ss
um

ed

fu
nc

tio
na

lly
 a

de
qu

at
e

(in
di

ca
tiv

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
).

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.0

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

15

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

5.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

N
O

TE
:

Li
gh

t s
pi

ll 
in

to
 p

ro
pe

rty
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
no

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 2
 lu

x.

2.0

2.0

2.0

LEGEND

Outline of site boundary.

Horizontal lux contours for reference only:

1.00 Lux

2.00 Lux

5.00 Lux

10.00 Lux

15.00 Lux

20.00 Lux

1.7m

2.0m15m

12m

1.0m

1.2m

0.8m

6m

8m

5m

SOIL TYPE

D + 300mm MAX.

10m

P
la

n
tin

g
 D

e
pt

h

1.5m

1
5

0
m

m

Existing or proposed surface level

Surface to match existing

Cable slot to be kept clear

3° incline

PLANTING DEPTH - SEE TABLE BELOW

MOUNTING HEIGHT PLANTING DEPTH

Compact well graded sand and
gravel, hard clay, well graded fine
and course sand.Decomposed
granite rock and soil. good material
should be well drained and in
locations where water will not stand.

Compact fine sand, medium clay,
compact well drained sandy loam,
loose coarse sand and gravel.
Average soils should drain
sufficiently well that water does not
stand on the surface.

Soft clay, clay loam, poorly
compacted sand, Clays containing a
large amount of silt and vegatable
matter, and made ground. Poor soils
will normally be wet and have poor
drainage

GOOD

AVERAGE

POOR

Poor soil conditions require C25P
concrete inside shaft and 300 x 300
x 50 pc concrete slab and 25 sand
bed

CONCRETE
MIX ST2

COMPACT
REFILL

D

COLUMN PLANTING FOUNDATION FOR GUIDANCE ONLY.
Additional planting information to be supplied by manufacturer
based on soil type.  Not to scale.

PRIVATE LIGHTING

Lighting Unit A:
TRT Lighting Aspect 64 LED neutral white 4000k lantern. Power Set.
Lantern Code; AS64-LED-110w-GA2-4000k-FG(16.26klm). Light grey canopy, toughened flat glass.
Lanterns to be post top mounted at 0 degree tilt onto 8m height Stainton, Fabrikat or CU Phosco
galvanised tubular steel lighting column. Mid hinge-raise lower for ease of maintenance access.

Lighting Unit B:
TRT Lighting Aspect 64 LED neutral white 4000k lantern. Power Set.  Back Shield.
Lantern Code; AS64-LED-115w-GA2-BS-4000k-FG(15.01klm). Light grey canopy, toughened flat glass.
Lanterns to be post top mounted at 0 degree tilt onto 8m height Stainton, Fabrikat or CU Phosco
galvanised tubular steel lighting column. Mid hinge-raise lower for ease of maintenance access.

Lighting Unit C:
TRT Lighting Aspect 64 LED neutral white 4000k lantern. Power Set.
Lantern Code; AS64-LED-110w-GA3-SYM-4000k-FG(16.53klm). Light grey canopy, toughened flat glass.
Lanterns to be post top mounted at 0 degree tilt onto 8m height Stainton, Fabrikat or CU Phosco
galvanised tubular steel lighting column. Mid hinge-raise lower for ease of maintenance access.

PRIVATE SUPPLIES:
Private lighting columns to be fed from private supply networks.
Either landlord distribution board or mini feeder pillar with fused isolation.  Mini feeder pillars to be located in vicinity of new private
area entrance.  The feeder pillar should be located in private land or on boundary (in vicinity to mains LV supply) in a safe location
(minimising risk of damage or collision with with vehicles), easily seen and with ease of access for safe maintenance and for
network supply on / off control.

ISOLATION:
Charles Endirect or equivalent fused isolator to be mounted on each column backboard.

ON / OFF CONTROL
Switching of lanterns to be achieved independently via Lucy Zodion or equivalent photocells mounted onto each lantern (ie20/20
lux). An astro timer to be mounted within the feeder pillar to switch off supply at determined times of night (low activity times to be
determined and set). An override to switch power on will be included to provide illumination during times of night when access to
site is required.  The feeder pillar and override will be located with ease of access from manned gatehouse.

Erection and installation works shall comply with the current issue and amendments of BS7671: 18th edition IET Wiring Regulations
2018. Requirements for Electrical installations, the current edition of the ILP Code of Practice for Electrical Safety in Public Lighting
Operations and the Code of Practice for the erection of Street Lighting published by the Association of Street Lighting Electrical
Contractors. Manufacturers instruction / guidance should also be referred to.

DESIGN METHODOLOGY AND NOTES:
A. The private area yard is located within a semi industrial area, established industrial units to the North and South with residential housing

to West and East boundary.  Would consider the surrounding area environmental classification to be E3 Suburban, medium district
brightness.  Access to yard is via a short entrance off a residential road.

B. The yard is to be used mainly for lorry & works vehicle parking.  Some off loading and loading of construction site soil and rubble to be
conducted in designated areas.  Additionally, there will be areas set aside for storage of low hazard risk construction equipment such
as bollards and signs and general building materials.

C. Lighting is required for general purpose, parking and manual labour, no detailed works tasks are involved.  Lighting must be suitable for
security purposes and CCTV (LED white light at 4000k for good colour rendition and clear imaging).

D. The design aims to provide adequate lighting without over illumination using minimum amount of units. With reference to BS5489-1
2020 (parking area for plants, medium traffic, slow moving vehicles)  and CIBSE; Lighting Guide 1, The industrial Environment (Low
risk process, general security lighting) this design proposes a target of 10lux average illumination for the area / yard with good 
uniformity of 40%.  Refer to contours for lux levels which are provided on this drawing for reference only.  A lighting calculation report is
available for further detail.

E. There is to be no public access.  Security office and a high perimeter fence surrounds the yard.
F. Consideration for local residents and properties adjoining the site boundary has been given in the lighting class determination and

equipment specification.  Light spill extending past the site boundary has been minimised through use of optically efficient area lighting
lanterns, facing away from buildings.  In addition, factory fitted back shields are specified for four units.  Two shields to ensure light spill
into adjoining gardens does not exceed 2 lux and two to reduce spill into the tree lined brook.
The lanterns are to be mounted on 8m height columns which will limit visual impact and assist in focusing light where needed, 
thus controlling light trespass and nuisance.  The lanterns are to be mounted with a 0 degree tilt, which maintains their zero horizontal
light cut off, minimising upward light pollution and reducing vision glare.

G. The lanterns are energy efficient LED type which will provide a white light at 4000k providing adequate illumination and good colour
rendition as required for CCTV.

H. The private lighting column at the site entrance is set back, away from the immediate junction to minimise light spill onto the public
highway(as shown by lux contours).  Thus minimising road user distraction, glare and trespass into existing houses opposite.

I. Lux contours as shown DO NOT include maintenance factor.  The contours represent light output from initial new installation without
projected depreciation of output over time.

       GENERAL SCHEME NOTES:

1) Any change to layout or alterations to the positions or specification of equipment to that as shown on this drawing should be referred
back to the designer for checking to ensure compliance with lighting level requirements.

2) Columns to be located to periphery of site as shown - would advise a minimum of 1m clear of fence for security. Two columns are
proposed in centre of site.  These should be planted within a raised plinth and have impact protectors installed at base.

3) This design is based on limited site information regarding underground services. Setting out should be conducted by a competent
person, with trial pits dug by hand to ensure safe column location and to avoid damage to any underground services.

4) Private lighting equipment to be installed in accordance with lighting design drawing, manufacturers instructions and current 
Regulations for Electrical Installation requirements.

5) All column doors to face away from on coming traffic unless access restricted or otherwise specified. Ensure correct orientation of
lanterns facing inward to site as detailed.

6) Column numbering used is for reference only; Client to assign identification numbering in line with maintenance requirements.
7) In order to avoid future maintenance issues and maintain lighting efficiency, any trees in vicinity of proposed columns should be 

trimmed back.  Prior to any tree cutting, the owner or Council tree officer or Ecologist should be consulted.
8) This lighting scheme has been calculated applying a maintenance factor of 0.81.  It is recommended that a full routine maintenance

program is devised and carried out at least every 5 years. Guidance for an efficient maintenance program can be obtained from 
equipment manufacturer and Roads Liaison Group; Well Lit Highways, Code of Practice for Highway Lighting Management.

Location:

Project:

Drawn by: Date:

Checked by: Date:

Telephone: Fax:

Scale @ A1: Drawing No.: Sheet: Revision:

55, Gorsefield Avenue
Bromborough, Wirral, CH62 6BY

support@highwaylightingsolutions.co.uk

HIGHWAY LIGHTING SOLUTIONS Ltd

Ken Duckers 21/11/22

Ian Buckley

0151 327 2424 0151 327 2424

1:500 HLS-896 1 of 1 Draft 3

EXISTING SERVICES

SERVICES INFORMATION AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING CANNOT BE GUARANTEED AS
CONCLUSIVE. OTHER SERVICES MAY BE
PRESENT. NEW UNDERGROUND CABLES
MAY BE LAID DURING PHASED WORKS.
CONTRACTOR MUST OBTAIN MOST
CURRENT AND UP TO DATE SERVICES
DRAWINGS PRIOR TO AND DURING
WORKS.  CONFIRM EXACT LOCATION
OF CABLES BEFORE EXCAVATION. DIG
TRIAL PITS WITH CARE TO LOCATE.
DO NOT USE MECHANICAL DIGGERS

EXISTING SERVICES

THERE ARE NUMEROUS MANHOLES AND
INSPECTION CHAMBERS WITHIN THE WORKS
AREA SUGGESTING VARIOUS SERVICES ARE
PRESENT. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE
THE NATURE OF THESE SERVICES AND
WHICH ARE LIVE AND TO REMAIN IN PLACE.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ALL
PRECAUTIONS TO PROTECT THE WORK
FORCE AND ENSURE THE SERVICES ARE
ADEQUATELY MAINTAINED & PRESERVED.
REFER TO STATS DRAWINGS PRIOR TO
COMMENCING EXCAVATION WORKS.

30/11/22 Draft 1 Issued to Client for comment.

DESIGN ISSUED
FOR APPROVAL

An example of a column protector which may be located at base of
columns where vehicle impact may occur. Manufacturer Seton or Barriers
Direct to advise suitable specification and foundation.

TRT LED ASPECT LANTERN.

06/01/23 Draft 2 Revised to SMBC comment.  Issued for approval.

11/03/23 Draft 3 Revised to SMBC comment.  Issued for approval.

P
age 172



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68524 

Application Received 31 July 2023 

Application Description Demolition of existing buildings and proposed 

11-storey building comprising up to 60 no. 

residential apartments, with associated 

landscaping, cycle parking, car parking and 

access from Green Street (Outline application 

for access). 

Application Address 51 Green Street, West Bromwich, B70 6DL 

Applicant Mr Iqubal Singh 

Ward West Bromwich Central 

Contact Officer William Stevens 

William_stevens@sandwell.gov.uk   

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 Subject to Fisher German withdrawing their objections in relation to the 

gas pipeline and subject to the execution of a Section 106 agreement in 

terms of affordable housing, that outline planning permission (with 

access) is granted subject to the further approval of Reserved Matters; 

appearance, landscaping, layout and scale, and subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

(i) Ground investigation works; 

(ii) Drainage (including SUDS); 

 

Page 173

Agenda Item 11

mailto:William_stevens@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(iii) Employment and skills opportunities; 

(iv) 10% renewable energy; 

(v) Finished floor levels; 

(vi) Low level NOx Boilers; 

(vii) No burning of materials on site,  

(viii) Cycle parking, 

(ix) Waste storage,  

(x) Air quality impact assessment,  

(xi) Adoption of residential travel plan,  

(xii) Electric Vehicle Charging points,  

(xiii) Foundation details/pipeline protection,  

(xiv) Utilities from Green Street only,  

(xv) Construction management plan including hours (see point 10.5), 

and dust control;  

(xvi) Construction Surface Water Management Plan and 

(xvii) The submitted plans are for indicative purposes only. 

 

1.2 Other conditions usually associated with residential scheme would be 

covered by any following Reserved Matters application.  

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal would provide much needed residential accommodation for 

Sandwell residents which would assist with meeting the Council’s 

housing targets. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods – The site will 
assist with meeting the Council’s housing targets within the 
Borough. 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because 

the proposal is a major application, a Section 106 is required to secure 

affordable housing and three objections have been received.  

Page 174



 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

 51 Green Street, West Bromwich, Street View 

 

51, Green Street, West Bromwich, Aerial View 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan however a 

residential property does currently occupy the site. 

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy, 

Highways considerations - Traffic generation, access, highway safety, 

parking, 

Presumption and the ‘titled balance’  

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is situated on the corner of Green Street and Kenrick 

Way, West Bromwich. The application site relates to a detached property 

within a predominately residential area with industry on the opposite side 

of Kenrick Way. 

 

Page 175

https://www.google.com/maps/@52.50748,-1.9846984,3a,75y,82.16h,90.52t/data=!3m7!1e1!3m5!1siiqypBvCpnU7jhjOjpDc1A!2e0!6shttps:%2F%2Fstreetviewpixels-pa.googleapis.com%2Fv1%2Fthumbnail%3Fpanoid%3DiiqypBvCpnU7jhjOjpDc1A%26cb_client%3Dmaps_sv.tactile.gps%26w%3D203%26h%3D100%26yaw%3D20.887653%26pitch%3D0%26thumbfov%3D100!7i16384!8i8192?entry=ttu
https://www.google.com/maps/place/51+Green+St,+West+Bromwich+B70+6DL/@52.5076253,-1.9849435,176m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x487097fd9cf9daa9:0x37b873dcbbd7a1d5!8m2!3d52.5074694!4d-1.9843615!16s%2Fg%2F11t770zsyj?entry=ttu


 

6.2 The area is known for high rise residential buildings with Kenrick House 

adjacent to the site and Lissimore, Mountford and Greenford Houses in 

close proximity.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 There is no relevant planning history associated with this site.  
 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 This is an outline application including only access to the site. The 

applicant has indicated that they intend to demolish the existing buildings 

and erect a 11-storey building comprising up to 60 no. residential 

apartments, with associated landscaping, cycle parking, car parking and 

access from Green Street.  

 

8.2  Members are reminded that full details of the proposal will have to follow, 

and this is purely to seek the principle of new residential use to include 

access into the site.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letters and 

by site and press notice with three objections and one in support of the 

proposal being received.  

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) There is a safety concern over a buried gas pipeline that runs 

across the site,  

ii) The site does not have enough off-street parking, 

iii) The proposed building locality would make Kenrick House’s small 

car park susceptible to car break ins,  

iv) Residents of Kenrick House will be overlooked, and 

Page 176



 

v) Concerns over the impact this development would have on 

residents during the construction phase,  

 

Non-material objections have been raised regarding water pressure 

issues.  

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

9.3 Support 

  

One response in support of the proposal has been submitted, however 

the resident has given no reasons as to why they support the scheme.  

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning Policy  

 

 The proposal site is opposite an industrial area but is itself within a 

residential area, which comprises tall apartment blocks. As the location 

of the proposal site itself is unallocated within the Local Plan, the 

principles of SAD H2 (Housing Windfalls) would apply. As the proposal 

site would not impact on the employment land and falls within a 

predominantly residential area of buildings of a similar height, the 

principles of policy SAD H2 would have been adhered to and the 

principle of a residential scheme should be permitted in policy terms. 

The site is also adjacent a bus showcase route, which would add to the 

scheme’s sustainability.  

 

Policy therefore have no policy concerns with the principle of an 

apartment block style residential scheme in this location, as it remains 

in-keeping with use and is on a sustainable, public transport route. 

 

 

 

 

Page 177



 

10.2 Highways  

 

 Highways are concerned about a high-pressure gas pipe line that runs 

across the site, however the applicant has confirmed that there is no 

such pipe. The applicant is in talks with the gas company separately 

(see point 10.12).  

 

 Based on the information provided in the Transport Assessment, 57% 

parking provision for residents is accepted.  

 

 Indicative plans have been provided for the car parking layout which 

raises some concern, but this can be reviewed as part of a subsequent 

reserved matters application for layout.  

 

10.3 Pollution Control (Air Quality)  

 

 No objections have been received subject to an air quality impact 

assessment, a dust management plan, adoption of the residential travel 

plan, electric vehicle charging points, and low NOx boilers.  

 

10.4 Pollution Control (Contaminated Land)  

 

 The standard ground contamination conditions are recommended.  

 

10.5 Pollution Control (Air Pollution and Noise)  

 

 The Council’s Air Pollution and Noise team agree with the consultants’ 

observation that it is unlikely that measures other than façade mitigation 

in the form of glazing and ventilation would be effective in achieving 

acceptable acoustic conditions. 

 

 An acoustic design should be developed to ensure that sound levels 

within the apartments meet the recommended indoor ambient noise 

levels for dwellings set out in Table 4 of BS8233:2014 - Guidance on 

sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings. 

 

Page 178



 

 With regard to the construction phase, the air pollution and noise team 

recommends that the following conditions be applied: 

 

i) Construction works, and all activities associated with the 

development of the site shall be between 0730 to 1800 hours on 

Monday to Friday, 0730 to 1400 hours on Saturday, with no work 

at any other time including Sundays and public holidays. 

 

ii) (a) Before the development is commenced a detailed method 

statement of working on the application site in connection with the 

approved development shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the local planning authority. The method statement of 

working on the application site shall include details of hours of 

operation, noise mitigation, wheel cleaning and dust suppression 

measures to be implemented during the site preparation and 

construction phases and shall include details of parking for all site 

operatives. 

 

(b) The method of working statement scheme shall be 

implemented as approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

 

iii) There shall be no burning of materials in the open at the 

application premises. 

 

10.6  Lead Local Flood Authority  

 

 Drainage details have been provided and the LLFA have no objections 

subject to the implementation of those plans as well as a construction 

surface water management plan being conditioned.  

 

10.7  Severn Trent  

 

 The standard drainage and foul water works conditions are required.  

 

 

 

Page 179



 

10.8 Transport Planner 

 

 Further details of cycling parking are required which can be conditioned.  

 

10.9  Urban Design Officer  

 

 No objections to the scale of the building subject to no adverse 

comments from highways. However, further detail is required and would 

be part of any Reserved Matters application.  

 

10.10 Employment and Skills 

 

 The proposed development would provide opportunities for apprentices 

during the construction phase and as such, can be conditioned 

accordingly.  

 

10.11 Canal and Rivers Trust 

 

 No objections.  

 

10.12 Fisher German (Pipeline) 

 

There is a gas mainline pipelines that is routed in Kenrick Way which is 

11m from the site boundary. There were originally concerns of the 

location and the potential impact the development could have on this.  

 

The applicant has provided foundation details including vibration less 

pilling methods which do not impact on the pipeline. Fisher German has 

no objections to this.  

 

Clarification that all services/utilities would access the site via Green 

Street has been requested, and whilst the application has confirmed this 

will be the case, at the time of writing this report, Fisher German has yet 

to formally withdraw their objection.  

 

Members will be verbally updated.  

Page 180



 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2  In respect of paragraphs 128-130 of the NPPF, the Urban Design officer 

raises no objections to the scheme. The development would assimilate 

with the overall form and layout of the site’s surroundings.  

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

 DEL1: Infrastructure Provision 

HOU1: Delivering Sustainable Housing Growth 

HOU3: Delivering Affordable Housing 

ENV5: Flood Risk, Sustainable Drainage System and Urban Heat Island 

Effect 

ENV7: Renewable Energy 

ENV8: Air Quality 

SAD H2: Housing Windfalls 

SAD H3: Affordable Housing 

 

12.2 DEL 1 aims to ensure that large development provide appropriate on 

and off-site infrastructure to serve the development and mitigate impacts 

of the development.  

 

12.3 In this instance, in respect of the above and policies HOU3 and SAD H3, 

a S106 agreement for the provision of affordable housing has been 

agreed, namely 25% which equates to 15 properties (9, one - bedroom 

and 6, two-bedroom).   

 

Page 181



 

12.3 ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments – however this would be dealt with under the 

Reserved Matters application.   

 

12.4 Severn Trent state that outstanding drainage matters can be addressed 

by condition (ENV5). 

 

12.5  Renewable energy (ENV7) requirements can be dealt with by condition 

and further information as part of the Reserved Matters application(s). 

 

12.6 SAD H2 refers to residential proposal which are not specifically on 

allocated sites and sets test for their suitability.  In this instance, the site 

forms previously development land being suitable for residential use; is 

not allocated for employment land and would be compatible with other 

policies. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Amenity concerns  

 

Members are reminded that the application is for outline planning 

permission for access only. Indicative plans have been provided but 

carry no weight to the determining of this application.  

 

Equally there is no evidence to suggest that this development would 

have a detrimental impact on the site security of adjacent car parks, but 

could provide an opportunity for increased natural surveillance, which 

would improve security. However, this would be subject to any Reserved 

Matters application.  

 

 

 

Page 182



 

 

13.3 Highways concerns 

 

The Council’s highways department accept the level of parking on site, 

however they do require on-site parking details that would accompany a 

Reserved Matters application.   

 

13.4 Gas Pipeline 

 

 See point 10.12 above. 

 

13.5 Disturbance during construction 

 

A construction management plan would be required to prevent working 

on site during unsocial hours and reducing potential impacts through 

dust suppression and construction vehicle wheel cleaning, to prevent 

mud being transferred to the highway network. The above can be 

conditioned. 

 

13.6 Presumption and the ‘titled balance’  
 

The ‘tilted balance’ is similar to the normal planning balance but it is only 

engaged in exceptional circumstances. As the council has less than a 

five-year housing land supply, relevant local policies are out-of-date. In 

the most basic sense, the tilted balance is a version of the planning 

balance that is already tilted in an applicant’s favour. If the tilted balance 

applies, planning permission should normally be granted unless the 

negative impacts ‘significantly and demonstrably’ outweigh the positive 

impacts. 

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 Conflict with development plan policies will always be a negative 

impact. If the policies are up-to-date, that negative impact will be given 

greater weight. However, if they’re out-of-date, the weight given to the 

negative impact will be seriously reduced. No matter what the negative 

Page 183



 

impacts are, if a proposal manages to secure sufficient positive impacts 

(of sufficient weight) to tilt the planning balance in its favour, planning 

permission should be granted.  

  

14.2 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 

Page 184



 

including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Context plan 

 Block Plan 422/P/01 B  

 

Page 185



NORTH

W E

S  U  N  P  A  T  H

51

G
 R

 E
 E

 N
   

  S
 T

 R
 E

 E
 T

S I T E

K E N R I C K   W A Y   A4182

51

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

G
 R

 E
 E

 N
   

  S
 T

 R
 E

 E
 T

S I T E

Serial number: 262091
  Crown copyright and database right 2023C
Ordnance Survey licence 100048957
Reproduction in whole or in part is prohbited
without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey

10 0 10 20

1:500  metres

10 0 10 20 30 40 50

1:1250  metres

LOCATION  PLAN  - 1:1250

BLOCK  PLAN  - 1:500
SITE  PLANS

1:1250, 1:500

May 2023

S
ta

ff
or

ds
hi

re
.

TF
10

 9
B
L

K
ee

pe
rs

 C
ot

ta
ge

N
r 

N
ew

po
rt

.
O

rl
so

w

M
ob

ile
 :

 0
79

67
 2

16
95

5
D

O
VE

AR
C

H
D

ES
IG

N
@

G
M

AI
L.

C
O

M

A4
PRINT TO FIT

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 D

es
ig

n 
Li

m
ite

d
A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 &
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

su
lta

nt
s

REV A 1:1250 SCALE BAR ADDED

B
422/P/01

Proposed Development at:-

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT AT : 51 GREEN  STREET, WEST  BROMWICH. B70 6DL

51 Green Street,
WEST BROMWICH
West Midlands.
B70 6DL

Mr I Singh

9.8.2023
REV B Proposed access added to plans 10.10.2023

P
age 186

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Post

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
151.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
289925

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
289925

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
290050

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
290050

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
290000

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
290000

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
401084

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
401084

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
401209

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
401209

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
401100

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
401100

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
401200

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
401200

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
PROPOSALS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
SITE ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
DRAWING No:

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Minor inaccuracies may occur due to printing processes.

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Written dimensions to be taken only.

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Amendment

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
CLIENT:



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68559 

Application Received 10 August 2023 

Application Description Proposed variation of condition 12 of 

DC/13/56229 (Proposed variation of condition 

12 of DC/31470 to extend opening hours from 

07:00 to 23:00 on any day to 05:00 to midnight 

Monday to Saturday and 7.00 to 23.00 on 

Sundays and Bank Holidays) to extend opening 

hours to 24 hours any day. 

Application Address Gateway Service Station, 76 Birmingham 

Road, Great Barr, Birmingham, B43 6NT 

Applicant Motor Fuel Group Limited 

Ward Great Barr With Yew Tree 

Contact Officer Douglas Eardley 

douglas_eardley@sandwell.gov.uk  

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 It is recommended that Condition 12 of planning permission 

DC/13/56229 be varied to read as follows: 

 

“The application premises may be open for custom 24 hours any day for 

a period of 1 year from the date of this permission”  

 

 

Page 187

Agenda Item 12

mailto:douglas_eardley@sandwell.gov.uk


 

1.2  Consequently conditional temporary permission is recommended on a 1-

year temporary basis, subject to the same conditions as imposed on 

DC/13/56229 and additional conditions relating to the following: 

 

i) Between the hours of 23:00 and 05:00 on any day no sales other 
than of petrol or diesel fuel shall be allowed. 

ii) Electric vehicle recharging points shall only be operated between the 

hours of 07.00 hours and 23.00 hours on any day. 

iii) All amplified or electronic PA systems used to amplify sound external 

to the premises shall only be operated between the hours of 07.00 

hours and 20.00 hours on any day.  

iv) The air-line machine and any associated compressor shall only be 

operated between the hours of 07.00 hours and 20.00 hours on any 

day. 

v) Tankers shall only deliver fuel between the hours of 07.00 hours and 

20.00 hours on any day 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal to extend the opening hours to 24 hours any day of the 

Gateway service Station would upgrade the use and function of the 

existing site.  

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 

 4 Context  

 

4.1 The application is being reported to your committee as the application 

has generated 3 objections. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Gateway Service Station, 76 Birmingham Road, Great Barr, B43 6NT 

Page 188

https://www.google.com/maps/place/76+Birmingham+Rd,+Great+Barr,+Birmingham+B43+6NT/@52.550774,-1.9376288,349m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870a2fd8203f3e3:0x5c214b99a1b950eb!8m2!3d52.5507724!4d-1.9363413!16s%2Fg%2F11c1fnxj5x?entry=ttu


 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan. 

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are: -  

 

Planning history (including appeal decisions). 

Environmental concerns – Noise, light pollution, traffic, general 

disturbance and anti-social behaviour. 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site relates to an existing petrol filling station (Gateway 

Service Station) on the western side of Birmingham Road, Great Barr. 

The site is bounded by residential properties to the north, west and south 

and to the east are residential properties on the opposite side of 

Birmingham Road.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/23/68230 Retention of jet wash 

machine and Amazon 

Locker. 

Grant Conditional 

Retrospective 

Consent – 07.08.2023 

Page 189



 

DC/19/63105 Proposed raising of 

existing canopy from 3.8m 

to 4.6m. 

Grant Permission – 

12.06.2019 

DC/15/58557 Proposed removal of 

condition 11 of planning 

permission DC/14/57256 - 

to allow permanent 

consent for use as petrol 

filling station with opening 

hours of 05.00 to 00.00 

Monday to Saturday and 

07.00 to 23.00 on 

Sundays and Bank 

Holidays. 

Grant Conditional 

Retrospective 

Consent – 08.10.2015 

DC/14/57256 Proposed removal of 

condition 12 

(DC/13/56229) to allow 

permanent consent for 

opening hours of 05.00 to 

00.00 Monday to Saturday 

and 07.00 to 23.00 on 

Sundays and Bank 

Holidays. 

Grant Temporary 

Retrospective 

Consent – 05.09.2014 

DC/13/56229 Proposed variation of 

condition 12 of DC/31470 

to extend opening hours 

from 07:00 to 23:00 on 

any day to 05:00 to 

midnight Monday to 

Saturday and 7.00 to 

23.00 on Sundays and 

Bank Holidays. 

Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

– 10.10.2013 

DC/13/6024A Proposed internally 

illuminated ATM surround. 

Grant Advertisement 

Consent – 21.08.2013 

Page 190



 

DC/13/56082 Proposed installation of 

ATM. 

Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

– 21.08.2013 

DC/99/3994A Garage forecourt signage. Grant Advertisement 

Consent – 08.04.1999 

DC/98/34770 Installation of 2No. 1 

tonne liquefied petroleum 

gas storage vessels and 

dispenser. 

Grant Permission 

Subject to Conditions 

– 11.12.1998 

DC/32013 Installation of jetwash and 

vacuum. 

Allowed with 

Conditions – 

09.10.1996 

DC/31470 Demolition of petrol filling 

station and rollover car 

wash. Development of 

petrol filling station. 

Allowed with 

Conditions – 

20.03.1996 

DC/3504A Forecourt signs, 

shop/canopy fascia, 

freestanding monolith. 

Grant Advertisement 

Consent – 14.11.1995 

DC/17563 Installation of 3,000 gallon 

above - ground diesel 

storage tank & forecourt 

dispenser. 

Grant Permission – 

11.07.1984 

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The application is for the proposed variation of condition 12 of 

DC/13/56229 (Proposed variation of condition 12 of DC/31470 to extend 

opening hours from 07:00 to 23:00 on any day to 05:00 to midnight 

Monday to Saturday and 7.00 to 23.00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays) 

to opening hours of 24 hours any day.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letters with 

3 objections being received.   

Page 191



 

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i) Environmental concerns – Noise, light pollution, traffic, general 

disturbance and anti-social behaviour. 

 

Non-material objections have been raised regarding loss of property 

value.  

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Pollution Control (Noise and Air Pollution)  

 

 They have reviewed the submitted noise impact assessment report and 

they recommend a 1-year temporary permission for 24 hour opening 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

i) Between the hours of 23:00 and 05:00 on any day no sales other 
than of petrol or diesel fuel shall be allowed. 

ii) Electric vehicle recharging points shall only be operated between the 

hours of 07.00 hours and 23.00 hours on any day. 

iii) All amplified or electronic PA systems used to amplify sound external 

to the premises shall only be operated between the hours of 07.00 

hours and 20.00 hours on any day.  

iv) The air-line machine and any associated compressor shall only be 

operated between the hours of 07.00 hours and 20.00 hours on any 

day. 

v) Tankers shall only deliver fuel between the hours of 07.00 hours and 

20.00 hours on any day 

 

 

Page 192



 

10.2 West Midlands Police  

 

 No objection.   

 

10.3 Highways 

 

They state that the extended opening hours proposed for the petrol 

station do not fall within the network peak times, the trips at these times 

would also not generate a significant increase in parking 

accumulation. Highways have no objections. 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 None relevant. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

 
The planning history for this site is detailed within section 7.1 of this 

report. It is evident that the site has been the subject of various planning 

applications over the years, which has included applications to alter the 

opening hours of the premises. Therefore, it is considered that the 

planning history associated to this site is a material planning 

consideration, and that when coupled with the other factors (objections 

and consultee responses) for this application, that a temporary 

Page 193



 

conditional 1-year permission would be the appropriate course of action 

regarding DC/23/68559.    

  

13.3 Environmental concerns – Noise, light pollution, traffic, general 

disturbance and anti-social behaviour 

 

Given the concerns raised by neighbours pertaining to noise, light 

pollution, traffic, general disturbance and anti-social behaviour in relation 

to the proposal for DC/23/68559, it is considered that a permission on a 

permanent basis of the application would be unsuitable at this time. It is 

noted that Highways have no objection, therefore in line with the 

comments received from Pollution Control (Noise and Air Pollution) in 

section 10.1 of this report, a conditional temporary permission for a 

period of 1 year is recommended, which would give the local planning 

authority the opportunity to review the proposal again in relation to the 

impact of the extended hours on the amenity of the area. Moving onto 

anti-social behaviour, it is noted within section 10.2 of this report that the 

West Midlands Police has no objection to DC/23/68559. Nevertheless, if 

anti-social behaviour manifests because of the proposal for 

DC/23/68559, then this can be adjudged in conjunction with the other 

factors raised by the objectors when the proposed temporary 1-year 

period for DC/23/68559 expires.   

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

  

14.2 On balance, there are no significant material considerations which 

warrant refusal that could not be controlled by conditions; and a 

conditional temporary 1-year permission is considered appropriate at this 

Page 194



 

juncture to enable the local planning authority the opportunity to review 

the proposal again at the end of this period. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 

Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 

carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 

need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 

Proposals that help to shape places in ways that 

contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 

emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 

resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 

including the conversion of existing buildings; and 

support renewable and low carbon energy and 

associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

 

Page 195



 

17. Appendices 

 

 Context plan 

  

 
 

Page 196



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to Planning Committee 

29 November 2023 

Application Reference DC/23/68578 

Application Received 15th August 2023 

Application Description Retention of outbuilding at rear for garden 

room, storage and gym. 

Application Address 180 Walsall Road, 

West Bromwich, 

 B71 3LH 

Applicant Mr Faryad Ahmed 

Ward Hateley Heath 

Contact Officer Beth Astley-Serougi  

Beth_AstleySerougi@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to conditions relating to: 

(i) Within 3 months of permission being granted the windows and

doors located on the front elevation to be obscurely glazed and

retained as such.

(ii) The outbuilding is not to be occupied at any time other than for

purposes ancillary to the residential use of the dwelling known as

180 Walsall Road.

Page 199

Agenda Item 13

mailto:Beth_AstleySerougi@sandwell.gov.uk


 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The development is of satisfactory design and would not significantly 

impact on the private amenity of neighbouring properties, in terms of loss 

of light, outlook and privacy. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods 

4 Context  

 

4.1 The application is being reported to your committee because the Agent 

is an employee of Sandwell MBC and one objection has been received. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

180 Walsall Road, West Bromwich 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is not allocated within the Development Plan. 

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Amenity concerns – Overlooking/loss of privacy 

Design concerns - appearance and materials, layout and density of 

building, wider visual amenity and overdevelopment 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site relates to a three-bedroom semi-detached property 

on the western side of Walsall Road, West Bromwich. The site is within a 

Page 200

https://www.google.com/maps/place/180+Walsall+Rd,+West+Bromwich+B71+3LH/@52.5460785,-1.9829892,75m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870a29cdfa6a3e3:0x529616d5a63471c3!8m2!3d52.5461246!4d-1.9829231!16s%2Fg%2F11cpn814q_?entry=ttu


 

predominately residential area with the Stone Cross Public House and 

the retail core of Stone Cross to the south of the application site. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 An enforcement complaint (ref: ENF/23/12127) was recorded and 

investigated which found that the garden building required planning 

permission. 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/23/68448 Proposed single and two 

storey side and rear 

extension, front canopy 

and garage conversion 

into habitable space. 

Grant Permission 

subject to conditions – 

08.09.2023.  

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant seeks retrospective planning permission for an outbuilding 

located at the rear of the property. The use of the outbuilding is stated as 

a garden room/storage/gym.  

 

8.2    The outbuilding measures 4.115m in length at maximum, 7.3m in width 

at maximum and 2.775m in height. The outbuilding has a flat roof and 

has two windows and a set of doors on the front elevation.  

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter with 

one response received from a local resident.   

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

Page 201



 

i) Loss of privacy. 

ii) Possible use as living accommodation. 

 

Non-material objections have been raised regarding depth of 

foundations, party wall issues.  

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 None  

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2 The Framework refers to development adding to the overall quality of the 

area by achieving high quality design, achieving good architecture and 

layouts. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 ENV3 and SAD EOS9 refers to well-designed schemes that provide 

quality living environments. The proposed layout and design are 

considered to be acceptable. 

 

 

 

Page 202



 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Amenity concerns 

 

The outbuilding is located at the rear of the property. There are no 

windows on the side elevations of the development and therefore I do 

not consider the privacy of neighbouring properties to be significantly 

impacted by the development. Notwithstanding this, a condition is 

recommended to obscurely glaze the door and windows on the front 

elevation so as to ensure privacy is maintained for the neighbouring 

property.  

 

With regard to concerns that the development could be used for 

separate living accommodation, I have also recommended a condition 

that the use of the outbuilding is to be ancillary to the residential use of 

the application property.  

 

13.4 Design concerns  

 

The outbuilding has a flat roof and therefore I do not consider the 

development to be too large in terms of scale or massing to an extent 

that would warrant a refusal. It is of domestic scale and in character with 

the residential area, it is therefore considered that it would not result in 

any undue harm to the character of the area.  

 

Furthermore, I do not consider the proposed development to constitute 

overdevelopment of the plot considering the level of remaining space to 

the front and rear of the property.  

 

 

 

 

Page 203



 

14. Conclusion 

  

 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

development plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal that could not be controlled by 

conditions. 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

Page 204



 

 

17. Appendices 

 

 Existing/Proposed Location, Ground Floor and Elevations – 2023-

01/REV01 

Page 205



P
age 206



Report to Planning Committee 

29 November 2023 

Application Reference DC/23/68624 

Application Received 01 September 2023 

Application Description Proposed 2 No. detached light industrial units 

with new access, parking, landscaping and new 

retaining wall with railings to rear. 

Application Address Land At Corner Of Cleton Street And 

Sedgley Road East/Tipton Road 

Tipton 

Applicant Mr C Parker 

Ward Oldbury 

Contact Officer Anjan Dey  

anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That, subsequent to ratification by Council of the departure from 

development plan, planning permission is granted subject to conditions 

relating to: 

(i) External materials;

(ii) Ground contamination;

(iii) Finished floor levels;

(iv) Provision and retention of electric vehicle charging points;

(v) Construction management plan (including dust management,

hours of construction, wheel cleaning etc;

Page 207

Agenda Item 14

mailto:anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk


 

(vi) Low NOx boilers; 

(vii) Hard and soft landscaping; 

(viii) Drainage and SUDS; 

(ix) Restriction on hours of opening; and 

(x) Parking laid out, provision and retention. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal would create jobs and bring investment into the local area.  

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to Planning Committee because the 

proposed use is a departure from the council’s development plan.   

 

4.3 To assist members with site context, links to several Google Map images 

are provided below: 

 

          Cleton Street/Tipton Road, Tipton  

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is allocated for housing and if members were to approve the 

application, it would have to be considered by Full Council for ratification. 

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

Page 208

https://www.google.com/maps/place/1+Groveland+Rd,+Tipton+DY4+7TL/@52.5178027,-2.0519875,419m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x48709977b8f4a239:0xa8a1873a4bf2b664!8m2!3d52.5155078!4d-2.051612!16s%2Fg%2F11sv9cgm87?entry=ttu


 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are: - 

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Proposals in the Development Plan 

Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

Traffic generation 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application site is an area and which is to the immediate north of 

existing industrial units that are located within Cleton Street Business 

Park. The land is located along Tipton Road and Cleton Street and forms 

a buffer between the industrial units and the highway. The area is 

characterised by industrial/commercial units to the north and south east 

with residential properties to the west.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 There is no significant or relevant history of planning applications for this 

site and the land could be described as landscaping that acts as a buffer 

between existing industrial units and the highway – Tipton Road.  

 

7.2  There are no relevant planning applications for the site but a pre-

application enquiry was submitted in October 2022; reference 

PA/22/00622.  
 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 The applicant proposes to create a new access from Tipton Road with 

the existing industrial estate, creating two light industrial units, (use 

classes E(g)) together with servicing, parking and landscaping. 

 

8.2 Units 1 and 2 would be 6.1m high with a dual sloping roof, by 38.8m long 

by 12.5m high with floorspace for each of the units would be 450 square 

metres. The proposed site plans shows 5 car parking spaces for each of 

Page 209



 

the units including 1 electric vehicle charging point per unit. There would 

be a tarmac access drive and landscaped areas.   

 

8.4    The would be a maximum of 6 people employed at the units and 

proposed hours of business are 0830 to 1730 (Mon to Fri) and 0900 to 

1300 (Sat) with no opening on Sundays and Public Holidays.   

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by 10 neighbour notification letters 

without response.  

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Planning and Transportation Policy 

 

The site of the proposed development is allocated for housing; therefore, 

the proposed industrial development would be a departure from the 

development plan allocation, under Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS) 

policies DEL2, EMP1 and EMP4 (see 12.1).  

 

According to policy EMP4 of the BCCS, the council should have a supply 

of 70 hectares of readily available employment land. The council has a 

short fall and the proposed development would go some way help fill this 

gap. 

 

Taking the above into account there are no policy issues with the 

proposed industrial/warehouse development of the site, and no objections 

to the departure.  

 

10.2 Highways 

 

 The highways team do not object to the proposal but recommended a 

condition is attached for the layout for parking and manoeuvring to be 

implemented prior to occupation and to be retained as such.  

 

Page 210



 

10.3 Public Health (Air Quality)  

 

 No objections have been received and it is recommended that conditions 

are attached to any approval that include the implementation and 

retention of the electric vehicle charging points shown, a dust 

management plan (part of the construction management plan) to protect 

local residents and businesses during the construction phase of the 

development, as well as the implementation of the submitted travel plan, 

and the installation of low NOx boilers.  

 

10.4 Public Health (Contaminated Land)  

 

 No objections subject to the submission of a Desktop Study prior to 

commencement of development to identify the potential for risk of on-site 

contamination. In the event that contamination is found this should be 

reported to the LPA along with details relating to remediation. These 

matters can be dealt with by way appropriate conditions.  

 

10.5 Public Heath (Air Pollution and Noise) 

           

         Has no objections due to the proposed location that is away from 

residential properties.  

   

10.6 The Canal and River Trust 

 

 No comments submitted as they have confirmed that the site falls 

outside their consultation zone.   

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

 

 

Page 211



 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s development plan are relevant: 

 

ENV3: Design Quality    

ENV8: Air Quality  

ENV5: Drainage 

DEL2: Managing the Balance between Employment Land and Housing 

EMP1: Providing for Economic Growth and Jobs 

EMP4: Canals  

SAD H1: Housing Allocations  

SAD EOS9: Urban Design Principles  

 

12.2 The site of the proposed development is allocated for residential use, 

therefore SAD policy H1 is applicable. However, no residential uses are 

proposed, and the development is classed as a departure from the 

development plan.  

 

12.3 BCCS policy DEL2 states that proposals for new employment 

development in areas of housing growth will be resisted where it is not 

consistent with housing led regeneration of the area. It has been over 

ten years since the adoption of the BCCS and the site remains 

undeveloped for housing and is unlikely to come forward due to viability 

issues (contaminated land mitigation measures).  

 

12.4 BCCS policy EMP1 aims to provide land for at least 75,000 industrial 

and warehouse jobs in the Black Country by 2026. For this, there needs 

to be a ready supply of available land at any one time. Under BCCS 

Policy EMP4, Sandwell should have 70ha of available employment land 

available at any one time (the council currently has 23ha). The borough 

has been well under this level of provision since the adoption of the 

BCCS in 2011, therefore the proposed industrial development of the site 

would be welcome as this would bring forward new industrial 

development that would add to the existing stock of employment land.  

 

Page 212



 

12.7 The site is around 205 metres away from Birmingham Canal, however  

BCCS policy ENV4 is applicable, under this policy all development 

proposals likely to affect the canal network; must protect and enhance it 

nature conservation value, protect its visual amenity.  

 

12.8 The proposed development will have to give regard to both BCCS policy 

ENV5 relating to the incorporation of sustainable drainage systems to 

assist with reducing the impact of flooding and surface water run-off. 

This is conditioned as such. 

 

12.9 The proposed development would have to give regard to the guidance 

contained in BCCS policy ENV8 and the Air Quality SPD. Electric vehicle 

charge points are proposed and other matters such as construction 

management plan and low emission boilers are conditioned as such. 

 

13. Material Considerations & other relevant considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Proposals in the Development Plan 

 

The proposal is contrary to the council’s development plan; however, the 

residential development is unlikely to come forward in the long-term. The 

proposed development would create jobs in the local area and is in 

context with the existing character of the business park.  

 

13.8 Traffic generation 

 

The council’s Highways team has raised no objections.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 213



 

13.9   Design  

 

The proposed design is typical of this sort of industrial development and 

is considered appropriate to the location within this established Business 

Park.   

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so, however the site has been undeveloped for a 

significant amount of time, and council resources are impacted upon by 

managing fly tipping on the site.  

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None  
 

Social Value The proposal would potentially provide jobs for the 

local area. 

 

16. Appendices 

 

Location plan  

Site Plan  

         Proposed elevations – 4304-02 

         Proposed ground floor plan & Section 1   

Page 214



Page 215



P
age 216



P
age 217



P
age 218



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference DC/23/68690 

Application Received 21 September 2023 

Application Description Proposed renewal of temporary traveller site 

(planning permission DC/17/60410 and 

DC/20/63956) for up to 34 caravans, together 

with associated toilet/washroom facilities and 

boundary fencing (three year permission 

requested). 

Application Address Travellers Transit Site 

Wellington Street 

Smethwick 

Applicant Sandwell MBC 

Ward Soho & Victoria 

Contact Officer Carl Mercer 

carl_mercer@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That planning permission is granted subject to the following condition: 

 

i) The development authorised by this permission shall be 

discontinued at the expiration of a period of 3 years from the date 

of this permission and any structure/building in association with the 

use/development shall be removed from the site. 

 

 

Page 219

Agenda Item 15



 

 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposal accords with the provisions of national and local policy in 

terms of the broad aims and objectives of providing transit sites; 

however, a further temporary consent would ensure that the effect on the 

local community and environment can continue to be monitored before 

any decision is reached on the need for, and the size and location of, a 

permanent transit site. Furthermore, a temporary consent would not 

hinder future development. 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Strong resilient communities 

 4 Context  

 

4.1 The application is being reported to your committee as the application is 

submitted by the Council, is on Council-owned land and three objections 

have been received. 

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 

Transit Site, Wellington Street, Smethwick 

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is allocated for local employment uses in the Development Plan. 

Due to the temporary nature of the proposal, the use is not considered to 

be a departure from the plan. 

 

5.2 Material planning considerations (MPCs) are matters that can and 

should be taken into account when making planning decisions. By law, 

Page 220

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Wellington+St,+Smethwick/@52.4960808,-1.9459797,271m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m6!3m5!1s0x4870bd187ceea539:0xcfb6e1e1a6d1d44c!8m2!3d52.493142!4d-1.9421926!16s%2Fg%2F1thsqtyc?entry=ttu


 

planning decisions should be made in accordance with the development 

plan unless MPCs indicate otherwise. This means that if enough MPCs 

weigh in favour of a development, it should be approved even if it 

conflicts with a local planning policy. 

 

5.3 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Proposals in the Development Plan 

Planning history (including appeal decisions) 

Amenity concerns – noise/anti-social behaviour/dumping of rubbish 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 The application relates to Council-owned land at the corner of Boulton 

Road, Foundry Lane and Wellington Street, opposite Black Patch Park. 

The site is used as a traveller transit site. 

 

6.2 Toilet and washing facilities are available in a relocatable steel container, 

which is connected to water, electricity and sewerage and can be 

disconnected and removed when use of the land as a temporary transit 

site ceases. 

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 The site was given temporary consent under planning application 

DC/17/60410 for three years by Planning Committee in May 2017 to 

operate as a traveller transit site for 34 caravans. This consent was 

renewed by committee for a further temporary period of three years in 

2020. 

 

7.2  Relevant planning applications are as follows: 

 

DC/20/63956 Proposed renewal of 

temporary traveller site 

Temporary approval - 

15.05.2020 

Page 221



 

(planning permission 

DC/17/60410) for up to 34 

caravans, together with 

associated 

toilet/washroom facilities 

and boundary fencing (3 

year permission 

requested). 

DC/17/60410 Establishment of 
temporary travellers site 
for up to 34 caravans, 
together with associated 
toilet/washroom facilities 
and boundary fencing (3 
year permission 
requested). 
 

Temporary approval - 
05.05.2017 

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

8.1 As the description states, the Council propose to extend the temporary 

use by a further three years. 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter and 

site notice, with three objections being received. 

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on grounds of amenity; namely, 

concerns regarding noise, anti-social behaviour and dumping of rubbish. 

 

It has also been raised as to who in the Council is contacted if matters 

arise. The site is operated by the Council’s Environmental Protection 

Team and issues may be reported to them. 

 

Page 222



 

The objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material considerations). 

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

10.1 Highways  

 

 No objection. 

 

10.2 Pollution Control (Noise)  

 

 The officer states that they have checked the records for any history of 

noise complaints in respect of this site but have found none. Given its 

location and the small number of occasions on which it is used, the 

officer believes it is unlikely that noise issues will arise in the future. No 

objections are raised on noise grounds to the renewal of the permission 

for a further three years. 

 

10.3 West Midlands Police  

 

 No objection.  

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 The NPPF is supported by a specific document entitled ‘Planning policy 

for traveller sites’, which refers to setting targets, identifying deliverable 

sites, protecting local amenity and that sites are sustainable. 

 

11.2 ‘Planning policy for traveller sites’ refers to determining applications for 

such sites by assessing matters such as the existing level of provision; 

whether the application accords with the development plan; is a 

brownfield/sustainable site; and whether there is an up to date five-year 

supply of deliverable sites. This proposal is in accordance with the NPPF 

which states that travellers are among the groups to assess and provide 

housing for. 

 

 

Page 223



 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the Council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

 BCCS 

 

HOU4 - Accommodation for Gypsies/Travellers/Travelling Showpeople 

 

12.2 Black Country Core Strategy Policy HOU4 set out targets for travellers 

up to 2018, with a target of 10-12 pitches and states that they should be 

safe, have convenient access, located to cause minimum disruption to 

surrounding communities and should be suitable as a place to live.  

These targets were based on needs identified in the Black Country 

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) 2008.  To 

date there are no sites allocated within the borough as part of the Site 

Allocation and Delivery Development Plan Document. 

 

12.3 Taking into consideration that no sites are currently available within the 

borough, in the first instance the continued provision of such a site would 

assist in meeting the Council’s own targets.  In considering whether the 

continued use of the site is acceptable, the site is brownfield land, 

benefits from reasonable transport links and is not directly adjacent to 

existing residential properties. In addition, further temporary consent 

would not prejudice future proposals for the site. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 National and local planning policy considerations have been referred to 

above in Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other material 

considerations, these are highlighted below: 

 

13.2 Planning history 

 

13.3 The principle for the development was established by the first approval. 

As no adverse comments have been received from consultees or the 

public consultation to any issues regarding the operation of the site thus 

Page 224



 

far, the primary material consideration is whether a further temporary 

consent is appropriate. 

 

13.4 Planning policy guidance states that: ‘It will rarely be justifiable to grant a 

second temporary permission (except in cases where changing 

circumstances provide a clear rationale…)’. Given that no immediate 

redevelopment of the site is proposed and taking into account the 

changing aspirations for the site (from employment use to residential – a 

change approved by Cabinet in November 2018 and carried forward to 

the Black Country Plan) and the benefits that the transit site provides, as 

highlighted above, I find that a further temporary use is appropriate in 

this instance. 

 

13.5 Amenity concerns  

 

I note the objectors’ concerns regarding noise, anti-social behaviour and 

rubbish. However, these are matters which can be managed by the 

Council and police. Given the comments of the Pollution Control officer 

regarding a lack of complaints, there is no evidence before me that the 

continued, temporary use of the site would create or exacerbate these 

issues. 

 

14. Conclusion and planning balance 

 

14.1 All decisions on planning applications should be based on an objective 

balancing exercise. This is known as applying the “planning balance”. 

It is established by law that planning applications should be refused if 

they conflict with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. This essentially means that the positive impacts of a 

development should be balanced against its negative impacts. 

 

14.2 On balance the proposal accords with the provisions of relevant 

Development Plan policies and there are no significant material 

considerations which warrant refusal of the application. 

 

Page 225



 

15 Alternative Options 

 

15.1 Refusal of the application is an option if there are material planning 

reasons for doing so.  In my opinion the proposal is compliant with 

relevant polices and there are no material considerations that would 

justify refusal.  

16 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the applicant 

has a right of appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, and 

they can make a claim for costs against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this proposal 

and therefore an equality impact assessment has not 

been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

None.  
 

Social Value None. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed.  

17. Appendices 

 

 Location Plan 

Context Plan 

Location Plan 1 

Site Plan 2 

Page 226



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 227



__ _______________

OCfi? 160410

N
;fl1

UJ
yes / V

\I
T ‘NçN ‘N

I S

I I

‘N

/
\\ t’ \\

V/
•

///

//

‘L

I
I

1 130 5rn
flrmr/Crt rre Pc

Sub
\

I / Sub tn I

washing and toilet tacihties

;; ::‘:;: sewer -

r
fl.

% Ssndwell Proposed Transit Site
Site Layout

NORTH

Not to Stale - Boulton Road! Smethwick
: ‘C:cr. ; (ar-i daibar-r, rgti(s 20(7 - Area 0 67haOrira Soraty LrcerKe N’ I32 119

Yco are 0 perrr;tted to topy, ,b3censs.
F ;trrbr-tvc!5eIIanyo!lFr-I0ataIoffrrd

-

Ptt1’flYTfl February2Ol7

— !.riLw,r.r-ara!it.:er,4a,aeflaS!r.:

-- - -•

A

‘I I- li

Page 228



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

Application Reference PD/22/02530 

Application Received 27 September 2023. 

Application Description Proposed replacement of existing lattice tower 

with an 25.0m high swann CS5S lattice tower 

with 12 No. antennas, 2 No. GPS modules, 4 

No. 300 dishes, 2 No. cabinets, 2 No. racks, 2 

No. future racks and associated ancillary 

works. 

Application Address Telecommunication Mast 1694 

Haden Park Road 

Cradley Heath 

Applicant Cornerstone  

Hive 2  

1530 Arlington Business Park  

Theale 

RG7 4SA.  

Ward Cradley Heath & Old Hill.  

Contact Officer Name: Anjan Dey 

anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk  

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 Prior Approval is granted in respect of siting and appearance.  

 

Page 229

Agenda Item 16

mailto:anjan_dey@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The proposed monopole is appropriate in scale and the proposed siting 

and appearance is considered to be acceptable and would not have a 

significant impact on public visual amenity.  

 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

A connected and accessible Sandwell – the proposal meets 

the Councils aspirations to improve digital infrastructure 

within the Borough 

4 Context  

 

4.1 This application is being reported to your Planning Committee because it 

has generated a number of neighbour objections.  

 

4.2 To assist members with site context, a link to Google Maps is provided 

below: 

 
Haden Park Road and Haden Hill Park, Cradley Heath  

 

5 Key Considerations 

 

5.1 The site is Council owned and is unallocated within the development plan.  

 

5.2 The material planning considerations which are relevant to this 

application are:-  

 

Government policy (NPPF) 

Local policy 

Public visual amenity 

 

 

 

Page 230

https://www.google.com/maps/place/35+Haden+Park+Rd,+Cradley+Heath+B64+7HF/@52.466497,-2.0672719,419m/data=!3m2!1e3!4b1!4m6!3m5!1s0x487096d96590fb7b:0x5c36ce221aa13607!8m2!3d52.4664938!4d-2.064697!16s%2Fg%2F11cpcq66jw?entry=ttu


 

 

6. The Application Site 

 

6.1 This site is the existing location of a lattice telecoms tower, and ancillary 

equipment, that is located at the north-western side of Haden Hill Park 

adjacent to the cricket ground and bowling green. Haden Hill Park is 

surrounded by residential properties.  

 

7. Planning History 
 

7.1 Relevant planning applicant application are as follows:  

 

DC/31609 

 

 

 

DC/04/43112 

Installation of a radio mast 

and ancillary radio 

equipment building. 

 

Proposed replacement of 

15m telecommunications 

monopole with a 20m 

lattice tower. 

Grant permission with 

conditions. 

28.07.1995. 

 

Grant permission with 

conditions.  

10.09.2004. 

 

  

 

 

8. Application Details 

 

           8.1 This application is seeking prior approval for the siting and appearance 

for the proposed replacement of existing 20m lattice tower with a 25m 

high swann CS5S lattice tower with 12 No. antennas, 2 No. GPS 

modules, 4 No. 300 dishes, 2 No. cabinets, 2 No. racks, 2 No. future 

racks and associated ancillary works. The existing 20 metre high tower 

has been in situ since 2004.   Amended plans were received to show a 

green finish to the  lattice tower. 

 

                     The application has been made under the provisions of the Town and 

Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 (as amended) – Schedule 2, Part 16, Class A.  

Page 231



 

 

 

9. Publicity 
 

9.1 The application has been publicised by neighbour notification letter as 

well as site notices. Four objections have been submitted.   

 

9.2 Objections 

 

Objections have been received on the following grounds: 

 

i. The monopole with increased height would be excessively high 

and unduly prominent; 

ii. It is and increasingly would be detrimental to Haden Hill House 

which is located nearby.  

 

Non Material objections have been raised regarding devaluation of 

property and the monopole is a risk to public health the latter is 

addressed in paragraph 11.2 and other considerations 13.2. 

 

These objections will be addressed in section 13 (Material 

considerations). 

 

9.4 Support  

 

         Following neighbour consultation 3 representations in support have been 

received. A member of the adjacent Old Hill Cricket Club supports the 

proposal and requested that the lattice tower had a green finish so that it 

blends in with surrounding trees.  Amended plans were received to show 

a green finish as such.     

 

10. Consultee responses 

 

Highways has no objections to the proposal as the installation is clear of 

the highway and would not affect parking provision for the adjacent 

cricket club.  

Page 232



 

 

11. National Planning Policy 

 

11.1 National Planning Policy Framework promotes sustainable development 

but states that local circumstances should be taken into account to 

reflect the character, needs and opportunities for each area. 

 

11.2 With reference to health concerns of the proposal. Paragraph 116 of the     

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states “Local planning 

authorities must determine applications on planning grounds only. They 

should not seek to prevent competition between different operators, 

question the need for an electronic communications system, or set 

health safeguards different from the International Commission guidelines 

for public exposure”. 

 

12. Local Planning Policy 
 

12.1 The following polices of the council’s Development Plan are relevant: 

 

SAD TEL 1 Telecommunication Antenna and Masts 

 

12.2 SAD TEL 1 (Telecommunications Antenna and Masts) of the Site 

allocations and Delivery Plan Document requires equipment to be 

sympathetically designed to minimise the impact of the development on 

amenity.   The Mast replaces an existing, being only 5 metres higher and 

has a green finish to complement the surrounding trees. 

 

13. Material Considerations 

 

13.1 The material considerations relating to government policy (NPPF) and 

proposals within the Development Plan have been referred to above in 

Sections 11 and 12. With regards to the other considerations these are 

highlighted below: 

 

 

 

Page 233



 

13.2  Public Visual Amenity 

 

These monopoles are of a significant height by their nature, however it is 

considered that the proposed increase in height of 5 metres, in addition 

to the existing twenty, is not considered to be significant. It is considered 

that that the lattice tower is over 87 metres away from the rear elevations 

of the nearest properties along Haden Hill Road. Furthermore, the mast 

is located to the north-east of those dwellings and is not directly in view.  

The cricket ground club house is also located directly in front of the mast.  

The natural screening (trees) at the rear of the proposed location 

combined with the green finish will also reduce its visual impact.  

 

There is a substantial area of existing trees between the site and Haden 

Hill House, which is some distance away, and it is my view that the 

upgraded lattice tower would not detrimentally impact the setting and 

character of Haden Hill House 

 

13.2  Other considerations - health 

 

As indicated in paragraph 11.2 above health considerations are not 

material planning decisions for proposed telecommunications mast.  The 

applicant is only required to provide an ICNIRP (International 

Commission on Non-Ironizing Radiation Protection) Certificate.  The 

appropriate ICNIRP Certificate has been submitted confirming the 

proposal has been designed to be in full compliance with the 

requirement of the radio frequency (RF) public exposure guidelines set 

out by ICNIRP. As the proposal complies with the ICNIRP, the proposal 

is in compliance with the NPPF and therefore health grounds are not 

material to the determination of this application.   

14 Alternative Options 

 

14.1 Refusal of application is an option if there are material planning reasons 

for doing so.   In this instance it is considered that the proposal is 

appropriate in appearance and siting due to its distance from residential 

Page 234



 

properties and the surrounding trees within the setting of Haden Hill 

Park.   

15 Implications 

 

Resources: When a planning application is refused the 

applicant has a right of appeal to the Planning 

Inspectorate, and they can make a claim for costs 

against the Council.  

Legal and 

Governance: 

This application is submitted under the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 

Risk: None. 

Equality: There are no equality issues arising from this 

proposal and therefore an equality impact 

assessment has not been carried out. 

Health and 

Wellbeing: 

Refer to sections 2.1 and 11. 
 

Social Value None. 

 

16. Appendices 

 

Location Plan. 100 D  

Proposed planning layout. 201 D   

Proposed elevations. 301 REV E  

 

 

Page 235



Posts

Terrace

Pond

Tennis Courts

Bowling Green

Posts

Club House

Cricket Ground

El

35

Sta
Sub

Pavilion

28

Car Park

Play
Area

Mast (Telecommunication)

Play Area

SITE LOCATION
(Scale 1:50000)

SITE PHOTOGRAPH

DETAILED SITE LOCATION
(Scale            )1:1250

Original Sheet Size:Surveyed By:

Date:Checked:Drawn: Date:

Cell Name

Site Address / Contact Details

Cell ID No

Drawing Title:

Purpose of issue:

Drawing Number:

TEF VF

Opt.

CORNERSTONE - BEACON 3

A3

PLANNING

CORNERSTONE

Pack
Issue:

Dwg
Rev:

WHP Telecoms Ltd
Faraday Court

401 Faraday Street

Birchwood Park

Warrington WA3 6GA

The drawings comply with TEF & Vodafone Standard ICNIRP guidelines.
Designed in accordance with CORNERSTONE document: SDN0008 v5.1 & SDN0009 v6.0

P
age 236



Original Sheet Size:Surveyed By:

Date:Checked:Drawn: Date:

Cell Name

Site Address / Contact Details

Cell ID No

Drawing Title:

Purpose of issue:

Drawing Number:

TEF VF

Opt.

CORNERSTONE - BEACON 3

A3

PLANNING

CORNERSTONE

Pack
Issue:

Dwg
Rev:

WHP Telecoms Ltd
Faraday Court

401 Faraday Street

Birchwood Park

Warrington WA3 6GA

P
age 237



Original Sheet Size:Surveyed By:

Date:Checked:Drawn: Date:

Cell Name

Site Address / Contact Details

Cell ID No

Drawing Title:

Purpose of issue:

Drawing Number:

TEF VF

Opt.

CORNERSTONE - BEACON 3

A3

PLANNING

CORNERSTONE

Pack
Issue:

Dwg
Rev:

WHP Telecoms Ltd
Faraday Court

401 Faraday Street

Birchwood Park

Warrington WA3 6GA

P
age 238



Original Sheet Size:Surveyed By:

Date:Checked:Drawn: Date:

Cell Name

Site Address / Contact Details

Cell ID No

Drawing Title:

Purpose of issue:

Drawing Number:

TEF VF

Opt.

CORNERSTONE - BEACON 3

A3

PLANNING

CORNERSTONE

Pack
Issue:

Dwg
Rev:

WHP Telecoms Ltd
Faraday Court

401 Faraday Street

Birchwood Park

Warrington WA3 6GA

The drawings comply with TEF & Vodafone Standard ICNIRP guidelines.
Designed in accordance with CORNERSTONE document: SDN0008 v5.1 & SDN0009 v6.0

P
age 239



P
age 240



 

 

 

 

 

Report to Planning Committee 

 
 

29 November 2023 

 

 

Subject: Planning Delegations Agreement 

Director: Director of Regeneration and Growth 
Tony McGovern 

Contact Officer: Development Planning Manager 
Alison Bishop 
Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk  

 

1 Recommendations 

 

1.1 That Planning Committee note the changes to the planning delegations 

agreement 

1.2 That approval is given to the revised planning delegations agreement. 

1.3 That the revised planning delegations agreement is referred to Full 

Council for final approval.    

 

2 Reasons for Recommendations  

 

2.1 The local planning authority is monitored closely by the Government 

regarding the time taken to determine planning applications.  (Applicants 

have a right to appeal to the Planning Inspectorate if their application is 

not dealt within the prescribed time).  The revised planning delegations 

agreement has been updated to align with new legislation and Council 

structure, clarify the reasons for reporting a planning application to your 

committee and removing the need to report certain planning applications 

to your committee that are not controversial.  This will ensure the 

delegations agreement aligns with current legislations and Council 

 

Page 241

Agenda Item 17



 

structures and assists in ensuring that planning decisions are made 

within timescales set out by Central Government.   

 

3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?  

 

 

Strong resilient communities 

 

Quality homes in thriving neighbourhoods 

 

A strong and inclusive economy 

 

4 Context and Key Issues 

 

4.1 The current planning delegations agreement was last reviewed in 2012.  

The purpose of the planning delegations agreement is to ensure that 

planning applications are determined in an open and transparent 

manner.  

 

4.2 The current agreement sets out those planning decisions that are 

excluded from being delegated to planning officers.  There are currently 

9 reasons that remove delegated authority and instead require a 

planning application to be reported to planning committee.  The reasons 

are summarised below:- 

 

i) A Councillor makes written request; 

ii) The Director of Regeneration and Economy considers the 

application should be reported to your committee; 

iii) The application is a departure from the development plan; 

iv) The proposal involves the Council as applicant or land owner; 

v) The applicant is a councillor or their immediate relative; 

vi) The applicant is a member of the Council’s management team, a 

service unit head, a member of the planning service or any 

member of staff within the authority who could be seen to have a 

direct influence on the application; 

Page 242



 

vii) Any application where a Council employee is privately involved in a 

capacity as an agent or consultant; 

viii) Where an application receives three or more material planning 

representations which are contrary to officer recommendation; and 

ix) Any application which is subject to a Section 106 agreement. 

 

4.3 The local planning authority is monitored closely by the Government 

regarding the time taken to determine planning applications.  (Applicants 

have a right to appeal to the Planning Inspectorate if their application is 

not dealt within the prescribed time).   

 

The Government targets are as follows:- 

 

60% of major applications to be determined in 13 weeks 

70% of minor applications to be determined in 8 weeks  

80% of other applications to be determined in 8 weeks 

 

The number of planning and related applications received and determined  

between 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023 was; 

 

1153 planning applications received of which 1169* applications were 

determined. (*this number is larger as we determined applications in this 

period that were carried over from previous months).  

 

Of the 1169 applications determined, 1124 (96%) were dealt with by 

officers using delegated powers.   

 

4.4 The proposed revisions to the delegations agreement as indicated above 

is firstly to reflect updated legislation and changes in the Councils 

organisational structure.  Secondly, there are proposals to clarify the 

wording for reasons why an application cannot be determined under 

delegated powers to avoid ambiguity.  Thirdly, it is proposed to remove 

the need to report an application to planning committee which requires a 

s106 agreement where less than three objections have been received. 

 

Page 243



 

4.5 The changes proposed, would ensure that the delegations agreement 

reflects current legislation and council structure whilst also ensuring that 

applications that require a democratic decision are brought to planning 

committee to ensure that robust, transparent and balanced decisions are 

made within Sandwell in accordance with national and local policy and 

material planning considerations.  

 

5 Alternative Options 

 

5.1 The current delegations agreement could remain in place however, it is 

now over 10 years old.  Hence revisions are recommended to align the 

agreement with current legislation and council structures, to provide 

greater clarity within the delegations agreement and remove the need for 

uncontroversial planning applications being reported to planning 

committee. 

 

6 Implications 

 

Resources: Financial, staffing, land/building implications 

Legal and 
Governance: 

Legal implications including regulations/law under 
which proposals are required/permitted and 
constitutional provisions 

Risk: Risk implications, including any mitigating measures 
planned/taken, health and safety, insurance 
implications 

Equality: Implications for equality (all aspects and 
characteristics) including how meeting Equality Duty, 
equality impact assessments 

Health and 
Wellbeing: 

Implications of the proposals on health and wellbeing 
of our communities 

Social Value Implications for social value and how the proposals 
are meeting this (for e.g. employment of local traders, 
young people) 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 

Page 244



 

resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed. 

 

7. Appendices 

 

 Appendix 1 - Revised Delegations Agreement. 

 

8. Background Papers 

 

 None. 

 

 

Page 245



Delegations Agreement  
 

Determination by officers of all applications for permission, approval, 
variation or consent, requirements for enforcement action, issuing of 
notices, discharge of conditions, matters relating to protected trees and 
high hedges; screening opinions; appeals; prosecutions; and the 
completion or modification of agreements or obligations made under the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 
2004, the Planning and Compensation Act 1991; the Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2017; the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004; the Planning 
(Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 and the 
Planning Act 2008 or any subordinate rules, orders or regulations made 
under that legislation, with the exception of the following matters:- 
 

1  A councillor makes a written request to the Assistant Director of 
Development Planning and Building Consultancy on material 
planning grounds within 15 working days from the date of 
publication of the weekly list of planning applications on which the 
said planning application appeared, for the application to be 
considered by planning committee. 

 
2 The Executive Director - Place, considers that the application 

should be considered by planning committee. 
 

3 The application would represent a departure from the policies of the 
statutory development plan. 

 
4  The proposal is a major development1 which involves the Council 

either as applicant or land owner and has generated objection(s). 
 

5 The applicant is a councillor or their immediate relative. 
 

6 The applicant is a member of the Council’s management team, a 
service unit head, a member of the Planning Service or any 
member of staff within the authority who is submitting a planning 
application in a private capacity and could be seen as having a 
direct input to, and therefore influence on, application decisions. 

 

                                      
1 Major development is defined by The Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

Page 246



7 Any application where a Council employee is privately involved in a 
capacity as an agent or consultant. 

 
8 Where an application receives three or more material planning 

representations which are contrary to officer recommendation. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 247



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

29 November 2023 
 

Subject: Proposed Site Visits 

Director: Director – Regeneration and Growth 
Tony McGovern 

Contact Officer: John Baker 
Service Manager - Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy 
John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk 

 
Alison Bishop 
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

 

1 Recommendations 
 

2 That the Committee notes that the following planning application(s) will 

be visited by the Committee on 10th January 2024. 

 

3 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 Planning officers recommend these visit(s) to assist with the timescales 

set by government for reaching decisions on planning applications and 

when an application has generated substantial public interest. 

 

4 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 
 

  

We now have many new homes to meet a full 
range of housing needs in attractive 
neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 
Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are 
successful centres of community life, leisure and 
entertainment where people increasingly choose 

  

Report to the Planning Committee 

Page 249

Agenda Item 18

mailto:John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk


  

to bring up their families. 
Sandwell now has a national reputation for 
getting things done, where all local partners are 
focused on what really matters in people’s lives 
and communities. 

 
 
5 Context and Key Issues 
 

5.1 Planning applications can generate considerable public interest and it is 

considered that in some circumstances a visit to the site by the 

planning committee will assist them in understanding the proposal in 

relation to the surrounding area. 

 

5.2 Visiting the site earlier in the planning process can assist with the 

timescales set by government for reaching decisions on planning 

applications. 

 
5.3 In the event that the application does not generate objections, then 

members will no longer be required to consider the planning application 

before their committee and instead the application will be decided 

under delegated powers. 

 

5.4 Site visit(s) for the following planning application(s) are reported.  A 

location plan and site layout are attached:- 

 
 

Application No. and 

Description. 

 

Date 

received 

 Reason 

DC/23/68738 
 
Proposed single storey 
outbuilding to rear 
50 Chatsworth 
Avenue, Great Barr, 
Birmingham, B43 6QH 

 
 

6.10.23 To consider the site context in 
relation to the proposal and 
surrounding property. 

Page 250



DC/23/68830 
Conversion of 32 
bedroom Care home 
(ClassC2) into 
supported living 13 
self-contained flats 
with communal rooms 
and staff office. 
Trinity House Nursing 
Home Mace Street 
Cradley Heath B64 
6HP  

 

26.10.3 The application has generated 
significant public interest,  
and to consider the surrounding 
parking. 
In addition, Councillor Webb has 
also requested that the site is visited 

 

 

6 Alternative Options 
 
6.1 There are no alternative options. 
 

7. Implications 
 

Resources: There are no direct implications in terms of the 
Council’s strategic resources. 
If the Planning Inspectorate overturns the 
Committee’s decision and grants consent, the Council 
may be required to pay the costs of such an appeal, 
for which there is no designated budget. 

Legal and 
Governance: 

The Planning Committee has delegated powers to 
determine planning applications within current Council 
policy. 
Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 gives applicants a right to appeal when they 
disagree with the local authority’s decision on their 
application, or where the local authority has failed to 
determine the application within the statutory 
timeframe 

Risk: There are no risks associated with this report. 

Equality: There are no equality implications associated with this 
report. 

Health and 
Wellbeing: 

There are no health and wellbeing implications 
associated with this report. 

Social Value There are no implications linked to social value with 
this report. 

 
 
 
 Page 251



8. Appendices 
Location plans 
Site layout plans

Page 252



 

Page 253



DATE:DESCRIPTION:REV:

Notes:

REVISION:PROJECT NO: DRAWING NO:

DRAWN:DATE: CHECKED:

TITLE:

SCALE AT A3:

SITE:

STATUS:

20 500 10

1:1250  1:500 AK

1

PLANNING

Site & Location Plan

The contractor is responsible for checking dimensions, tolerances and

references.  Any discrepancy to be verified with the Architect/Designer before

proceeding with the works.

Where an item is covered by drawings to different scales the larger scale

drawing is to be worked to.

10.11.2023

SITE PLAN
SCALE 1:500

LOCATION PLAN
SCALE 1:1250

NORTH

0 105

SCALE BAR 1:1250

20 50

50 Chatsworth Avenue
Great Barr
B43 6QH

2023-041 A

P
age 254

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Scale 1:500



Proposed Outbuilding Plan Proposed Outbuilding Roof Plan

Gym/Rehabilitation
Room

RWP RWP

Step and walk
platformMassage and

stretch station

Stair climber

Cross trainer
Treadmill

Cycle

WC Store

2x2m space mat
for free weights/
yoga area/physio
training

S
I
T

E
 
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

S
I
T

E
 
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

Proposed Front ElevationProposed Side Elevation Proposed Rear Elevation

2
5
5
0

DATE:DESCRIPTION:REV:

Notes:

REVISION:PROJECT NO: DRAWING NO:

DRAWN:DATE: CHECKED:

TITLE:

SCALE AT A3:

SITE:

STATUS:

1:100 AK

Proposed plans and elevations

10.11.2023

PLANNING

2

The contractor is responsible for checking dimensions, tolerances and

references.  Any discrepancy to be verified with the Architect/Designer before

proceeding with the works.

Where an item is covered by drawings to different scales the larger scale

drawing is to be worked to.

0 1051 2 3 4

2023-041

50 Chatsworth Avenue
Great Barr
B43 6QH

A

P
age 255

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Scale 1:100



Legend

 Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey Licence No 100032119
Page 256



As shown @ A2

Status: Scale:

Project:

Drawn by:

Rev: Drg. No.

Date:

Title:

Anjum Design Limited,  435 Stratford Road,         

Shirley, Solihull B90 3AA  TEL: 0121 364 7650              

E: info@anjumdesign.co.uk

Rev Description Date chkd

Copyright of ANJUM DESIGN LTDC
 No liability will be accepted for amendments made

BR02

Proposed Site Plan

MACE STREET

04m 4m 8m 12m 16m 20m

1:200

TR
IN

ITY
 ST

REE
T

52

17

10

Gard
en

17
5 s

q.m

12
 Pa

rki
ng

 sp
ace

s

May 2023

Mace Street, Old Mill. Cradley Hill, B64 6HP

Existing conservatory to
be removed

P
age 257

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
ANJUM DESIGN



T
his page is intentionally left blank



29 November 2023 

Subject: Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate 
Director: Director – Regeneration and Growth 

Tony McGovern 
Contact Officer: John Baker 

Service Manager - Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy 
John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk 

Alison Bishop 
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That Planning Committee notes the decisions of the Planning 
Inspectorate as detailed in the attached appendices. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations 

2.1 This report is submitted to inform the Committee of the outcomes 
of appeals that have been made to the Planning Inspectorate by 
applicants who were unhappy with the Committee’s decision on 
their application. 

Report to the Planning Committee 

Page 259

Agenda Item 19

mailto:John_baker@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:Alison_bishop@sandwell.gov.uk


3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 
 

  

We now have many new homes to meet a full 
range of housing needs in attractive 
neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 
Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are 
successful centres of community life, leisure and 
entertainment where people increasingly choose 
to bring up their families. 
Sandwell now has a national reputation for 
getting things done, where all local partners are 
focused on what really matters in people’s lives 
and communities. 

  

  

 
4 Context and Key Issues 

 
4.1 Applicants who disagree with the local authority’s decision on their 

planning application may submit an appeal to the Planning 
Inspectorate. An appeal may also be made where the local 
authority has failed to determine the application within the statutory 
timeframe. 

 
4.2 Appeals must be submitted within 3 months (householder 

proposals) six months (commercial developments) of the date 
of the                  local authority’s decision notice. 

 
4.3 Decisions on the following appeals are reported, with further 

detailed set out in the attached decision notice:- 
 
 
 

Application Ref Site Address Inspectorate 
DC/23/68081 85 Walsall Road 

West Bromwich 
B71 3 HH 

Dismissed 

Page 260



5 Alternative Options 
 
5.1 There are no alternative options. 

 
 
6 Implications 

 
Resources: There are no direct implications in terms of the 

Council’s strategic resources. 
If the Planning Inspectorate overturns the 
Committee’s decision and grants consent, the Council 
may be required to pay the costs of such an appeal, 
for which there is no designated budget. 

Legal and 
Governance: 

The Planning Committee has delegated powers to 
determine planning applications within current Council 
policy. 
Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 gives applicants a right to appeal when they 
disagree with the local authority’s decision on their 
application, or where the local authority has failed to 
determine the application within the statutory 
timeframe 

Risk: There are no risks associated with this report. 
Equality: There are no equality implications associated with this 

report. 
Health and 
Wellbeing: 

There are no health and wellbeing implications 
associated with this report. 

Social Value There are no implications linked to social value with 
this report. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of 
the need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing 
resources, including the conversion of existing 
buildings; and support renewable and low carbon 
energy and associated infrastructure, will be 
welcomed. 

 
7. Appendices 

 
 APP/G4620/D/23/3325841  
  
 Page 261



 

Page 262



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate    

 
 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 2 October 2023 

by Les Greenwood  MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State 

Decision date:17.10.2023 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/G4620/D/23/3325841 

85 Walsall Road, West Bromwich, Sandwell B71 3HH 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr & Mrs Harminder Bhathal against the decision of Sandwell 

Metropolitan Borough Council. 

• The application Ref DC/23/68081, dated 10 March 2023, was refused by notice dated 

5 June 2023.  

• The development proposed is a 2 storey side and rear extension. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Preliminary matter 

2. In response to a query, the appellant confirmed that the plans on which the 
Council based its decision were inconsistent with each other. This was mainly 

because the roof over the side/rear extension would need to be higher than 
shown on the submitted side elevation drawing. A corrected plan 
(No ANS/343/1A) has now been submitted. The Council does not object to its 

consideration as part of the appeal process, stating only that the new plan 
exacerbates its objection. Having regard to the status of this new plan as a 

correction rather than as an amendment, to the objections received and to the 
conclusions I reach in this decision, I find no prejudice or procedural unfairness 
from my consideration of the new plan as part of the appeal proposal1.  

Main Issue 

3. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of 

the house and the local area.  

Reasons 

4. 85 Walsall Road is an end of terrace house in a suburban residential area, on a 
corner plot at the junction of Walsall Road and Lyndhurst Road. The proposal is 
to build a mainly 2 storey extension to the Lyndhurst Road side of the house, 

wrapping around to the rear. The corrected plans confirm that the 2 storey 

 
1 With reference to the substantive and procedural tests set out in Holborn Studios Ltd v The Council 
of the London Borough of Hackney [2017] EWHC 2823.  

Page 263

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/G4620/D/23/3325841 
 

 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                      2 

section would be at about the same height as the existing roof, with a small 
strip of flat roof at the top.  

5. The extension would create a long, bulky, almost blank section of 2 storey high 
wall sitting at the back of the footway on Lyndhurst Road. This would be an 
overly dominant and unsympathetic feature, sitting well forward of other 

houses on that street. It would become the most prominent structure in 
Lyndhurst Road, harming the openness of that street and intruding onto the 

smaller scale, more modest character and more finely detailed design of the 
other houses. I did not see any other similar developments and note that the 
house on the opposite corner remains well back from Lyndhurst Road. 

6. The appellant refers to a 2017 planning permission for a similar but somewhat 
smaller scale extension. It appears that that permission has lapsed and 

therefore does not form a fall-back position for this appeal. As clarified by the 
corrected plan, the current proposal’s visual impact would be significantly 
greater in any case due to the increased roof height compared to the previously 

approved scheme.  

7. I conclude that the proposal would unacceptably harm the character and 

appearance of the house and the local area. It conflicts with the design aspects 
of Black Country Core Strategy policy ENV3 and Site Allocations and Delivery 
Development Plan Document policy SAD EOS9, which seek to ensure high 

quality design that pays particular attention to the way that development 
relates to the street.  

8. I have considered all other points raised, including the objections of neighbours 
and the Highway Authority. I find nothing which overcomes or adds 
significantly to my concerns about the proposal. For the reasons set out above 

I conclude that the appeal should not succeed. 

Les Greenwood 
INSPECTOR 

Page 264

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


29 November 2023 

Subject: Applications Determined Under Delegated 
Powers 

Director: Director of Regeneration and Growth 
Tony McGovern 

Contact Officer: John Baker 
Service Manager – Development Planning and 
Building Consultancy 
John_Baker@sandwell.gov.uk 

Alison Bishop 
Development Planning Manager 
Alison_Bishop@sandwell.gov.uk 

1 Recommendations 

1.1 That the Planning Committee notes the applications determined under 
delegated powers by the Director – Regeneration and Growth set out in 
the attached Appendix. 

2 Reasons for Recommendations 

2.1 This report is submitted to inform the Committee of the decisions on 
applications determined under delegated powers by the Director – 
Regeneration and Growth. 

Report to the Planning Committee 

Page 265

Agenda Item 20

mailto:John_Baker@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:Alison_Bishop@sandwell.gov.uk


3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan? 
 

  

We now have many new homes to meet a full 
range of housing needs in attractive 
neighbourhoods and close to key transport 
routes. 

 
Our distinctive towns and neighbourhoods are 
successful centres of community life, leisure and 
entertainment where people increasingly choose 
to bring up their families. 

 
Sandwell now has a national reputation for 
getting things done, where all local partners are 
focused on what really matters in people’s lives 
and communities. 

  

  

 
 

4 Context and Key Issues 
 

4.1 The applications determined under delegated powers are set out in the 
Appendix. 

 
 

5 Alternative Options 
 

There are no alternative options. 
 
 

6 Implications 
 

Resources: There are no implications in terms of the Council’s 
strategic resources. 

Legal and 
Governance: 

The Director – Regeneration and Growth has taken 
decisions in accordance with powers delegated under 
Part 3 (Appendix 5) of the Council’s Constitution. 

Risk: There are no risk implications associated with this 
report. 

Equality: There are no equality implications associated with this 
report. 

 
 
 

Page 266



Health and 
Wellbeing: 

There are no health and wellbeing implications 
associated with this report. 

Social Value There are no implications linked to social value with 
this report. 

Climate 
Change 

Sandwell Council supports the transition to a low 
carbon future, in a way that takes full account of the 
need to adapt to and mitigate climate change. 
Proposals that help to  shape places in ways that 
contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas 
emissions, minimise vulnerability and improve 
resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, 
including the conversion of existing buildings; and 
support renewable and low carbon energy and 
associated infrastructure, will be welcomed. 

 
 

7 Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 - Applications determined under delegated powers by the 
Director – Regeneration and Growth. 

 
 

Page 267



SANDWELL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Applications determined under delegated powers by the Director – Regeneration and 

Growth since your last Committee Meeting 
 

REPORT FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES ONLY 
 
Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

DC/23/68591 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

Land To The Rear 
Of 20-26 Stanway 
Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 1RW 

Variation of condition 1 of 
planning permission 
DC/21/65306 (Proposed 
4 bed dwelling) to include 
a garage to side. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/22/6795A 
 
Great Bridge 

108 Lower Church 
Lane 
Tipton 
DY4 7PE 

Proposed Medpoint 
machine vinyl sign. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
8th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68390 
 
Friar Park 

9 Laburnum Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0PR 

Proposed modular 
access ramp. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/6856A 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

SPAR 
29 Leabrook Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0DX 

Retention of 5 No. 
internally illuminated 
fascia signs, 1 No. 
internally illuminated 
double sided totem sign 
and 7 No. non-
illuminated wall panel 
signs, 4 No. bollard signs 
and 3 No. banners. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
6th November 
2023 

    

Page 268



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68525 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

29 Leabrook Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0DX 

Retention of first floor 
external cladding, 
aluminium framed 
screens to shop front and 
shop front alterations, 
installation of ATM 
machine, external steel 
rail guard and ladders to 
rear, 3 No. external air 
conditioning units and 1 
No. condensing unit, 1 
No. vehicle charging unit, 
fenestration alterations 
and relocation of main 
entrance steps. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68594 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

20 Holden Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0DB 

Proposed variation of 
Condition 1 and 3a-d of 
DC/22/67733 (Proposed 
single storey rear 
extension and conversion 
to two apartments) - to 
remove the extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02501 
 
Hateley Heath 

Rimstock Plc Site 
Sales And 
Distribution 
Ridgacre Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 1BY 

Proposed 25.0m high 
Swann CS55 lattice 
tower on concrete base, 
with 12No. antennas, 
2No. GPS modules, 4No. 
dishes, 4No. ERS racks, 
2No. cabinets, 1No. 
meter cabinet and 
associated ancillary 
works. 

Prior Approval  
is Required and 
Granted 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68599 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

119 Spon Lane 
West Bromwich 
 

Proposed change of use 
of unused garage into a 
community centre with 
external alterations. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

Page 269



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68608 
 
Great Bridge 

Jubilee Park 
Powis Avenue 
Tipton 
 

Proposed replacement of 
existing fencing with a 
3m and 4m high fencing, 
floodlighting and 
refurbishment of existing 
MUGA into a football and 
basketball PlayZone. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68633 
 
Great Bridge 

Direct Channel 
Asset Company Ltd 
Brittania Works 
Whitehall Road 
Tipton 
DY4 7JR 

Proposed raising of roof 
height and external 
alterations to front. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
13th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68634 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

Bearmore Mound 
Playing Field 
Sutherland 
Road/Bearmore 
Road 
Cradley Heath 
 

Proposed extension to 
existing MUGA (Multi 
Use Games Area) and 
installation of 3m and 4m 
high fencing and 4 No. 
floodlights. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
13th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/67877 
 
Oldbury 

1 Stone Street 
Oldbury 
B69 4JL 

Retrospective change of 
use from industrial 
storage to car 
sales/repairs. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/67878 
 
Oldbury 

1 Tat Bank Road 
Oldbury 
B69 4NU 

Retrospective change of 
use from industrial 
storage to car 
sales/repairs with site 
office and canopy to rear. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/67910 
 
Oldbury 

1 Stone Street 
Oldbury 
B69 4JL 

Retrospective change of 
use from industrial 
storage to car 
sales/repairs with site 
office. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

Page 270



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68476 
 
Old Warley 

14 Forest Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0EE 

Proposed change of use 
from dwelling to 
residential home for up to 
3 No. children aged 
between 7 and 18 years 
old (Lawful Development 
Certificate). 

Refuse Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68481 
 
St Pauls 

Dessert Hut 
Mallin Street 
Smethwick 
B66 1QZ 

Proposed dessert and 
cake shop (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68521 
 
Langley 

28A Pound Road 
Oldbury 
B68 8LY 

Proposed two/single 
storey side and first floor 
rear extensions with rear 
dormer window and new 
pitched roof to existing 
single storey rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68610 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

TTC Lifting Gear 
Limited 
Newlyn Road 
Cradley Heath 
B64 6BE 

Proposed extension to 
facilitate loading and 
unloading, with 
sales/collection area, and 
additional parking 
(resubmission of 
planning application 
DC/16/59500). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02510 
 
Rowley 

Telecommunications 
Mast SWL16766  
Land Fronting 98 
And 96 Stuart Road 
Rowley Regis 
 

Proposed 15.0m high 
phase 9 slimline 
telecommunications 
monopole, 3 No 
equipment cabinets and 
associated ancillary 
works. 

Prior Approval  
is Required and 
Granted 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

Page 271



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68640 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

Land Adjacent To 
Unit 17 
Oak Street Industrial 
Park 
Oak Street 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5JY 

Proposed 1 No. industrial 
unit. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68653 
 
Blackheath 

6 - 12 Beet Street 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0HJ 

Proposed part change of 
use at ground floor from 
barbers shop to micro 
bar. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
8th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68221 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

Land Adjacent 320 
Halesowen Road 
Cradley Heath 

Proposed 2 no. dwellings 
with associated parking, 
front boundary wall, and 
side/rear retaining walls 
(Amendment to 
previously approved 
application 
DC/22/67822). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68417 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

5 Farley Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 9AN 

Proposed ground floor 
linked extension to 
existing playroom/store. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68470 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

131 High Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 6NY 

Proposed loft conversion 
and second floor front 
extension to create 2 No. 
self-contained flats. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

Page 272



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68536 
 
Newton 

116 Hamstead Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5BN 

Retention of front garden 
wall with electric sliding 
gate. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68542 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

30 Pear Tree Drive 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6HU 

Proposed single and two 
storey extensions to 
front, rear and side, 
porch to front and loft 
conversion with dormer 
to rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
12th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68576 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

104 Dagger Lane 
West Bromwich 
B71 4BS 

Proposed first floor front 
extension, part garage 
conversion and new 
roofs to garage & side 
and front bay windows. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68595 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

12 Lammermoor 
Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6ET 

Proposed shopfront with 
roller shutter, and 
replacement of rear door 
with roller shutter. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68616 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

121B High Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 6NY 

Proposed change of use 
from office to dry 
cleaners. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

Page 273



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68618 
 
Princes End 

43 Gospel Oak Road 
Tipton 
DY4 0DR 

Retention of 2.4m high 
boundary wall to rear and 
side. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68621 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

96 Pear Tree Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6JA 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68637 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

110 Wyndmill 
Crescent 
West Bromwich 
B71 3QU 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68645 
 
Newton 

83 Gorse Farm 
Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5LP 

Proposed two/single 
storey rear and first floor 
side extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68664 
 
Newton 

133 Spouthouse 
Lane 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5QB 

Proposed two storey 
garage and storeroom 
outbuilding at rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

Page 274



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68666 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

5 Arlen Drive 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6RA 

Proposed single storey 
front, rear and side 
extensions, first floor side 
extension, raising of roof 
height, and loft 
conversion with dormers 
to front and rear. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68438 
 
Blackheath 

Colas Limited 
Cakemore Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0QU 

Proposed demolition of 
outbuildings and addition 
of waste materials 
recycling to existing 
depot with 2 No. open 
storage areas with 3m 
high wall sound barrier, 
retention of 1 No. 
warehouse with new 
loading bay and retaining 
wall and 1 No. site office. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/6859A 
 
Smethwick 

Sandwell Aquatics 
Centre 
Londonderry Lane 
Smethwick 
B67 7EW 

Proposed non-illuminated 
fascia sign and totem 
sign. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68617 
 
Blackheath 

49 Gorsty Hill Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0HA 

Retention of use from 
retail (Class E) to 3 no. 
residential flats (Class 
C3). 

Refuse 
permission 
 
6th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68642 
 
St Pauls 

25 Darby Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9SG 

Proposed single and two 
storey rear extensions 
(revision of 
DC/23/68066). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

Page 275



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68214 
 
Wednesbury 
South 

17 Lee Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 0QY 

Retention of change of 
use from dwelling (Class 
C3) to children's care 
home (Class C2). 

Refuse 
permission 
 
23rd October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68215 
 
Tipton Green 

335 Dudley Port 
Tipton 
DY4 7PP 

Retention of 2 No. 
storage containers to 
rear. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68460 
 
Princes End 

15 Tozer Street 
Tipton 
DY4 9QD 

Proposed change of use 
to residential home for up 
to two children with care 
provided by up to three 
non-resident staff (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68464 
 
Newton 

58 Bowstoke Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5DP 

Proposed first floor side 
extension and detached 
outbuilding to rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68580 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

Shell West 
Bromwich 
Dudley Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 9LS 

Proposed crown lifting of 
trees (2 lime, 2 beech) by 
3m max from ground 
level. 

Grant Tree 
Preservation 
Order 
Permission 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

Page 276



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68673 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

19 King Street 
Wednesbury 
WS10 7PQ 

Proposed variation of 
conditions 1 & 4a of 
DC/22/67415 (Proposed 
front garage extension, 
single storey rear 
extension, first floor side 
extension and boundary 
wall) to amend ground 
floor layout and parking. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
8th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68671 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

1 Victoria Place 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9HS 

Proposed replacement of 
rear conservatory. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
26th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02533 
 
Bristnall 

232 Bristnall Hall 
Road 
Oldbury 
B68 9NJ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.95m L x 
3.40m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

Permitted 
Development 
Refused 
 
10th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68419 
 
Blackheath 

16 Majestic Way 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9LQ 

Proposed two storey rear 
and first floor side/rear 
extensions, front canopy 
extension and garage 
conversion into habitable 
room. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68502 
 
Rowley 

49 Roman Way 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9RB 

Proposed single storey 
detached garage to front. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

Page 277



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68549 
 
Old Warley 

534 - 538 Hagley 
Road West 
Oldbury 
B68 0BZ 

Retention of five storage 
containers to rear. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68575 
 
St Pauls 

32 Heather Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7LW 

Proposed first floor side 
and single storey rear 
extensions (Revision to 
refused planning 
permission 
DC/23/68332). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68588 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

29 Sidaway Street 
Cradley Heath 
B64 6HJ 

Proposed two storey side 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68598 
 
St Pauls 

Land At Former 76 
West Park Road 
Smethwick 
 

Retention of outbuilding 
at rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68600 
 
Oldbury 

GB Tyres (UK) Ltd 
Union Road 
Oldbury 
B69 3EX 

Proposed canopy to front 
loading yard. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
23rd October 
2023 

    

Page 278



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/6860A 
 
Oldbury 

The West Brom 
25 Birmingham 
Street 
Oldbury 
B69 4DY 

Proposed 1no. internally-
illuminated fascia sign 
and 1no. internally-
illuminated projecting 
sign. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68629 
 
Bristnall 

54 Moore Crescent 
Oldbury 
B68 9QP 

Retention of single storey 
side and rear extension 
(Revision to approved 
planning permission 
DC/22/67377). 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68636 
 
Old Warley 

55 Brennand Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0SU 

Retention of 
conservatory to rear. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
3rd November 
2023 

    

DC/23/6861A 
 
Blackheath 

West Bromwich 
Building Society 
20 - 21 High Street 
Rowley Regis 
B65 0DR 

Proposed 1 No. 
externally illuminated 
fascia sign and 1 No. 
externally illuminated 
projecting sign. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/23/6862A 
 
Abbey 

West Bromwich 
Building Society 
617 Bearwood Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4BL 

Proposed 1 No. 
externally illuminated 
fascia sign and 1 No. 
externally illuminated 
projecting sign. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
1st November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68651 
 
Old Warley 

272 Wolverhampton 
Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0TF 

Proposed two storey side 
and rear and single 
storey rear extensions. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
1st November 
2023 

Page 279



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

    

DC/23/68672 
 
Soho & Victoria 

47 Edgbaston Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4LG 

Proposed raising of roof 
height and alterations 
with 2 No. new roller 
shutter doors to existing 
garage to rear. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
6th November 
2023 

    

PD/23/02523 
 
St Pauls 

27 West Park Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7JJ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.95m L x 
2.999m H (2.699m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/6863A 
 
Abbey 

513 - 519 Bearwood 
Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4BE 

Proposed 1 No. internally 
illuminated fascia sign 1 
No. internally illuminated 
projecting sign, 1 No. non 
illuminated fascia/tray 
sign, 11 No. car park wall 
signs and 5 No. car park 
post signs. 

Grant 
Advertisement 
Consent 
 
10th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68688 
 
Oldbury 

20 Sorrel Close 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 2HZ 

Retention of fence to side 
and rear of property 
boundary. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
6th November 
2023 

    

DC/23/68697 
 
Abbey 

612 -614 Bearwood 
Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4BW 

Proposed change of use 
from retail to cafe with 
external flue (614 
Bearwood Road) and 
shared access and 
fenestration alterations to 
rear (612 and 614 
Bearwood Road). 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
10th November 
2023 

    

Page 280



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68504 
 
Langley 

818 Wolverhampton 
Road 
Oldbury 
B69 4RY 

Proposed two and single 
storey side extension. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68517 
 
Rowley 

306 Newbury Lane 
Oldbury 
B69 1JJ 

Proposed external wall 
insulation to front and 
side. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68512 
 
Old Warley 

59 Brennand Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0SU 

Retention of 
summerhouse in rear 
garden. 

Grant 
Conditional 
Retrospective 
Consent 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68535 
 
Blackheath 

38 Habberley Road 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9QN 

Proposed single storey 
side and rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68554 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

26 Maypole Close 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5AS 

Proposed single storey 
side and rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68545 
 
Smethwick 

5 Parkhill Road 
Smethwick 
B67 6AS 

Retention of single storey 
rear extension, loft 
conversion, rear dormer 
window, front canopy and 
fenestration alterations. 

Grant 
Retrospective 
Permission 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

Page 281



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68552 
 
Tividale 

193 Regent Road 
Oldbury 
B69 1RZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68555 
 
Old Warley 

9 Albert Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0NA 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68565 
 
Smethwick 

3 Hall Road 
Smethwick 
B67 6SG 

Proposed two storey 
side/rear and single 
storey front/rear 
extensions. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
18th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68577 
 
Abbey 

18 Pargeter Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5HY 

Proposed single storey 
side and rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68585 
 
Rowley 

41 Denby Way 
Cradley Heath 
B64 5RF 

Proposed conservatory 
to rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02500 
 
Tividale 

50 West Avenue 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 1QX 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

Permitted 
Development 
Refused 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

Page 282



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02502 
 
Oldbury 

40 Warwick Gardens 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 3JB 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02503 
 
Abbey 

27 Anderson Road 
Smethwick 
B66 4AR 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.50m H (2.25m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02504 
 
Old Warley 

32 Kenilworth Road 
Oldbury 
B68 0ND 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder 
required and 
granted 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02506 
 
Oldbury 

187 Temple Way 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 3LX 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.00m L x 
3.70m H (2.30m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02509 
 
Cradley Heath 
& Old Hill 

15 Coppice Road 
Cradley Heath 
B64 7LN 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.05m L x 
2.7m H (2.7m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68623 
 
Soho & Victoria 

106 Messenger 
Road 
Smethwick 
B66 3EQ 

Proposed single storey 
front/side extension, 2 
No. front bay windows 
and front boundary wall. 

Refuse 
permission 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

Page 283



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68628 
 
Abbey 

18 Clifford Road 
Smethwick 
B67 5HJ 

Proposed single storey 
side/rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02513 
 
Blackheath 

33 Highbury Avenue 
Rowley Regis 
B65 9PN 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.00m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02515 
 
St Pauls 

22 Brian Road 
Smethwick 
B67 7LG 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.0m L x 
3.95m H (2.80m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02517 
 
Langley 

4 Pound Close 
Oldbury 
B68 8LZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.5m L x 
3.7m H (2.6m to eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02521 
 
Tividale 

190 Wallace Road 
Oldbury 
B69 1HU 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
3.0m H (2.8m to eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02525 
 
Oldbury 

5 Twydale Avenue 
Tividale 
Oldbury 
B69 2HP 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
3rd November 
2023 

    

Page 284



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68431 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

45 Abbotsford 
Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6HB 

Proposed single storey 
front, side and rear 
extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68466 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

27 Temple Meadows 
Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 4DE 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension and porch 
to front. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68558 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

40 Sycamore Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 7SS 

Proposed single storey 
front, side and rear 
extension 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
20th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68560 
 
Wednesbury 
North 

100 Barlow Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 9QB 

Proposed ramped access 
to front and side and 
rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68564 
 
Great Bridge 

78 Scott Street 
Tipton 
DY4 7AG 

Proposed single storey 
rear/side extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

Page 285



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68572 
 
Hateley Heath 

7 Berkshire Close 
West Bromwich 
B71 2SJ 

Proposed single storey 
side extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68579 
 
Tipton Green 

18 Sherwood 
Avenue 
Tipton 
DY4 8LG 

Demolition of 
conservatory and 
proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68581 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

41 Young Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 9TU 

Proposed access 
platform lift. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68596 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

2 Greenside Way 
Walsall 
WS5 4BS 

Proposed ramped access 
to front, side and rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68601 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

18 Seagar Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 4AN 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02505 
 
Hateley Heath 

44 Law Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 1DZ 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.15m L x 
3.23m H (2.95m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

Page 286



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

DC/23/68603 
 
Newton 

93 Greenfield Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5AR 

Proposed level access 
ramp and handrails to 
front of property 

Grant 
Permission 
 
13th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02508 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

4 Turton Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 8LA 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 5.5m L x 
4.0m H (2.4m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68615 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

68 Grove Vale 
Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 6BZ 

Proposed loft conversion 
with hip to gable roof 
extension and rear 
dormer window (Lawful 
Development Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
23rd October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68625 
 
Hateley Heath 

164 Canterbury 
Road 
West Bromwich 
B71 2LG 

Proposed ramp to front, 
side and rear. 

Grant 
Permission 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68627 
 
Newton 

8 Garston Way 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5JT 

Proposed single storey 
side extension (Lawful 
Development Certificate) 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68649 
 
Newton 

29 Jayshaw Avenue 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5SB 

Proposed garage roof 
alterations and 
conversion into habitable 
room. 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

Page 287



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02512 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

8 Mason Street 
West Bromwich 
B70 9NN 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 3.62m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02516 
 
Great Barr With 
Yew Tree 

41 Poole House 
Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 7SL 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.585m H (2.835m to 
eaves). 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
23rd October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68669 
 
Charlemont 
With Grove 
Vale 

21 Horsecroft Drive 
West Bromwich 
B71 3TE 

Proposed single storey 
side extension 
(previously withdrawn 
application 
DC/23/68561). 

Grant 
Permission with 
external 
materials 
 
10th November 
2023 

    

PD/23/02524 
 
Newton 

8 Greenfield Road 
Great Barr 
Birmingham 
B43 5AP 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.50m L x 
4.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02526 
 
Hateley Heath 

16 Clive Street 
West Bromwich 
B71 1LH 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.46m H (2.79m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02527 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

10 Poplar Avenue 
West Bromwich 
B70 6HP 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 4.00m L x 
4.00m H (2.50m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
26th October 
2023 

    

Page 288



Application No. 
Ward 

Site Address Description of 
Development 

Decision and 
Date 

PD/23/02529 
 
Great Bridge 

32 Moors Mill Lane 
Tipton 
DY4 0HL 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.00m L x 
3.00m H (3.00m to 
eaves) 

P D 
Householder not 
required 
 
25th October 
2023 

    

PD/23/02531 
 
Friar Park 

20 Dorsett Road 
Wednesbury 
WS10 0JF 

Proposed single storey 
rear extension 
measuring: 6.0m L x 
4.0m H (3.0m to eaves) 

P D 
Householder 
required and 
refused 
 
30th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68503 
 
West Bromwich 
Central 

79 Birmingham 
Road 
West Bromwich 
B70 6PX 

Proposed change of use 
of offices to an 8 
bedroom HMO. 

Grant 
Permission 
Subject to 
Conditions 
 
11th October 
2023 

    

DC/23/68631 
 
Greets Green & 
Lyng 

117 Spon Lane 
West Bromwich 
B70 6AS 

Proposed use as taxi 
management office 
(Lawful Development 
Certificate). 

Grant Lawful 
Use Certificate 
 
17th October 
2023 

    

 

Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Apologies for Absence
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Planning Application - DC/22/67240 - Land Formerly Wednesbury Motors, 110 Holyhead Road, Wednesbury
	1. report - dc-22-67240
	2. Context Plan
	3. Location plan
	4. Layout and access plan

	5 Planning Application - DC/23/67863 - Land West Of Bridge Street North, Smethwick, B66 2BJ
	1. report dc-23-67863
	2. Location Plan
	3. PROPOSED SOIL TREATMENT SHED FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS
	4. Post Treatment Bays
	5. Proposed site accomodation
	6. Site entrance plan
	Sheets and Views
	6223-A-109


	7. Picking elevation machine

	6 Planning Application - DC/23/68288 - 38 High Street, Cradley Heath, B64 5HL
	1. report dc-23-68288 
	02. Context Plan
	03. Proposed floor plans and elevations
	Sheets and Views
	A2-01



	7 Planning Application - DC/23/68367 - 57 Valentine Road, Oldbury, B68 9AH
	1. report DC-23-68367 
	2. Location Plan
	3. Existing plans
	4. Floor plan
	5. Elevation plan

	8 Planning Application - DC/23/68420 - Site Of Former 3 And 4 Cardale Street, Rowley Regis
	1. report dc-23-68420
	2. Location Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	3. Context Plan
	4. Site Layout
	Sheets and Views
	Site Layout


	5. Type A Plots 1-9 Floor Plans
	Sheets and Views
	Type A Plots 1-9


	6. Type A Plots 1-9 Elevations
	Sheets and Views
	Type A Plots 1-9


	7. Floor Plans Plots 10-12 Preliminary
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 10-12


	8. Elevations Plots 13-14 Preliminary
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 13-14


	9. PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLOTS 10-12
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 10-12


	10. Floor Plans Plots 13-14 Preliminary
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 13-14


	11. Floor Plans Plots 15-16 Preliminary
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 15-16


	12. Elevations Plots 15-16
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 15-16


	13. Floor Plans Plots 17-20 Preliminary
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 17-20


	14. Elevations Plots 17-20 Preliminary
	Sheets and Views
	Plots 17-20


	15. streetscene
	Sheets and Views
	Type A Plots 1-9


	16. Landscape Proposals email
	17. External Levels Strategy
	Sheets and Views
	100



	9 Planning Application - DC/23/68497 - 10 Jowetts Lane, West Bromwich, B71 2RA
	1. report DC-23-68497
	2. Location and Block Plan
	3. Existing Ground Floor Plan
	4. Existing First Floor Plan
	5. Existing Elevations
	6. Proposed Ground Floor Plan REV A
	7. Proposed First Floor Plan
	8. PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PLAN

	10 Planning Application - DC/23/68518 - Locarno Works, Locarno Road, Tipton, DY4 9AF
	1. report dc-23-68518
	02. Context Plan
	03. Site Plan-Layout
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	04. Lighting plan

	11 Planning Application - DC/23/68524 - 51 Green Street, West Bromwich, B70 6DL
	1. report dc-23-68524  
	BLOCK LOCATION PLAN B
	Sheets and Views
	block location



	12 Planning Application - DC/23/68559 - Gateway Service Station, 76 Birmingham Road, Great Barr, Birmingham, B43 6NT
	1. report DC-23-68559
	Context Plan

	13 Planning Application - DC/23/68578 - 180 Walsall Road, West Bromwich, B71 3LH
	1. report DC-23-68578
	2. Location Plans Existing and Proposed Plans Elevations

	14 Planning Application - DC/23/68624 - Land At Corner Of Cleton Street And Sedgley Road East/Tipton Road, Tipton, DY4 7TR
	1. report DC-23-68624
	2. LOCATION_PLAN-1283928
	3. PROPOSED_SITE_PLAN-1283913
	4. PROPOSED_ELEVATIONS-1283915
	5. PROPOSED_GROUND_FLOOR_PLAN___SECTION_1-1283917

	15 Planning Application - DC/23/68690 - Travellers Transit Site, Wellington Street, Smethwick
	1. report dc-23-68690
	2. Context Plan
	3.1287552-Proposed Transit Site Layout

	16 Planning Application - PD/23/02530 - Telecommunication Mast 1694, Haden Park Road, Cradley Heath
	1. report PD-23-02530
	2. LOCATION_PLAN_SITE_PHOTO-1288548
	3. Existing site plan
	4. EXISTING_SITE_ELEVATION-1288554
	5. PROPOSED_SITE_PLAN-1288552
	6. AMENDED_PROPOSED_ELEVATIONS_INCLUDING__FIR_GREEN__FINISH.-1295592

	17 Planning Delegations Agreement
	1. Report Delegations Agreement
	2. Appendix 1 - Delegations Agreement 2023 - proposed changes

	18 Proposed Site Visits
	1. Report Proposed Site visits
	2. Location and Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	PAPER A3


	3. Proposed Elevations and Floor Plan
	Sheets and Views
	PAPER A3


	4. Context Plan
	5. 1292397-OS Extract-PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	BR02



	19 Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate
	1. Report Decisions of the Planning Inspectorate - 29.11.23
	29th November 2023
	2 Reasons for Recommendations
	3 How does this deliver objectives of the Corporate Plan?
	5 Alternative Options
	6 Implications

	2. Decision-3325841-dismissed

	20 Applications Determined Under Delegated Powers
	1. Report Applications Determined Under Delegaed Powers
	2. Delegated List 10.10.23 to 14.11.23
	SANDWELL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Decision and Date
	Site Address



